AGENDA

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION
10:00 a.m., Friday, March 13, 2009

AUDITORIUM A
Dwight D. Eisenhower State Office Building
700 SW Harrison, Suite 450
Topeka, Kansas

A. CALL TO ORDER
B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. Minutes of February 18, 2009

D. LOTTERY GAMING FACILITY REPORTS/ITEMS
1. Butler National Service Corp./Boot Hill Casino and Resort

E. COMMISSION ITEMS
1. KRGC Compliance Audit of Eureka Downs for 2008

Commission Action: Commission review and discussion
Staff Presentation: David Schultz, Chief Audit Officer
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval

a. Staff Memo

b. Eureka 2008 Financial Report Memo
c. Accountants’ Financial Statements

2. Apportionment of Horse Purse Money

Commission Action: Commission review and discussion
Staff Presentation: Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval as outlined in Staff Memo
a. Staff Memo
3. Eureka Downs 2009 Fair Race Meet Application
Commission Action: Commission review and discussion
Staff Presentation: Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval as outlined in Staff Memo
a. Staff Memo

b. Eureka Downs 2009 Fair Race Meet Application

4. Final Approval And Roll Call Vote On New Regulations

Commission Action: Commission review and discussion
Staff Presentation: Patrick Martin, Assistant Attorney General
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval by roll call vote
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Staff Memo

K.A.R. 112-12-15. Live horse racing purse supplement fund.

K.A.R. 112-13-6. Kansas greyhound breeding development fund.

Article 101 — Facility manager certification

Article 102 — Gaming supplier and non-gaming supplier certification (excluding

K.A.R. 112-102-2)
Article 103 — Employee certification

. Article 107 — Electronic gaming machines

Article 110 — Technical standards
Article 111 — Involuntary exclusions
Article 113 — Sanctions

. Article 114 — Rules of hearings

5. Presentation Of New Regulations

Commission Action:
Staff Presentation:
Staff Recommendation:
a.
b.

C.

Staff Memo

Commission review and discussion
Patrick Martin, Assistant Attorney General
Staff recommends approval

Article 104 — Minimum accounting and internal control standards (K.A.R.s 112-104-

34 through 41 only)
Article 108 — Table games

. PUBLIC COMMENTS

. STAFF REPORTS
1. Executive Director

2. Assistant Attorney General

3. Director of Administration

a.
b.

Budget Update
Commission Meeting Calendar

. EXECUTIVE SESSION
1. Attorney-client communication

FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION

OTHER BUSINESS

. ADJOURNMENT
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CALL TO ORDER:
(A)

MOTION, APPROVE
AGENDA:

(B)

MOTION, APPROVE
JANUARY 23, 2009,
MEETING MINUTES:
(C.1)

MOTION, APPROVE
CONSENT AGENDA:

(D)

DISCUSSION, POST-
HEARING CHANGES TO
NON-GAMING SUPPLIER
REGULATION:

(E.L)

MOTION, APPROVE
POST-HEARING
CHANGES TO NON-
GAMING SUPPLIER
REGULATION:
(E.1)

CALL FOR PUBLIC
COMMENTS:

(F)

STAFF REPORT,
MARTINO:
(G.1)

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION

MINUTES — February 18, 2009
CONFERENCE CALL

Chair Sader called the February 18, 2009, conference call meeting to
order at 10:00 am.  Commissioners Sader, Braun, Falstad,
McKechnie, and Schwan were present by teleconference. Others
present included Executive Director Stephen Martino; Assistant
Attorney General Patrick Martin; Director of Security Don Brownlee;
Director of Communications/Responsible Gaming Mike Deines;
Commission Recording Secretary Linda Pendarvis and other staff.

Commissioner Braun (Falstad) moved to approve the agenda as
presented. Motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner McKechnie (Schwan) moved to approve the minutes
of the January 23, 2009, commission meeting as submitted. Motion
passed unanimously.

Commissioner McKechnie (Falstad) moved to approve the consent
agenda as follows:

1. TRAK East - review and approve contracts
a. McGladrey & Pullen, Certified Public Accountants,
Kansas City, MO; Audit services.
Motion passed unanimously.

The commission heard Mr. Martin discuss proposed changes intended
to clarify the scope of non-gaming suppliers that KRGC plans to
background in conjunction with regulation 112-102-2, non-gaming
supplier regulation. Mr. Martin discussed limiting the scope of
proposed regulation K.A.R. 112-102-2(b), which defines the scope of
non-gaming suppliers that must be commission certified.

Commissioner McKechnie (Braun) moved to approve the conceptual
changes as proposed. Motion passed unanimously.

Chair Sader called for public comments. There were none.

The commission heard a staff report from Mr. Martino.
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February 18, 2009
Page 2

STAFF REPORT,
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY
GENERAL:

(G.2))

CALENDAR REVIEW:
(G.3)

OTHER BUSINESS:
(H)

ADJOURN:
(1)

SUBMITTED BY:

William Falstad
Secretary

APPROVED BY:

Carol H. Sader
Chair

The commission heard a staff report from Mr. Martin.

There was no calendar review.

There was no other business to come hefore the commission.

Commissioner Braun (McKechnie) moved to adjourn at 10:23 am.

Motion passed unanimously.
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Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM

DATE OF MEETING: March 13, 2009

AGENDA ITEM: KRGC Compliance Audit of Eureka Downs for 2008
PRESENTER: David Schultz, Chief Audit Officer, KRGC

ISSUE SUMMARY: The Eureka Downs 2008 compliance audit was conducted on January 7,
2009, and the financial report is included herein. The Commission may require any fair

association or horsemen’s nonprofit organization licensee to file a financial audit in accordance
with Commission direction (K.A.R. 112-17-11).

COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED: Commission  discussion,
consideration and possible action on Eureka Down’s 2008 financial report.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval of the Eureka Down’s 2008
financial report.

E.la



700 SW Harrison, Suite 420, Topeka, Kansas 66603 H
(785) 296-5800 Fax (785) 296-0900 Kansas RaCI ng and

Gaming Commission

Memo

To: Stephen L. Martino, Executive Director, KRGC

From: Charles LaBoy, Director of Auditing and Electronic Gaming Security, KRGC
Date: January 29, 2009

Re: Eureka 2008 Financial Report

Commission staff has completed a compliance audit of the accompanying Balance Sheet of Eureka
Downs, a division of the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association, Inc. as of November 30, 2008 and
the related Profit and Loss Statement for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the company’s management. Our objective was to determine whether the underlying
financial activity at Eureka Downs was in compliance with the Kansas Racing and Gaming
Commission’s rules and regulations.

Our compliance audit consisted of inquiries of Eureka Downs personnel and analytical procedures
applied to financial data and transactions. This compliance audit is substantially less in scope than an
audit of financial statements in accordance with Statement on Auditing Standards, as promulgated by
the auditing standards board of the AICPA. During the compliance audit, nothing came to our attention
that indicated any non-compliance with Kansas Racing and Gaming rules and regulations during the
period under audit. Additionally, no financial statement adjustments of a material nature were
proposed by Commission staff to Eureka Downs.

Included is a report titled Eureka Downs 2008 Expense Analysis. The objective of this report was to
determine the allocation of the operations of Eureka Downs between expenses that were allowed to be
charged against the KRGC grant and expenditures that were not. As detailed in the provided report,
expenditures that were allowable to be charged against the grant exceeded the grant award amount by
$49,386. Additionally, this report separated those expenses that were attributable to the pari-mutuel
activity at Eureka Downs from non pari-mutuel related expenditures. This analysis concluded that the
pari-mutuel activity at Eureka Downs resulted in a net loss of $16,217. The use of the Eureka Downs
facility during periods outside of the horse meet resulted in a net loss of $18,522.

There was no simulcasting at Eureka Downs in 2008, so the Simulcast Report provided in previous
years is not applicable this year.

The final report included is titled Eureka Downs 2008 KRGC Expenses. This report lists commission

expenses charged to the Horse Fair Racing Benefit Fund for the regulation of the Eureka Downs 2008
horse meet. Expenses on this report totaled $72,864.
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CPA's, PA

225 Nor1H WMI * SUITE 355 - WICHITA, KS 67202 « phone 316 262 5056 + fux 316.262 0102

REPORT OF ACCQUNTANTS

Board of Directors’
Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association, Inc.
Eureka, Kansas

We have compiled the accompanying balance sheet of Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association, Inc.
as of November 30, 2008 and 2007 and the related statements of income, retained earnings, and cash
flows for the years then ended; and the accompanying supplementary information, which are presented
only for supplementary analysis purposes, in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements and supplementary schedules
information that is the representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the '
accompanying financial statements and supplementary schedules and, accordingly, do not express an
opinion or any other form of assurance on them. ' '

We are not independent with I'e‘siaect to the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association, Tnc.

\7421%/ WW_ 268 s, /5

PUTHOFF & FARMER CPA’s, P
January 15, 2009 )
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KANSAS QUARTER HORSE RACING ASSOCIATON)_ INC

As of November 30, 2008 and N_o_ !
(See Accountants' Compilationi Report)

ASSETS
2008 2007
CURRENT ASSETS v
Cash $ 1695 $ - g
Certificates of Dep051t {Note By 'IE
Pledged 75,000 75,000 :
Unpledged . 27,129 25,000
Acct Rec. - Eureka Downs 0 o
Grant Receivable - AQHA  ~ 0] o
Dividend Receivable - KQHRA Concsssions 0 0
Prepaid income taxes & fax benefit receivable (Notes A & G) 614 614
Total current assets 104,438 100,614
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Notes A & H) '
Furnifure, Fixtures & Office equipment 14,001 14,001
Machinery and equipment 19,285 41,045
~ Total property and equipment 33,296 55,046
Less accumulated depreciation’ 27,496 39,543
Total net property and equipment 5,800 15,503
OTHER ASSETS
Note Receivable - Eureka Downs 25,000 25,000
investment in Sub. - KQHRA Concessions (Notes A 8 D) 11,566 10,908
Investment in Sub. - Eureka Downs (Notes A & C) (37,447) {2,876)
Total other assets {881) 33,032
TOTAL ASSETS $ 109,357 § 149,149
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
2008 2007
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank overdrafi 7 $ 0 % 752
Payroli taxes payable 571 694
Kansas Jackpot Race payable (Note B) 25,000 25,000
Accounts payabie - frade 11,487 895
Total current liabilities 37.058 27,341
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Kansas Jackpot Race payable (Note B) 50,000 50,000
Total fiabilities 87,058 77,341
EQUITY (Note F)
Retained earnings 22,298 71,808
Total equity 22,299 71,808
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 3 109,357, $ 149,148

e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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KANSAS QUARTER HORSE RACING ASSOCIATON, INC,
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
"~ Asof November 30, 2008 and November 30, 2007

(See Accountants’ Compilation Report)

Membership dues
Administrative Income
Convention Registration’
Silent Auction Income {nef)

Equity in Undistributed Income - KQHRA Concessions (Note D)

Dividends - KQHRA Concessions

Equity in Undistributed Income - Eureka Downs (Note C)

Kansas Jackpot Auction Revenue
Equipment Lease Income (Note 1)

Total Income

Advertising

Board Meefing Expenses
Awards - Races
Convention Expense
Awards - Convention
Catalog Expense

Bank Charges and credit card fees
Depreciation Expense
Dues & Subscriptions
Donations

Stallion Auction Chute Fees
Penalties & Interest

Legal & Professional Fees
Lobby Fees

Maintenance

Measls & Entertainment
Office Expenses

Office Supplies

Payroll tax expense
Postage

Rent or lease expense

. Added Money

Salaries
Telephone
Travel
Litilities
Coniract Labor
Other expense
Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

OTHER INCOME

Interest income
A.Q HA, Grant Income
Miscellaneous Income
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assels
Donations received

Total other income

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) BENEFIT (NOTE G)

NET INCOME (LOSS)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

2008 2007
9,195 7,600
11,508 22,578
3,275 1,414
3,818 5,502
658 1,328
0 0
(34,739) 4,954
103,050 122,105
0 6,000
96,765 171,481
7,060 7,545
1,720 1,085
6,528 14,158
7,246 8,485
3,720 3,855
4,515 3,969
1,825 2,754
3,763 8,034
384 210
0 2,000
10,475 14,800
) 0
9,435 4716
6,147 13,895
] 108
311 631
2,998 1,760
1,426 2,356
4,227 2,303
4,079 3,914
3,400 3,200
48,975 50,600
26,600 25,988
2,183 3,143
1,318 2,700
5,080 3,884
661 451
1,259 4,527
165,336 165,072
(68,571) (17,591)
4,282 4,049
15,000 15,000
0 900
(440) 0
220 165
15,062 20,114
(49,509) 2,523
0 4]
(49,500) 2,523

E.lc(30f20) |



KANSAS QUARTER HORSE RACiNG ASSOCIATON, INC.
ENTS OF OPERATIONS AND RE EARNINGS (CONTINUED)
As of ‘November 30, 2008 arid N& mber 30, 2007

(See Accountants Compllatlon Report)

sta

2008 2007
NET INCOME (LOSS) ' (49,509) 2,523
RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 71,808 69,285
RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR $ 22200 $ 71,808

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Fis KANSAS QUARTER HORSE RACING ASSOCIATON, INC.
. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
o As of November 30, 2008 and November 30, 2607
(See Accountants' Compliatlon Report)
2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from custométs $ 146,066 $ 210,285
Cash paid to suppliers and employees {151,104} {190,755}
Interest paid ) - -
Interest received ) 4,282 4,049
Income tax {payments) refunds 0 1,882
Net cash provided by (used) in operating activities (756) 25,541
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 7
Purchase of property and equipment 0 {6,250)
Dividends received from Subsidiary 0 10,000
Proceeds from sale of equipment 5,332 0
Change in certificates of deposit (2,129 1,250
Net cash provided by investing activities 3,203 5,000
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIMITIES
Payments on jackpot race payable ( 25,000 { 25,000
Advances on jackpot race payable 25,000 25,000
Change in long-term debt . - -
Net cash provided by {used in} financing activities - -
Net change in cash {bank overdrafts) 2447 30,541
Cash at beginning of year . (752) (31,203)
CASH (BANK OVERDRAFTS) AT END OF YEAR $ 1.695 3 {752)
o -
RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME (LOSS) TC NET CASH
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2008 2007
Net Income (loss) $ (49,6089} $ 2,523
Adjustments to recencile net income (loss) to cash
used in gperating activities:
Depreciation 3,763 6,034
Loss on Sale of fixed assets 440
Change in:
Prepaid income taxes & tax benefit receivable 1] 1,982
Payroll taxes payable (123} 225
Accolints payable - trade 10,592 {7,941)
Accounts receivable g 29,000
Investment in Sub. - KQHRA Concessions {658) {1,328)
Investment in Sub. - Eureka Downs 34,738 (4,954)
Net cash used in operating activities 3 (756) _ $ 25541

“

The accompanying notes are an integrél part of these statements.
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KANSAS QUARTER HORSE RACING ASSOCIATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2008 and 2007 . .
(See Accountants' Compﬂatlon Repoxt)

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A sumnmary of the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements follows.

- Business activity

The Company is engaged in the promotion of racing American Quarter Horses in Kansas and across the

- country. The Company does not extend credit to members or customers. The Company’s major source of

revenue is through donations of stallion breeding rights from farms across the country. These stallion

b1 eeding rights are then auctioned off to members of the association at an annual stallion auction. The

pmduce from these breedings are then eligible, after payment of nomination and sustaining entry fees to

the Company, for numerous 1aces sponsored by the Company. The company retains a percentage of

these entry fees as administrative income for sponsorship of these restricted races. In addition, the

_ Company engages in the operation of Eureka Downs, a horse racing track located in Eureka, Kansas,

- The operation of this racing facility is funded lar gely by a grant from the State of Kansas throngh the

_Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission. The Company operates this facility as a division of Kansas

“Quarter Horse Racing Association, Inc. The Company owns 100% of its’ subsidiary, KQHRA
Concessions, Inc. This entity operates the concessions for the duration of the race meet at Bureka
Downs, The Company, division and subsidiary have no union contracts and generally acquires labor and

- other services locally.

Income recognition

_ Income 1s recorded at the time of receipt for all income. Lease income is derived principally from
eqmpment rental which is recognized in the period contracted Income from interest is recorded at the
time of receipt. Income from the Eureka Downs divisions and KQHRA Concessions, Inc. (See Note D),
is recognized under the equity method of accounting. Separate compiled financial statements for gach of
these entltles are included with this report.

: ongerg and egmp_meﬁt

Depr eciation is provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreciable assets to operations
over their estimated service lives. The straight line method is used for substantially all assets for
ﬁnancml reporting purposes over the following estimated useful lives:

Machinery and equipment 3-7 years
Office furniture and equipment 5-7 years

Mamtenance 1epairs, and renewals which do not materially add to the value of the property and
eqmpment or appreciably prolong its life are charged to expense as incurred.

I Investments
‘Investments, consisting of a Eureka Downs, a division of KQHRA, and KQHRA Concessions, Inc., a
subsidiary of KQHRA, are carried at cost and are accounted for under the equity method of accounting.

E.lc(60of 20) |




KANSAS QUARTER HORSE RACING ASSOCIATION, INC

NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS
- Novembert 30, 2008 and 2007
(See Accountants Compilation Report)

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Advertxsmo costs _
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses were $7,060 and $7,545 respectively,
. for-the years ended November 30, 2008 and November 30, 2007.

" Income taxes
' The Company's provision for income taxes is the total of current taxes payable or refundable and tax
“expense or benefit. The Company has no deferred tax expense or benefit since the same basis of
accounting is used for financial report standards and tax laws and regulations. No provision for any
additional income tax benefit has been accrued for the most fiscal year. '

. Cash and cash equivalents
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers any highty liquid investment

- instruments with an original maturity of ninety days or less to be a cash equivalent. The Compa.ny had
- nno cash equivalents at November 30, 2008 o1 2007,

Use of estimates in preparatlon oi financial statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ fmm

those estimates.
NOTE B - CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

¢ - At November 30, 2008 and 2007 the Company had certificates of deposit at various financial institutions

totaling $102,129 and $100,000 respectively. These certificates of deposits have various maturity dates
ranging from 6 to 18 months. Interest on these certificates of deposit are paid quarterly. No interest has
been accrued on these balances $75,000 of these certificates of deposits are pledged to sponsor the
Kansas Jackpot Futurity Races. These sponsorships are $25,000 per year for three years, Other
certificates of deposit, if in excess of $75,000, are unpledged.

NOTE C - EUREKA DOWNS DIVISION
. The company operates the race track facility known as Eureka Downs located in Eureka, Ks. The
‘Company accounts for this operation as a division of the Company. This division is accounted for under

the equity method of accounting. For the years ended November 30, 2008 and 2007, the division had a
net loss of $34,739 and net income of $4,953 respectively.

E.1.c (7 of 20)




KANSAS QUARTER HORSE RACING ASSOCIATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2008 and 2007
(See Accountants’ Compilation Report)

OTE D - KQHRA CONCESSIONS

- The company owns 100% of a separate subsidiary known as KQHRA Concessions, Inc. This subsidiary
is accounted for under the equity method of accounting, For the years ended November 30, 2008 and
2007, the division had net income of $658 and net income of $1,328 respectively. ’

" NOTE E - RELATED PARTIES

. At November 30, 2008 and 2007 the Company did not have any accounts payable balances due to
| members or other related parties at either year end.

"NOTE F - EQUITY

L ‘The Company was incorporated in the State of Kansas in 1962 as a nonprofit corporation under Section
i - 501 (c) (5) of the Internal Revenue Code. No comrnon stock is issued. Voting rights are determined
- under the by-laws of the Company.

'NOTE G - INCOME TAXES

The Company has been granted tax éxempt status under Section 501 (c) (5) of the Internal Revenue
Code. However, the operation of a race track facility and concessionaire business are not tax-exempt
activities, Payments for federal and Kansas income taxes have been projected based on taxable income
multiplied by anticipated effective marginal federal and state corporate income tax rates. No provision
Has been made for the year ended November 30, 2008. The provision for income taxes includes the
following for the years ended November 30, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Cutrent tax benefit (expense) $ 0 $ 0
Deferred expense (benefit) o 0 0
Income tax expense (benefit) § 0 $ 38

NOTE H - DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

_ The amount of depreciation expense was $3,763 and $6,034, 1espectively, for the years ended November
30, 2008 and 2007. '

- NOTE I- LEASES

The Company rents equipment on an as needed basis. Equipment rentals totaled $0 and $6,000 for each
of the years ended November 30, 2008 and 2007. All lease are accounted for as operating leases and are

! renewable annually. The company does not have any capital leases.
E.1.c (8 of 20)




SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
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11:03 AM EUREKA DOWNS

01/07/08 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
As of November 30, 2008

, ‘Accrual Basis
;

{

Nov 30, 08 Nov 30, 07
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Emprise Bank - General Fund 9,308.44 28,858 23
; Emprise Bank - Horsemen's Bkpr 1,863 70 15,407 93
! Emprise Bank - Operations Acct, 491,39 1,676.39
Total Checking/Savings 11,663.53 48,043 55
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Other 142 00 892 85
Returned Checks 0.00 250.00
Total Accounts Receivahle 142.00 1,142 85
Horsemen Overpayments 0.00 83475
Total Accounts Receivable 142.00 1,777.60
Total Current Assets 11,805 53 47,821 15
Fixed Assets
Machinery & Equipment
Building 22,683.10 21,869 83
Jockey Equipment 3,297 00 3,297.00
Less Accumulated Depreciation {37,677 81) (35,453 35)
Machinery & Equipment 22,833.90 22,584.96
Total Machinery & Equipment 11,136.19 12,298.50
Total Fixed Assets 11,136 19 12,298 50
| Other Assets
Facility Deposit 600 10,000.00
Tax Benefit Receivable - Kansas 24500 245.00
Utility Deposits 725.00 725.00
Total Other Assets - 970.00 10,970.00
TOTAL ASSETS 23,911.72 71,089.65
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable 846.59 5,131.36
Total Accounts Payable 846 .59 5,131.36
Other Current Liabilities
Estimated deductable due 2,500 00 2,500.00
Gary Worst Children's Fund 1,863.70 000
Horsemen's Bookkeeper
Carryover 000 14,014 56
Horsemen's Bookkeeper - Other 0.00 2,144.27
Total Horseimen's Bookkeeper 0.00 16,158 83
Payroll Liabilities
SULKS - 1.54 7.32
Total Payroll Liabilities 1.54 732
Small Legal Fees 6,147.21 0.00
Total Other Current Liabilities 10,512.45 18,666.15
Total Current Liabilities 11,359 04 23,797 51
Long Term Liabilities
Note Payable-GCFA 25,000.00 25,000.00
Note Payable-KQHRA 25,000.00 25,000.00 :
Total Long Term Liabilities 50,000.00 50,000.00 E.1c(100f 20)
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11:03 AM EUREKA DOWNS

01/67/09 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of November 30, 2008
Nov 30, 08 Nov 30, 07
Total Liabilities 61,359.04 73,797 51
Equity
Retained Earnings (2,707 .86) (7,830.09)
Net Income * (34,739.46) 5,122.23
Total Equity (37.447.32) (2,707.86)
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 23,911.72 71,089.65

E.1.c (11 of 20)
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11:03 AM EUREKA DOWNS

01/07/09 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
December 2007 through November 2008

dccrual Basis

Dec '07 - Nov 08 Dec '06 - Nov 07

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
Admissions .
Admissions Tax (1,192.70) (1,493 43)
General Admission 5,657 97 7,416 59
Turf Room Tables 6,375.60 12,580.00
Total Admissicns 10,840 87 18,503 16
Advertising Income
Condition Book 2,700.00 1,725 00
Pregrams & Stakes Book 2,150.00 3,382.83
Race Sponsor
Blanket Costs {912.31) (687.00)
Race Sponsor - Other 3,700.00 2,191.75
Total Race Sponsor 2,787 69 1,504 75
Advertising Income - Other 0.00 500.00
Total Advertising Income 7,637 68 7,112 58
Entry Fees
Starting Fees 6,760.00 11,380.00
Total Entry Fees 6,760.00 11,380 0C
KRC Reimbursement 155,018 00 258,416 00
Misc Income 2,24078 2,797 31
Mutuels Income
Belmont
Host Fees - Belmont 0Qo (1,241.42)
Beimont - Other 0.60 2,944.57
Total Beimont 000 1,703.15
Churchilt Downs
Host Fees - Churchill 0.00 (2,390 50)
Churchill Powns - Other 0.00 2,142.09
Total Churchiil Downs 0400 (248 41)
Eureka Downs 14,838.06 21,677 .28
Pimlico
Host Fees - Pimlico 0.00 (1,010.39)
Pimlico - Other 0.00 2,196.60
Total Pimlico 0.00 1,186.21
Total Mutuels Income 14,838 06 24,31821
Program Sales
Live Racing 4,838.90 8,003.05
Total Program Sales 4,838 90 8,003.05
Purse Income
Greyhound Simulcast $3% 30,698 .07 52,276 50
Horseman's Purses 60,000.00 179,971.00
Mutuels Income - Horsemen's 9,800.72 18,404 30
Purse Carryover 14,014.56 9,162.76
Total Purse Income 114,603.35 259,814 .56
Rents
Building Rent 3,400.00 3,400 00
Stall Rent 19,832.00 16,277 06
Track Rent 228.00 120.00
Total Rents 23,558.00 19,797.06
Total income 340,335 85 610,141.93
Expense
Advertising
Internet Expense 167 40 12555 E.1l.c (12 of 20)
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11:03 AM

01/07/09
Accrual Basis

Miscellaneous
Newspaper
Promotions
Radio
Trophies

Total Advertising

Ambulance
EMT

Total Ambulance

Bank Service Charges
General Fund
Bank Service Charges - Other

Total Bank Service Charges

Cash Over/Short

Commiissions

Contract Labor
Bookkeeping
Singer

Total Contract Labor

Depreciation Expense
Equipment
Gas, Fuel, Oil
Repairs

Total Equipment

Equipment Rent
Computer Software
Copier Rental
Starting Gate
Tractor & Water Truck

Total Equipment Rent

Horsemans Purse
Horsemen's Purse Shortage T8
Purse C/O to 2008
Horsemans Purse - Other

Total Horsemans Purse

Insurance
Broker Fees & Tax
Director's & Officer's
General Liability
Jockey
Deductible
Jockey - Other

Total Jockey

Property
Work Comp

Total Insurance

Jockey Expenses

Licenses and Permits

Miscellaneous

Payroll Expenses

Gross Wages

Admissions
Announcer
Clerk of Scales
Director of Operations
General Manager
Horsemans Bookkeeper

EUREKA DOWNS

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
December 2007 through November 2008

Dec '07 - Nov 08

Dec '06 - Nov 07

496 57
260.90

0.00
973 00
462.00

2,359 87

1,708.75

1,708 75

5900
0.00

59.00
13684
51875

6,875 00
100.00

6,975 00
2,224 46

1,705 02
5,074.34

6,779.36

750.00
1,303.16
942 .00
0.00

2,995 16

2,500.00
0.00
114,300.00

116,800 00

150.00
2,231.00
13,500.52

0.00
12,568.00
12,566.00

18,645 00
3,891.00

51,173.52

(053)
650.00
0.00

11400
650 00
600 00

3,125 00

12,000.00

5,070.00

50 00
858 44
100 00
824 20
400.00

2,358.19

2,940.00

2,940 00

140 00
15.00

16500
(679.91)
87125

8,125 00
0.00

8,125.00
246122

4,468.58
6,775.65

11,244 23

1,62500

98124
1,950 00
6,000.00

10,556 24

0.00
14,014 56
245,800.00

259,814 56

000
2,231 00
16,966 36

3,456 19
35,032.00
38,488 19

18,548 00
2,5565.00

78,793 55

000
1,400 00
000

481 30
1,130.00
1,255.00
3,300.00

20,000 00
6 27000

E.1l.c (13 of 20)
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11:03 AM EUREKA DOWNS
01/07/09 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
December 2007 through November 2008

Accrual Basis

Maintenance 12,496 63 12,684 84
Mutuel Clerks 1,635.02 5,729.72
Mutuel Manager 1,500.G0 3,250.00
Office Staff 1,300.52 1,148.82
Outrider 1,300.00 2,200 00
Photo Finish 400 .00 550.00
Post Player 000 450 60
Printing 0.00 488.00
Program Sales 000 365 97
Racing Staff 1,589.75 1,554.75
Reservations 24800 1,184.00
Security 7,138.13 12,232 21
Security Manager 750.00 1,390.00
Starter 1,500 00 2,750.00
Starting Gate 0.00 4,203.76
Gross Wages - Other 824,64 12.75
Total Gross Wages 52,241.74 82,631.12
Payroll Expenses - Other 2,625.00 . 0.00
Total Payroll Expenses 54,866 74 82,631 12
Payroll Taxes
FICA 3,428 48 5,116 80
FUTA 402 38 557 03
Medicare 801.84 1,204 47
SUIKS 164.18 522 47
Total Payroll Taxes 4,796 .88 7,400.87
Photo Finish 6,930.00 12,705 Q0
Postage 631 80 688 20
Professional Fees
Accounting 4,350.00 3,675.00
Legal Fees 6,147.21 13,895.66
Total Professional Fees 10,457.21 17,570 .66
Rent 40,000.00 £0,000.00
Repairs
Building Repairs 7,187.93 4,044 46
Landscaping 0.08 73300
Road Repairs 000 223 54
Stall Repairs 52.24 166 01
Track Repairs 1,232.00 39500
Track Resurfacing 21,361.27 2,500.00
Total Repairs 29,833.44 8,062 01
Simulcast
Decoder Fees 0.00 64193
License Fees 0.00 300.00
Total Simulcast 0.00 941.93
Supplies
Jockey Supplies 000 500
Maintenance Supplies 491.86 1,347.02
Office Supplies 591.14 3,143 20
Video 0.00 40.00
Total Supplies 1,083 00 4,535 31
Taxes
Federal Income .00 {2,507 00}
State Income 0.060 15.00
Total Taxes © 000 (2,492 00)
Tote Charges
United Tote 10,350.00 21,795.15
Total Tote Charges 10,350 00 21,795.15 E.1.c (14 of 20) j
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11:03 AM

01/07/09
Accrual Basis

Travel & Ent
Meals
Travel
Tofal Travel & Ent
Utilities
Cable
Electric
Gas
Port-a-Potties
Telephone

Trash
Water

Total Utilities
Weed Control

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense
QOther iIncome

Other Income

Total Other Income
Other Expense

Bad Debts - Horsemen
Gary Worst Memorial
Other Expenses
Seller Over/Shorts

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income

Net Income

EUREKA DOWNS

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
December 2007 through November 2008

Dec '07 - Nov 08

Dec '06 - Nov 07

429 58 560 85
819.59 1,116.96
1,249 17 1,677 81
0.00 9326
8,106.08 8,606 37
899 90 1,242 56
969 94 922 67
2,527.18 3,004 .35
1,959 42 2,224 00
4,918.01 4,440.39
19,380 53 21,434 10
195.00 148.00
372,070.94 605,137.49
(31.735.29) 5,004 44
0.00 200.00
000 200 00
63475 0.00
1,863.70 0.00
000 0.00
505.72 82.21
3,004.17 82.21
(3,004.17) 117.79
(34,739.46) 5122.23

E.1.c (15 of 20)
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11:32 AM ' KQHRA CONCESSIONS INC.

4110109 Balance Sheet:Prev-Year Comparison
: ot A OF November 30,2008

Accruai Basis

.. Nov 30, 08 - Mov 20,07
ASSETS CltgEr h ta R
Current Assets
CheckifigiSavings . o
Checkmg Em prtse Bank i 10,228.30 8,455.34
1022630 8,459 34
Accounts’ Recewable ) i . :
Misc. Income 802.50 763.30 =
Total Accounts Receivable 802.50 783.30 i
B3
Total Accounts Receivable 802.50 763 30 |
Other Current Assets £
Inventory 2
Liquor 0.00 1,423.44 g
Total Inventory 0.00 1,423.44 ;
Total Other Current Assets 0.00 1,423.44 .
Total Current Assets 11,030 80 10,648.08 ‘§
Fixed Assets *’:
Equipment 2]
Accumulated Depreclat[on -3,690 01 -3,448.38 B
Equipment - Other 4,314.13 4,314.13 Egg
Total Equipment 624.12 865.75 Eg
Totat Fixed Assets 624.12 865.75 §
TOTAL ASSETS 11,654.92 11,511.83 ?
_ LIABILITIES & EQUITY. E@
Liabilities £
Current Liabilities 5
Accounts Payable .
Accounts-Payable 0.00 517.68
Total Accounts Payable 0.00 517.68
Other Current Liabilities o ;
Income Taxes Payabie 86 00 85.00 L
Sales Tax Payable 273 £.00
Total Other Current Liabilities 88.73 86.00
Total Current Liabilities 88.73 603.68
Total Liabifities 8873 503 68
Equity
Acided Capital-KQHRA 1,000.00 1,000.00
Dividends -10,060.00 -10,000.C0
Retained Earnings 19,908.15 18,580 .17
Net Income 658.04 1,327.88
Total Equity 11,566.19 10,008.15
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 11,654.92 11,541.83
E.1.c (16 of 20)
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KQHRA CONCESSIONS INC.

Profit & Loss Prev Year

Comparison

December 2007 through November 2008

Dec '07 - Nov 08

Ordinary Income/Expense

Dec 06 - Nov 07

" Incoms
~ Miscellaneous income 1,397.25 535 00
Rent Income 1,200.00 350 00
Saies
Cash Over/Short 0.01 050
Coin Machines 43405 331.15
Food 0G0 . 15,355.88
Liquor 34084 __ 19.807.08
Total Sales 77470 35,294.60
Total Income 3,371 985 35,179 60
Cost of Goods Sold
Beer 000 517382
Food 7.32 7,83323
Liguor 1,173.44 247965
Pre-Mix Soft Drinks 486,25 4,216.25
Totat COGS 1,667.01 19,703.05
Gross Profit 1,704.94 16,476 55
Expense
Annual Repott Fees 5500 55.00
Concession Commission 0.00 882.36
Depreciation Expense 241863 30835
Dues and Subscriptions 0.00 3500
Equipment Rental 100.00 700.00
insurance
Bond 100.00 100.00
Total insurance 100 00 100.00
Licenses and Permits 40 00 1,400 00
Payroil Expenses
Gross Wages 0.00 3,700.86
Manager Salary 0.00 744 89
Sports Bar _ 0.00 3,480.25
Total Payroll Expenses 000 7,926 00
Payroll Taxes _
FICA 000 491 .42
FUTA ©.00 8342
Medicare 0.00 114.85
SUIKS 0.00 30&2_
Total Payroll Taxes 0.00 70071
Professionat Fees
Accounting 500.00 N 450.00
Total Professional Fees 500 00 450.00
Repairs
Equipment Repairs 0.00 898.15
Total Repairs 000 - 89815
Supplies
Concessions 0.00 296 .00
Sports Bar 40.27 0.00
Total Supplies 10.27 295 .00
Taxes
Federal 0.00 ﬂ
Total Taxes 0.00 4,397.00
Total Expense 1,046.20 15,148.57_

E.l
S




CONCESSIONS INC.
rev Year Comparison
i} :_ﬁhtbugh November 2008

Dec '067 - Nov 08 Dec "06 - Nov 07
Net Ordinary fh 658.04 1,327.98
Net fncome 656.04 1,327.98
3
R
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Revenue

Admissions
Advertising
Rentai Income - KQHRA Office
Entry Fees
Purse carryover
WGP - simulcast revenue
KRGC grant - purse share
KRGC grant - operations share
Miscellaneous income
Mutuels Income

- Horseman's share

- Track share
Program income
Stall rent
Track rent

Total Revenue

Expenses

Advertising & Promo
Ambulance

Bank service charges

Cash over/short

Program Commissions
Bookkeeping

Contributions

Depreciation expense

Dues & Subscriptions
Equipment fuel

Equipment repairs
Equipment rental
Horsemen’s purse
Horsemen's purse caryover
Insurance '
Lease expense - racefrack facility
Licenses & permits
Miscellaneous

Payroll

Payroll & other taxes

Photo finish

Postage & delivery

Printing - cond book, stakes & programs
Professional fees

Repairs

Simulcast fees

Supplies

Tote charges

Travel & entertainment
Utilities

Video service

Totial expenses

Net Income

Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission
Eureka Downs 2008 Expense Analysis

Expenses Other Total Non
Allowable Pari-mutuel Pari-Mutuel Pari-Mutuel
Under Grant Related Activity Related Activity Related Activity Total

3 10,841 3 10,841 $ 10,841

7,638 7 638 7,638

- 3,400 3,400

6,760 8760 6,760

14,015 14 015 14,015

30,698 30 698 30,698

60 000 60 000 60,000
155018 155018 . 155,018
- 2,240 2,240

8,891 983 9,891

14,838 14 838 14,838

4,835 4 839 4 839

- 19,932 19 932

- 228 226

215,018 99,520 314 538 25,798 340,336
- 2,360 2 360 2 360
1709 1709 1,708
59 59 59

520 520 520

519 519 519

5156 100 5 256 1,719 6 975
1668 1 668 558 2224

320 320 1,385 1705
3,755 3,755 1,319 5074
2,652 2,652 343 2 995
60,000 56 800 116,800 116.800
44,521 44 521 6,653 51174
30,600 30,000 10,000 40 000
650 650 850

- 2,693 2693

50,115 50,115 4,752 54 867
4,382 4,382 415 4797
6,930 6,930 6 930
461 461 170 631
675 3675 4,350 6,147 10,487
29,028 29,028 805 29 833
478 478 605 1083
10,350 10,350 10 350
754 754 495 1249
13,118 13,118 6,263 19 381
264,404 66,351 330,755 44,320 375,075
$ (49,386) 3 33,168 $ (16,217) $ {18,522) 5 (34,739)

E.1.c (19 of 20)
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Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission
Eureka Downs 2008 KRGC Expenses

KRGC Expenditures
Salaries & wages
Communication
Travel & subsistence
Lab fees
Professional and scientific supplies
Office supplies
Cther supplies
Total KRGC Expenditures

50,610
347
15,322
6,430
155

72,864

E.1.c (20 of 20)
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Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM

DATE OF MEETING: March 13, 2009
AGENDA ITEM: Apportionment of horse purse money

PRESENTER: Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security
Patrick Martin, Assistant Attorney General

ISSUE SUMMARY: The cessation of parimutuel racing at The Woodlands in August
2008, prior to the regularly scheduled live horse meet, created a situation where funds totaling
$1,179,835 that had accumulated in accordance with statue and contract could not be disbursed
as live horse purses as would normally have happened.

The total horse purse funds were generated as follows:
a) $906,672 from horse simulcast at the Woodlands
b) $69,768 from horse simulcast at Wichita Greyhound Park in 2007

C) $158,926 carryover from the 2007 Woodlands horse meet. Of that
amount,

i. $147,800.82 came from horse simulcast, and
ii. $11,124.79 from live horse racing.

d) $44,469 from the split of the profit from the 2007 Woodlands
outbound horse simulcast signal.

If not disbursed, those funds are subject to being swept by the legislature. Two
provisions of the parimutuel racing act direct the Commission on disbursing those funds.

Funds generated from simulcasting

The Commission’s role in disbursing the horse purse funds generated from horse
simulcast ($1,124,241) and itemized in (a), (b) and (c)(i) above is governed by K.S.A 74-
8836(g)(4), which states,

... That portion of simulcast purse money determined to be used for
horse purses shall be apportioned by the commission to the various
horse race meetings held in any calendar year based upon the
number of live horse race dates comprising such horse race
meetings in the preceding calendar year.

The horse race meetings in the preceding calendar year, 2008, comprised of 6 race days
at Eureka Downs and 6 race days at Anthony Downs. In 2009, only two race meetings — Eureka
Downs and Anthony -- are being proposed. Therefore, under the parimutuel racing act, the
simulcasting funds “shall” be apportioned 50% to Eureka Downs and 50% to Anthony Downs.

E.2a(lof 2)



Non-simulcasting funds

The horse purse funds generated from live horse racing ($11,124.79) and itemized in
(c)(ii) above fall within K.S.A. 74-8820(a), which states that “An organization licensee shall be
required to pay a minimum purse... The commission shall approve the amount of minimum purse
which may be paid in stakes races during each race meeting...”

The horse purse funds generated from the split of the outbound horse simulcast ($44,469)
and itemized in (d) above are governed by a contract between Kansas Racing, LLC and the
Woodlands Recognized Horse Owners Group which states, “All revenues, after expenses (as
approved by the KRGC) are met, earned from the export of The Woodlands signal, shall be split
on a 50% - 50% basis with the breed group from which the revenue is derived.”

COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED: Commission review, discussion and
apportionment of horse purse money.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends the horse purse money from horse
simulcast ($1,124,241.79) be apportioned 50% to Eureka Downs and 50% to Anthony Downs for
their 2009 race meets. Staff recommends that TRAK East be notified of the live horse purse
funds ($11,124.79) that is available for their distribution as horse purses. Staff recommends that
The Woodlands Recognized Horse Owners Group be notified of the split of the outbound horse
simulcast purse money ($44,469) that is available for their distribution as horse purses.

E.2a(20f 2)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM

DATE OF MEETING: March 13, 2009
AGENDA ITEM: Application for Eureka Downs 2009 Fair race meet

PRESENTER: Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security
KQHRA/GCFA Representative

ISSUE SUMMARY': The Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association and Greenwood County
Fair Association have submitted a joint application for a organizational license to conduct ten
days of live horse racing in Eureka, KS in 2009 on the following dates: May 25, 30, June 6, 13,
14, 20, 21, 27, 28 and July 5.

COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED: Commission review, discussion and
direction of staff to draft an organizational license order for the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing
Association/Greenwood County Fair Association d/b/a Eureka Downs’ 2009 horse meet for
Commission review and final action at the next Commission meeting.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff has reviewed the application and concluded that the
application is materially compliant with K.S.A 74-8813, K.S.A. 74-8814 and article 17 of the
KRGC rules and regulations. Staff recommends that the noncompliant issues be reconciled with
the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association and Greenwood County Fair Association and
outlined in the organizational license order.

E.3a



Kansas Racing Commission

STATE OF KANSAS )
) 8s:
County of Sedgwick )
AFFIDAVIT AND WAIVER
BY

COUNTY FAIR ASSOCIATION OR HORSEMEN’S
NON PROFIT ORGANIZATION APPLICATION

Fred Puthoff duly sworn, states,

1. Applicant, Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association seeks the granting of a privilege
from the State of Kansas and acknowledges the burden of proving this applicant’s
qualifications rests at all times with the applicant.

1. Applicant has filed herewith its completed application for an organization license, consisting
of responses to the application and attachments thereto.

1. Applicant acknowledges any license which may be granted to this applicant is predicated
upon the information contained in this verified application. For any material false or
misleading statement or answer in an application, the application may be rejected, or ifa
license has already been granted the licensee may be fined or such license may be suspended
or revoked or any combination thereof.

1. Applicant verifies that no director, officer, employee or agent of the applicant has been
convicted of any of the following in any court of any state or of the United States or has been
adjudicated in the last five years in any court of committing as a juvenile an act which, if
committed by an adult, would constitute any on of the following: (a) fixing of horse or
greyhound races; (b) illegal gambling activity; (c) illegal sale or possession of any controlled
substance; (d) operation of any illegal business; (¢) repeated acts of violence: or (f) any
felony.

i. Applicant verifies that no director or officer of the applicant is addicted to and a user of
alcohol or a controlled substance.

E.3.b (1 of 29)



1. The undersigned, as the agent of applicant, directors, shareholders, and operating personnel,
accepts any risk of adverse public notice, embarrassment, criticism, or other circumstance,
including financial loss, which may result from action with respect to this application and
expressly waives any claim which hay otherwise be brought against the Kansas Racing
Commission, its members and staff and the State of Kansas on behalf of the applicant, its
officers, directors, shareholders, and operating personnel from action by the Kansas Racing
Commission with respect to this application and expressly waives any claim for damages as &
result.

1. Applicant has read the attached application consisting of 25 pages and attachments _A-1
through A — 15 thereto and knows the contents thereof: that the same is true as to his’her own

LY

knowledge, information and belief, and as to those matters he/she believes them to be true.

Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association

Applicant 7/
Q/uzélu el B
~

Name of Authorized Officer

Treasurer

—rO
Subscribed and sworn before me this 5 day of mmr V\ , 20 Oq .

MU \ ‘
SYLVIA V. ARMISTROIG WS \} N QA
NOTARY PUBLIG ; -
STATE OF KANSAS) | | Notary P‘@xc
My Appt. ExD.

£
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Kansas Racing Commission

STATE OF KANSAS )
ss:

S S

County of Gregnwood

AFFIDAVIT AND WAIVER
BY
COUNTY FAIR ASSOCIATION OR HORSEMEN’S
NON PROFIT ORGANIZATION APPLICATION

Hurley Breech duly sworn, states,

1. Applicant, Greenwood County Fair Association, Inc. seeks the granting of a privilege from
the State of Kansas and acknowledges the burden of proving this applicant’s qualifications rests
at all times with the applicant.

1. Applicant has filed herewith its completed application for an organization license, consisting
of responses to the application and attachments thereto.

1. Applicant acknowledges any license which may be granted to this applicant is predicated
upon the information contained in this verified application. For any material false or mislcading
statement or answer in an application, the application may be rejected, or if a license has already
been granted the licensee may be fined or such license may be suspended or revoked or any
combination thereof.

1. Applicant verifies that no director, officer, employee or agent of the applicant has been
convicted of any of the following in any court of any state or of the United States or has been
adjudicated in the last five years in any court of committing as a juvenile an act which, if
committed by an adult, would constitute any on of the following: (a) fixing of horse or
greyhound races; (b) illegal gambling activity; (c) illegal sale or possession of any controlled
substance; (d) operation of any illegal business; (¢) repeated acts of violence: or (£) any felony.

1. Applicant verifies that no director or officer of the applicant is addicted to and a user of
alcohol or a controlled substance.
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1. The undersigned, as the agent of applicant, directors, shareholders, and operating personnel,
accepts anty risk of adverse public notice, embarrassment, criticism, or other circumstance,
including financial loss, which may result from action with respect to this application and
expressly waives any claim which hay otherwise be brought against the Kansas Racing
Commission, its members and staff and the State of Kansas on behalf of the applicant, its
officers, directors, shareholders, and operating personnel from action by the Kansas Racing
Commission with respect to this application and expressly waives any claim for damages as a
result.

1. Applicant has read the attached application consisting of _%i pages and aftachments A-1
throngh A — 15 thereto and knows the contents thereof: that the same is true as to his/her own
knowledge, information and belief, and as to those matters he/she believes them to be true.

Greenwood County Fair Association, Inc.

Applicant

N bo, T3n ool

/
Name of Authorized Officer

Vice President
Title

Subscribed and sworn before me this éﬂ day of WW oy 200? .

Vusnismendin

Notarf; Bublic 7

Notary Public - Siate of Kansas

[ VIRGINIA FESSEN{BEN]
My Appl. Expires /{~ 7 - R0l
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I. ORGANIZATION INFORMATION
COUNTY FAIR ASSOCIATION OR HORSEMEN’S
NONPROFIT APPLICATION

Each county fair association or horsemen’s nonprofit organization application shall
provide the following information:

a.

PRIMARY APPLICANT

Kansas Quarter Horse Racihg Association ~ d/b/a Eureka Downs

full name of applicant

225 N. Market, Suite 355

business address

Wichita Kansas

city state

1962

67202 (316) 262-5056
zip telephone

year of organization

CO-APPLICANT

Greenwood County Fair Association

full name of applicant

P.O. Box 590

business address

Eureka Kansas

city state

1954

67045 (620) 583-5721
Zip telephone

year of organization_

This application shall contain a certified copy of the applicant’s current articles of
incorporation, bylaws, rules and regulations or any other agreements or
documents that create or govern the applicant’s organization. This certified copy
shall be included in the attachments to this application. Also, any amendments to
the documents shall be filed immediately with the commission, so that, at all
times, a current copy of the applicants organization documents will be recorded in

the commission office.

Copies of applicant’s current articles of incorporation and bylaws are

included herein. See attachment A-1.
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c. The applicant shall provide a statement of good standing from the Secretary of
State. This statement shall be included in the attachments to this application.

Enclosed please find a statement of good standing from the office of
the Secretary of State. See Attachment A-2

d. This application shall include the full names, including any aliases or previous
name, dates of birth and addresses of the applicant’s officers. As to each officer,
the applicant shall disclose the nature and extent of any voting interest in the
applicant. The applicant also shall disclose the full names, including any aliases
or previous name, dates of birth and addresses of any shareholder or member with
an interest on three percent or more in the applicant. As to each member or
shareholder, the applicant shall disclose the nature and extent of voting interest in
the applicant.

See attachment A-3 for a current listing of the board of directors and
officers of the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association and the
Greenwood County Fair Association. Each director of the Kansas
Quarter Horse Racing Association and the Greenwood County Fair
Association is permitted one vote. The Kansas Quarter Horse Racing
Association is not a stock company and thus has no stockholders. A
current listing of the stockholders of the Greenwood County Fair
Association in reference at Attachment A-3

The management of Eureka Downs will be performed by the following
committee of five (5) individuals (Résumé’s included in Attachment

A-3).

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ . Art Teichgraber, Director of the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing
Association, Committee Chairman — Eureka Downs Management
Committee, 700 N. Main, Eureka, KS 67045 zero shares of stock,

committee member is permitted vote (20% voting interest);

Fred U. Puthoff, Certified Public Accountant, Treasurer and lst Vice
President of the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association,
Committee member — Eureka Downs Management Committee, 3650
South 119" Street West, Wichita, Kansas, 67215, zero shares of stock,
committee member is permitted one vote (20% voting interest);

Albert Hogoboom, Director and active Past President of the Kansas
Quarter Horse Racing Association, Committee member — Eureka
Downs Management Committee, 767 Oil Hill Road, El Dorado,
Kansas 67042 zero (0) shares of stock, committee member is
permitted one vote (20% voting interest);
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Hurley Breech, Vice President of the Greenwood County Fair
Association, committee member — Eureka Downs Management
Committee, 1153 140th Street, Eureka, KS 67045, zero shares of
stock, committee member is permitted one vote (20% voting
interest);

Paul Hendrickson, Director and President of the Greenwood County
Fair Association, Committee member — Eureka Downs Management
Committee, 300 East Third Street, Eureka, Kansas, 67045, committee
member is permitted one vote (20% voting interest);

Was applicant organized within the past five years? __No

yes/no
If yes state:
1. the names of the organization’s organizers or promoters;
N/A
2. the nature and amount of anything of value received or to be received by

each organizer or promoter directly or indirectly from the applicant; and
N/A

3. the nature and amount of any assets, services, or other consideration
received or to be received by the applicant from the organizers or
promoters.

N/A

State whether the applicant is directly or indirectly controlled to any extent or in
any manner by another individual or entity. If so, the applicant shall disclose the
identity of the controlling entity and a description of the nature and extent of
control.

The applicant is not directly or indirectly controlled to any extent on
in any manner by another individual or entity.

Provide one copy of each contract and agreement that the applicant has executed
or proposes to execute and any modification or proposed modification of each
contract or agreement. 1f the contract or agreement is an oral one, a writien
statement explaining the substance of the oral agreement shall be included. These
copies shall be included in the attachments to this application.
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The applicant herewith encloses a copy of the lease agreement with
the co-applicant Greenwood County Fair Association, See Attachment
A-4.

The management committee is currently in negotiations with Am
Tote to provide their services through the year 2009.

The management committee is currently in negotiations with True
Center Gate Company to provide their services through 2009.

See Attachment A-4 for a copy of the Co-organization license
agreement between the Kansas Quarter Horse racing Association and
the Greenwood County Fair Association.

See Attachment A-4 for a copy of the concessionaire’s agreement
between the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association and the
concessionaire, KQHRA Concessions, Inc.

See Attachment A-4 for a copy of the stall lease agreement between the
Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association and the lessee.

State whether the applicant, or any director, officer policy-making manager,
principal shareholder or principal member owns or has owned any interest in any
racing-association or gambling-associated firm, partnership, association or
corporation licensed by a governmental authority. If so, a description of the
circumstances surrounding the interest or participation shall be provided,
including the identity of the license or permit holder, the nature of the license or
permit, the identity of the issuing authority and the dates of the issuance and any
terrnination of the license or permit.

To the best of this applicant’s knowledge, neither the applicant, nor
any committee-member, policy-making manager, principal
shareholder or principal member owns or has owned any interestin
any racing-associated or gambling-associated firm, partnership,
association or corporation licensed by a governmental authority.

Is there any pending legal proceeding to which the applicant or any subsidiary or
related organization is a party NO
yes/no

If yes, briefly describe the matter. Also, list the name of the court or agency in
which it is pending, the date instituted and the principal parties involved. This
information shall be included in the attachments to this application. The
applicant shall briefly describe any pending legal proceeding involving the
property of the applicant, any subsidiary or related organization. The name of
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the court or agency in which the maiter is pending, the date instituted and the
principal parties involved shall be included in the attachments.

N7 A

State whether the applicant, any officer, any director, any principal shareholder
or any principal member has complied with and is in compliance with K.5.A.
1991 Supp. 74-8810.

The applicant and its officers and directors have complied with and
are in compliance with K.S.A 74-8810. The applicant has no principal
shareholders or members.

Any entity or individual identified for investigation in commission regulations or
found to be material to the racing program shall submit to a background
investigation conducted by the director of security, director of the Kansas Bureau
of Investigation or other person designated by the commission. Each individual
or entity so identified shall execute and verify a personal background disclosure
form provided by the commission. Those individuals who are required to execute
and verify personal background forms include the president, vice-president,
security and treasurer of a county fair association and each officer and each
director of a horsemen’s non profit organization. The forms shall be assembled
and filed as outlined in the instruction for applications.

II. SITE AND PHYSICAL PLANT

Each application for a county fair association or horsemen’s nonprofit organization
license in which the applicant proposes to own or to construct a racetrack facility shall
provide the following information:

a.

Identify the county and municipality where the racetrack or proposed racetrack is
or will be located.
Greenwood - County Eureka - Municipality
Will the applicant’s facility be designed to conduct:
1. horse racing Yes

2. greyhound racing

3. both horse and greyhound racing
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If horse racing is to be conducted, state the breed of the horse(s) to be raced.

Thoroughbred, Quarter Horse, Appaloosa, Paint, Arabian, and
Mules.

Attach to the application a site map that reflects existing and proposed highways
and streets adjacent to the racetrack facility.

See Attachment A-D,

Describe the grandstand, including the indoor and outdoor seating capacities, the
location of food, drink, and other concessions, the number and location of
restrooms and the number and location of drinking fountains.

See Attachment A-6.

State the racetrack dimensions by circumference, width, banking, location of
starting gates or boxes, length of stretch and type of surface, as well as a
description of equipment that will be used to maintain the track surface. If the
applicant proposes more than one racetrack, the applicant shall provide the
details for each.

See Attachment A-6.

For horse racetracks, describe the facilities to accommodate greyhounds, including
the location, number, method of construction, and size of crates, as well as the
location, size and number of turnout pens.

No facilities are presently available to accommodate greyhounds.
Describe the testing facilities.

See Attachment A-7

For horse racetracks, describe the jockey’s or driver’s quarters, including the
changing areas and a list of any equipment to be located in the quarters.

See Attachment A-6. The jockey quarters are located adjacent to the
saddling paddock. Equipment located in the jockey quarters is listed
as part of the overall equipment located at the Eureka Downs facility
and is referred herein as Attachment A-8.

If wagering is to be conducted, describe the totalisator system, including the

approximate location of better’s windows, the money room, totalisator equipment,
and, if known, the identity of the totalisator provider.
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As indicated in Section I, paragraph g, this applicant is currently in
negotiations with Am Tote for furnishing the tote services. Betting
windows are located in the upper clubhouse area as well as in the
inside and outside of the lower main level. The money room is
located on the main level at the northwest end of the grandstand.

Describe the parking, including the road surface on the parking areas, the distance
between parking and the grandstand, the access to the parking from surrounding
streets and highways and the number of public and other parking spaces available.

The gravel based parking lot is located immediately to the west of the
grandstand and is accessible for handicapped parking. The lotis
accessible from Jefferson Street and will accommodate at least 1,600
vehicles. See Attachment A-6

Describe any improvements and equipment to be used for security, fire, and safety
purposes, including the identity of the provider of the equipment, if known.

Applicant intends to contract with Mark Kenneson for the applicant’s
director of security. Applicant will be working with the local Sheriff’s
deputies to provide security for the racetrack. In the event of fire,
The Eureka Fire Department is located approximately ten (10) blocks
from the racing facility. The Greenwood County Emergency Medical
Service is located within ten (10) blocks of the racing facility. This
applicant will contract with the Greenwood County Emergency
Medical Service to provide one (1) ambulance, along with two (2)
EMT’s during the races. Additional assistance, if necessary, may be
obtained from the Greenwood County Hospital located within the city
limits. (See VII Requested exemptions - Item (n})

Describe the starting, timing, video replay and photo finish equipment, including
the provider of the equipment, if known.

As indicated in Section I, paragraph g, the applicant is currently in
negotiations with True Center Gate Company for 2009 for the starting
gates, and will contract services for a starter, The applicant has
contracted with Gene Wilson & Associates to provide the timing and
photo finish equipment and personnel. Services for the video replay
equipment will be provided at time of contract.

Describe the work areas to be used by the commission, its employees and agents.
The steward’s tower has been utilized in the past by the commission
and will once again be available. The commission satellite office is

located at the west end of the office building is available as has been
in prior years.
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1. FINANCES

Each application for a county fair association or horsemen’s nonprofit organization
licenses shall provide the following information:

a.

If the applicant is a county fair association, attach to this application copies of the
past five annual reports of the county fair association files with the state board of
agriculture pursuant to K.S.A. 2-128.

The co-applicant, Greenwood County Fair Association is organized
and is governed as a county fair association. Since the state board of
agriculture is no longer in existence, these annual reports are no
longer required and thus this section is not applicable. Additionally,
this report is not applicable for the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing
Association since they have never been considered a county fair
association.

Attach to this application a financial statement that reflects the applicant’s current
assets, including investments, loans, and advances receivable, and fixed assets and
current liabilities, including loans and advance payable, long-term debt and

equity.

See Attachment A-9

State financial projections for each or the first and next three racing years, with
separate schedule based upon the number of racing days and types of pari-mutuel
wagers the applicant requires to break even and the optimum number of racing
days and types of wagers applicant requests for each year.

Applicant requests seven (10) dates for 2009 as follows; May 23, 30,
June 6, 13, 14, 20,21 27,28 and July 4*. The types of pari-mutuel
wagers being requested are stated in attachment A-10. See
accountants report for financial projections in Attachment A-11.
Applicant requests an exception for providing projections beyond the
immediate year based upon the probability that the organization will
not submit an application for a grant unless additional sources of
revenue or reduction of fixed costs are attained or additional grant
monies are made available.

State the following assurnptions:

1. average daily attendance;
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2. average daily per capita handle and average wager

3. retainage;

4. admissions to the racetrack, including paid and free admissions;
5. parking volume, fees and other revenues;

6. concessions and program sales;

7. purses;

3. pari-mutuel expense

9. breed funds;

10.  payroll including reimbursement to the commission as authorized by the
act;
11.  operating supplies and services;

12. utilities;

13.  repairs and maintenance;
14, insurance

15.  membership expense;

16.  security expense;

17.  legal and audit expense;

18. debt service; and
19.  reimbursement from county fair horse racing benefit fund.

See summary of significant projection assumptions and accounting
policies in accountant’s projected financial statements in Attachment

A“'l I .
State the following projected profit and loss elements:
1. total revenue, including projected revenues from retainage and breakage,

admissions, parking, concessions, program operations, and the county fair
horse racing benefit fund,

10
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See accountants projected financial statements in Attachment

A-11.
2. Total operating expenses, including projected anticipated expenses for the
following:
Al purses, including those from county fair horse racing benefit fund;
B. pari-mutuel;
C. state and local taxes;
D. breed funds;
E. cost of concession goods and programs;

F. advertising and promotion;

G. payroll;

H. operating supplies and service;
L maintenance and repairs

J- security
K. legal and audit; and
L. background investigations.

See accountants projected financial statements in Attachment A-11.

3. Nonoperating expenses, including anticipated expenses for debt service,
facility depreciation and identification of the method used, and equipment
depreciation and identification of the method used.

See accountants projected financial statements in Attachment A-11

State the projected cash flow, including an assessment of:

1. income, including equity contributions, debt contributions, interest
income, operating revenue, and revenues from the county fair horse racing
benefit fund; and

2. disbursements, including land, improvements, equipment, debt service,
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operating expense and organizational expense.
See accountants projected financial statements in Attachment A-11.
g. Attach to this application copies of the projected balance sheets as of the end of
any development period and the first and the next three racing years setting forth
current, fixed and other noncurrent assets, current and long-term kabilities, and

capital accounts.

See accountants projected financial statements in Attachment A-11.

IV. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIONS

Each Application for a county fair association or horsemen’s non profit organization
license in which the applicant proposes to own or to construct a racetrack facility shall
provide the following information.

a. Is the applicant required to secure any governmental approval for the ownership,
operation, or development of the racetrack facility.  yes no X

If yes, provide:

L. a description of the approval, the unit of government involved, the date of
the approval and documentation of it;

N/A

2. a statement whether public hearings were held. If they were, the applicant
shall disclose when and where the hearings were conducted. If they were
not held, the applicant shall disclose why they were not held; and

N/A

3. a statement whether the unit of government involved attached any
conditions to the approval, if so, the applicant shall disclose the
conditions, including documentation, and

N/A

4. a statement whether any required governmental approvals remain to be
obtained, as well as a description of the approval, the unit of government
involved, the status of the approval, the likelihood of the approval and the
expected date of the approval;
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N/A

State whether the racetrack facility complies with all statutes, charter provisions,
ordinances and regulations pertaining to the ownership, operation and
development of a racetrack facility. 1f not in compliance, the applicant shall state
the reasons why it is not.

The racetrack facility complies with all the statutes, charter
provisions, ordinances and regulations pertaining to the ewnership

and development of a racetrack facility.

Has a majority of qualified electors in the country named above approved either:

1. X The constitutional amendment permitting the conduct of
yes no horse and greyhound races and pari-mutuel wagering; or
2. a proposition permitting horse or greyhound wagering

within the county boundaries.

V. DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

Each application for a county fair association or horsemen’s nonprofit organization
license in which the applicant proposes to construct a racetrack facility or to improve an
existing racetrack facility shall contain the following information:

a.

State the total costs of the construction of the facility, distinguishing between fixed
costs and projections.

Replacement of a barn destroyed in 2001 by high winds was
completed in 2002. The cost to replace the barn in excess of insurance
proceeds received was $15,621. The barn is now fully functional. The
facility sustained a large fire in February of 2006 which resulted in the
complete loss of the largest barn on the facility. The organization has
completed the construction of a new barn on the facility to replace the
barn which was lost in the fire and which is now fully fanctional. The
cost of replacement of this barn was approximately $100,000.

Individually identify the following costs, distinguishing between fixed costs and
projections:

1. facility design; Replacement of a barn destroyed in 2001 by high
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winds was completed in 2002, The barn is a free standing, clear span
metal building, 74' x 98', with 28 portable stalls. The cost to replace
the barn in excess of insurance proceeds received was $15,621. The
barn is now fully functional. The barn which was destroyed in 2006
was built in 1989, The barn was a free standing barn which measured
approximately 65° x 320°, with 100 Stalls. The organization has
completed the construction of a new barn on the facility to replace the
barn which was lost in the fire and which is now fully functional. This
new barn is measures 74° x 98°, with 26 stalls and 2 storage areas.The
cost of replacement of this barn was approximatley $100,000.

2. land acquisition; None

3. site preparation; None to date. The track was completely
resurfaced in 2008.

4, improvements and equipment, individually identifying the costs of the
items listed in subparagraphs () through (n) of K.A.R. 112-17-3 and other
categories of improvements and equipment;

Projected costs for the facility improvements and equipment: General
repairs and maintenance to the facilities will be performed on an “as
needed” basis. As previously stated, The organization has received
insurance proceeds and is currently obtaining bids for the
replacement of this barn as soon as possible.

5. Interim ﬁriancing;

Applicant intends to incur interim financing for operating expenses
prior to start up. Applicant intends to enter in to a line of credit
agreement with its bank in the amount of $115,000 to fund
pre-opening expenses and start up costs. No equipment additions are
anticipated in 2009. In the event that applicant has a loss for 2009,
applicant intends to obtain short term loans or capital contributions
from Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association and Greenwood
County Fair Association to fund said loss.

6. permanent financing; and

See (5) above

7. organization, administrative, accounting and legal services.
Applicant will be relying on the five (3) member management

committee referred to in I(d) to organize and administrate the various
operations of the racetrack. Accounting services will be provided by
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Puthoff & Farmer, CPA's, PA. Legal services will be contracted on as
“as needed” basis. Additionally, applicant intends to consult
regularly to seek the guidance and counsel of the Kansas Racing
Commission as may be required. Applicant is seeking an operating
assistance grant of $565,000 for 2009 from the county fair horse
racing benefit fund.

Document fixed costs.

All costs are projected with the exception of the payment by Eureka
Downs — Division of the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association to
the Greenwood County Fair Association for the lease of the facility.
Due to the financial constraints of the organization, the Greenwood
County Fair has made a one time special consideration to reduce the
annual lease payment to $38,800. This lease is based upon $30,000 for
the period beginning 60 days prior to the start of the race meet and
ending 30 days after the close of the race meet, and $8,800 for the
“non race meet” The lease will be renewable annually subject to
certain rights and restrictions of both parties to the lease.

State the schedule for construction of the facility including estimated completion
date.
N/A

Attach schematic drawings to this application.
N/A

Attach to this application copies of any contracts with and performance bonds
from the:

architect or other design professional;
project engineer;

construction engineer

contractor and subcontractor; and
equipment procurement personnel.

A

There are no contracts or bonds at this time,

State whether the site is owned or leased. If so, the applicant shall attach to this
application the documentation for the acquisition. If not, the applicant shall state
what actions it must take to secure the use if this site;

The site is owned by the Greenwood County Fair Association subject
to the court approval mentioned in section I (i), The Kansas Quarter
Horse Racing Association d/b/a Eureka Downs intends to lease these
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grounds from the Greenwood County Fair Association pursuant to the
lease agreement discussed in section I(g) and in the above V(c).

Describe the equity and debt sources of the financing, including;

1. with respect to each source of equity contribution, and identification of the
source, amount, form, method of payment, nature and amount of present
commitment, documentation and actions which the applicant will take to
obtain more certain commitments and commitments for additional
amounts; and

2, with respect to each source of debt contribution, and identification of the
source, amount, form, method of payment, nature and amount of present
commitment, documentation and actions which the applicant will take to
obtain more certain commitments and commitments for additional
amounts.

It is anticipated that the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association
will advance sufficient equity to allow the applicant to cover certain
start up costs by entering into a line of credit agreement in the
amount of $115,000 with their bank. These amounts will be repaid
from cash flow from operations. If necessary, additional capital
contributions from Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association and
Greenwood County Fair Association will be requested and will only be
repaid from the operations, when and if profitable. Applicant is
seeking an operating assistance grant of $565,000 from the county fair
horse racing benefit fund.

Identify and describe the sources of additional funds, if needed, due to cost
overruns, non receipt of expected equity or debt funds, failure to achieve
projected revenues or any other cause.

As of the end of the most recent fiscal year ended November 30, 2008
the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association had a positive net
worth slightly in excess of $22,000. In the event of certain costs
overruns, failure to secure debt financing or if certain revenues are
not achieved, this net worth would be used to cover such items. In
addition, applicant intends to obtain an operating loan to accomodate
cash flow needs.
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VI. MANAGEMENT

Each application for a county fair association or horsemen’s nonprofit organization
license shall provide the following information

a. State the applicant’s management plan, including a budget and the identification
of each management position function, job description and qualification. The

applicant shall attach to this application a copy of an organization chart that
depicts the chain of command for each management position.

Applicant’s volunteer directors, under the general direction of its
management committee president, supervise all operating functions
of the race meet. Applicant will continue the same general
management structure for its 2009 pari-mutuel race meet under the
overall supervision of commission personnel. Applicant will contract
the services of Rita Osborn (General Manager), Rita Osborn (Racing
Secretary), Alton Hoover (Director of Operations), Tim Mitchell
(Starter), Kay Rice (Clerk of Scales), Tara Osborn (Phote Finish
Operator), Tara Osborn (Bookkeeper), Angie Lowe (Mutuel Manager)
& Mark Kenneson, (Director of Security).

Also see attachment A-12,

b. Identify management personnel or volunteers and, to the extent known, state for
each:
1. a legal name, any alias and any previous name;

a current residence and business address and a telephone
number for each;

3. any qualification and experience in the following areas;

general business;

marketing, promotion and advertising;,

finance and accounting;

horse or greyhound racing;

pari-mutuel wagering;

security; and

human and animal health and safety; and

CEETORR

4. a description of the terms and conditions of employment and a copy of any
written agreement.

As signed employment agreements between the applicant and
employees are completed, they will be submitted to the
commission with a contract cover review sheet. Applicant
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intends to comply with all federal and state laws with respect to
all conditions of employment.

See attachment A-13 for personnel listing and job title.

C. Identify consultants and other contractors, to the extent known, who have

- provided or will provide management-related services to the applicant, and state
for each;
I. a full name;
2. a current address and telephone number;
3. the nature of service provided;
4. any qualifications and experience; and
5. a description of the terms and conditions of any agreement and a copy of

any written agreement.

Applicant will employ Rita Osborn as General Manager and has
enclosed herein her resume, See Attachment A-14. Other
management related services will be provided by the management
committee under the guidance of the Kansas Racing Commission.

d. Describe memberships in racing organizations held by the applicant, its
management personnel and its consultants;

The applicant is presently a member of the following associations:

1) American Quarter Horse Association

2) American Horse Council

3) Kansas Horse Council

4) National Organization of Horsemen’s Associations

€. Describe the applicant’s security plan, including:

1. the number and deployment of security personnel serving the applicants
during a race meeting.

2. The specific security plans for the stable or kennel area, detention area,

' pari-mutuel areas, money room, and other restricted areas;

3. The specific security plans for detecting persons at the racetrack facility
who are subject to provisions of K.S.A. 1991 Supp. 74-8804 ({) (1) through
(3) or who have violated commission regulations or the racing act; and

4. A description of the coordination of the security plan with other law
enforcement agencies.

As in the prior year, applicant contemplates contracting with Mark
Kenneson to oversee our security operations and will work in
conjunction with the security director of the Kansas Racing & Gaming
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Commission. Also See Attached A-15.

Describe the applicant’s plans for human health and safety, including
emergencies.

See Attachment A-;IS

Describe the applicant’s plans for animal health and safety, including provisions
for maintenance of the racing surface and removal of the injured racing animals
from the track.

All veterinarians will be required to obtain a category Il or IV
concessionaires license. There will be a licensed veterinarian at the
track while the races are in progress. Injured horses will be screened
from the grandstand through the use of a trailer with a covered tarp
and removed from the track with a truck and trailer as soon as
reasonably possible. Applicant resurfaced the track in 2008. As in
prior years applicant will work closely with the Kansas Racing &
Gaming Commission on all animal health and safety related matters.

Describe the applicant’s marketing, promotion and advertising plans;

Applicant projects advertising and promotion expense of $2,000 for
the year ended November 30, 2009. Additional advertising and
promaotional assistance will be requested from the American Quarter
Horse Association as well as other National & State breed
Associations, Target areas for advertising will be within a 90 mile
radius of Eureka, Kansas.

Describe the applicant’s plan for the conduct if racing including types of racing,
specific dates, number of races per day, post times and special events;

Applicant requests ten (10) dates for 2009 as follows; May 25, 30 June
6, 13, 14,20, 21,27, 28 and July 4™. Additionally, applicant does not
intend to provide simulcast wagering.

Post time for all race days will be 1:30 p.m. The applicant intends to
write 7 horse races per day with races sufficient to allow all breeds of
horses adequate opportunity to race., Additionally, applicant intends
to sponsor certain futurities and derbies in conjunction with all breed
organizations.

Describe the applicant’s plan for purses, including total purses, formula, stake
races, purse-handling procedures, and estimated revenues from the county fair
horse racing benefit fund,
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Applicant estimates the total purses for 2009 of $578,000. The horse
purse formula for payout is 55%, 20%, 15%, and 10% for first
through fourth places respectively. Horses finishing from 5th place to
last place will receive $545. The payout for futurities and derbies (if
applicable) are stated on the entry forms for the respective races, and
will be submitted for approval from the Kansas Racing Commission
by the organizations which sponsor them. Applicant intends to raise
money for purses through local and regional race sponsors. As in the
past, certain quarter horse and thoroughbred futurities and derbies
have been held with additional money being offered by each breed
organization. Applicant will allocate $25,000 of horse purse money to
fatarity purses in 2009. See attachment A-16

State the applicant’s plan for furnishing the surety bond or other financial security
required by K.S.A. 1991 Supp. 74-8813 {e).

Applicant intends to contract with a bank or bonding company to
furnish a bond necessary to comply with this request.

If wagering is to be conducted, describe the applicant’s plan for pari-mutuel
wagering, including the number on line divisions, windows, selling machines, and
tellers, stating the uses and duties of each, and accounting procedure, stating audit
and supervisory controls;

The applicant’s plan for pari-mutuel wagering remains the same as
when the Eureka Downs Horsemen’s Association, Inc. and the
Greenwood County Fair Association, Inc. successfully conducted
horse racing in 2008 as a pari-mutuel facility.

Describe the applicant’s plan for concessions, including whether the licensee will
operate the concessions and, if not who will, to the extent known;

With respect to the concessions, the applicant will enter into an
agreement with the Copper Kettle Restaurant of Eureka, Ks which
will be responsible for providing all food and beverage concessions
and for obtaining certain required alcoholic beverage license(s).

Describe the applicant’s plan for training its personnel.
A number of the applicant’s employees will be those whom have been
previously employed by the applicant. An experienced General

Manager has been hired to supervise all employees.

Describe the applicant’s plans for compliance with employment laws.
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Applicant will pay at least minimum wage and does not intend to
require overtime for its’ hourly employees. Applicant intends to pay
all social security, Medicare, and unemployment taxes as required by
law. Applicant will not discriminate in any manner with respect to
its’ employment practices and intends to comply with all employment
laws,

VII. REQUESTED EXEMPTIONS

In accordance with K.A.R. 112-17-114, each county fair association of horsemen’s
nonprofit organization applicant shall provide the following information if it is requesting
any exception from commission regulations:

a. Separately identify each exception requested.
b. For each exception, state:
L. a citation to the specific regulation for which the exception is requested;
and
2. a statement of justification for the request, which details how the exception

will facilitate less costly and simplified procedures and requirement for the
race meeting, as provided in K.S.A. 1991 Supp. 74008814(c).

Applicant requests the following exceptions from the commission
regulations;

(a)  Waiver of requirement of K.A.R. 112-11-14(a), which requires
that ambulance service be available on site during any training
period since the response time for local ambulance service on
non-race days is minimal.

(b)  Waiver of the requirement of K.A.R. 112.11-14(g), which
requires a first aid station at the facility staffed by an
emergency medical technician and equipped with medical
equipment and supplies required in type Il ambulance. Itis
anticipated that an emergency medical technician will be on the
racetrack grounds associated with the ambulance and that
medical equipment as required by the commission director of
security will be present in the first aid office at the track.

(¢)  Waiver of the requirement K.A.R. 112-11-14(d) which requires
that a staffed horse ambulance be at the track each day that
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horses are on the racetrack. Applicant agrees to provide a
staffed horse ambulance during all live race days.

(d)  Waiver of the requirement of K.R.A 112-7-23(d), which requires
that any horse that has not raced in forty five (45) days shall not
start any race before it completes one (1) workout and a horse
that has not raced in twelve (12) months shall not start any race
before it completes two workouts. Applicant requests that the
number of days required by K.R.A 112-7-23(d) be changed from
forty five (45) days to sixty (60) days. Additionally, applicant
requests that the number of workouts be reduces from two (2)
workouts for a horse which has never races or has notraces in
the last twelve months to one (1) workout, provided; however
that the stewards or animal health officers shall have discretion
to require additional workouts.

()  Waiver of the requirement K.A.R. 112-18-8 which requires that
each simulcast race or program displayed on a day when live
races are not conducted shall constitute a race day that each
simulcasting licensee shall pat a license fee for the simulcasting
race day that is identical to the licensee fee it pays for alive
racing day. Applicant requests a reduced fee of fifty (50} dollars
per day of simulcast races or programs which are displayed on
a day when live races are not conducted.

¢4 112.7-6 Registration and eligibility. (b) No person shall enter or
start a race if: (10) an ownership transfer for a horse is being
forwarded to a breed registry.

Requested exception: (b) No person shall enter a horse in a race
if

(10) an ownership transfer for a horse is being forwarded to a
breed registry unless otherwise approved by the stewards prior
to entry.

Note: This exception is requested so that a horse being
transferred is eligible to run (not scratched if sold or claimed)
while the paper work is in the process of being changed(may be
1 — 3 weeks), if the transfer papers are sent in to the breed
registry by the racing office.

(2) 112-7-14 Penalties and allowances. (2) Penalties and sex
allowances shall be obligatory. Penalties or allowances shall be
claimed at time of entry. Each horse shall not enter or starta
race with less that 102 pounds unless the race is a handicap or
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stakes.

Requested exception: (2) Penalties or allowances shall be
claimed at time of entry. Trainers may waive sex allowances,
waiver must be made at time of entry. Each horse shall not
enter or start a race with less that 102 pounds unless the race is
a handicap or stakes.

Note: This exception is requested due to the shortage of
jockeys and the weights of the jockeys.

(h) KAR. 112-7-18(e) Without the permission of the owner or
trainer, no jockey shall weigh out if the jockey weighs more
than two pounds over the weight assigned to the horse. Under
no circumstances shall the margin over the weight limit exceed
seven pounds. In such a case, no jockey mount fee shall be due
to the overweight jockey.

Requested exception: (e) Without the permission of the owner
or trainer, no jockey shall weigh out if the jockey weighs more
than two pounds over the weight assigned to the horse. Under
no circamstances shall the margin over the weight limit exceed
seven pounds. In such a case, no jockey mount fee shall be due
to the overweight jockey. Applicant requests that due to the
shortage of jockeys and the weights of the jockeys, that this
underlined portion be changed to a weight agreed upon by
Commission Staff, Stewards, Eureka Downs General Manager,
and Racing Secretary.

() KAR. 112-4-1(1)

Requested exception: Applicant requests that, for the purpose
of simplifying procedures and reducing costs during the meet,
the commission waive the requirement that occupational
licensees be at least 16 years of age, for the limited purpose of
allowing valets and runners (with prior steward approval) to be
licensed at fourteen (14) or fifteen (13) years of age.

{j) K.A.R. 112-7-6 (a)(3) No person shall enter or start a horse in a
race unless the horse is in the care of a licensed trainer and
owned by an owner licensed by scratch time, except that for the
first ten days in a race meeting or for stakes races, an owner
must be licensed by one hour before first post on the day of the
race.

Requested exception: In order for entries into any horse race
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to be conducted at Eureka Downs, entries may be accepted by
the Racing Office from unlicensed trainers provided that such
trainer has, prior to making such an entry, faxed to the
Commission Licensing Office at Eureka Downs or the racing
thereafter fulfilled all requirements for the licensure prior to
11:00 a.m. on the date of office at Eureka Downs an application
for licensure and the race. For the duration of the 2009 horse
race meet, all owners must be licensed by one (1) hour before
first post on the day of the race. For all stakes races to be run at
Eureka Downs, entries may be accepted by the Racing Office
from unlicensed trainers provided that such trainer has, prior
to making such entry, faxed to the Commission Licensing
Office at Eureka Downs or the Racing Office at Eureka Downs
an application for licensure and thereafter fulfilled all
requirements for licensure prior to 11:00 a.m. on the day of the
race.

KSA 74-8814(2)(B)

Requested exception: Applicants request an exception from the
requirement of KSA 74-8814(2)(B), which requires that all
officers be required to attend a basic security course,

KAR 112-11-5(a)

Requested exception: Applicants request an exception to KAR
112-11-5(a), which requires 20 hours of continuing education
for all security officer’s prior to renewal of each security
officer’s license.

K.A.R. 112-7.8(b) No owner or trainer shall enter more than
two horses in an overnight event. Two horses shall not start to
the exclusion of a single horse.

Requested exception: (e) Due to the shortage of horses,
applicant requests that an owner or trainer be permitted to
enter more than two horses in an overnight race.

K.A.R. 112-11-20(3) 24-hour security for the compound
enclosure provided by the organization licensee during the
official racing season.

Requested exception: Due to budget constraints, applicant

requests an exception to reduce the required number of hours
for security personnel to 7 p.m. prior to race day until four
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hours after last race. Applicant will place a security camera at
the entry gate which will monitor any activity at that entrance
during all other hours of operation.
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Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM

DATE OF MEETING: March 13, 2009

AGENDA ITEM: Final approval of two parimutuel regulations and the second
and third waves of gaming regulations

PRESENTER: Patrick D. Martin, Assistant Attorney General

ISSUE SUMMARY: The Commission’s approval by a roll call vote is required before

regulations that have been through the rigorous vetting process can be published in the Kansas
Register and be made permanent. Staff asks the Commission to formally and finally approve
these articles and regulations:

1. Two parimutuel regulations that arise under the Expanded Lottery Act:

a. K.AR.112-12-5 Live Horse Racing Purse Supplement Fund
b. K.A.R. 112-13-6 Kansas Greyhound Breeding Development Fund

2. Eight articles of gaming regulations:

a. Facility manager certification, Article 112-101-1 et seq.;

Gaming supplier and non-gaming supplier certification, Article 112-102-1 et seq.,
excluding K.A.R. 112-102-2;

Employee certification, Article 112-103-1 et seq.;

Electronic gaming machine requirements, Article 112-107-1 et seq.;

Technical standards for EGMs and Central System, Article 112-110-1 et seq.;
Involuntary exclusions, Article 112-111-1 et seq.;

Sanctions, Article 112-113-1 et seq.; and

Rules of hearings, Article 112-114-1 et seq.

o

S@ e oo

The regulations should be made permanent because the Expanded Lottery Act generally
requires the Commission to create and adopt “such rules and regulations as the commission
deems necessary to carry out the duties and functions of the commission pursuant to Kansas
expanded lottery act.” K.S.A. 74-8772. As a part of that duty, the Commission is responsible
for adopting regulations:

[p]Jromoting the integrity of the gaming and finances of lottery gaming
facilities and racetrack gaming facilities and [the Commission] shall meet
or exceed industry standards for monitoring and controlling the gaming
and finances of lottery gaming facility operations and racetrack gaming
facility operations and shall give the Kansas racing and gaming
commission sufficient authority to monitor and control the gaming
operation and to ensure its integrity and security.
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Id. at (a).

Of course, K.S.A. 74-8772 is not the only authority relied on for these eight articles and
two regulations. Instead, the Expanded Lottery Act contains many other specific commission
duties and those specific duties are cited within each regulation. For instance, the Commission is
required to create a certification procedure for facility managers under K.S.A. 74-8751, and that
statute is listed in the regulations in Article 101.

All of these regulations have followed the rigorous process involved in creating
permanent regulations. That is, over the last year, these regulations have been reviewed by the
KRGC (and its consultants), the Department of Administration, the Attorney General’s office,
the Joint Committee on Administrative Rules and Regulations, and members of the regulated
community. Suggested revisions from each entity have been adopted into the current sets of
regulations.

COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED: Staff asks the Commission to
conduct a roll call vote to approve the two parimutuel regulations and eight gaming articles.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval of the regulations.
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112-12-15. Live horse racing purse supplement fund. (a) The balance of the money credited
to the live horse racing purse supplement fund that is subject to distribution pursuant to K.SA
74-8767(a)(3), and amendments thereto, shall be apportioned by the commission to purses for the
various horse breeds according to the following formula:

(1)  One-third based on the average percentage of each breed’s Kansas-bred horse
starters at Kansas racetracks for the previous three calendar years;

(2)  one-third based on the average percentage of each breed’s Kansas-certified horses
at Kansas racetracks for the previous three calendar years; and

(3)  one-third based on average percentage of each breed’s non-Kansas-bred starters at
Kansas racetracks for the previous three calendar years.

(b)  The official registering agency pursuant to K.S.A. 74-8830, and amendments
thereto, shall submit a recommendation to the commission for approval of the amount of all
proposed payments pursuant to K.S.A. 74-8767(2)(3), and amendments thereto, based on the
contribution to the Kansas horse racing and breeding industries and recommendations by each
respective breed group. The commission’s staff may also submit a recommendation to the
commission under this subsection.

()  The proposed amount of the distribution shall be submitted to the commission for

approval no later than March 1 of each distribution year. (Authorized by and implementing

K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8767 and 74-8830; effective P- )
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112-13-6. Kansas greyhound breeding development fund. (a) The balance of the money
credited to the live greyhound racing purse supplement fund under K.S.A. 74-8747(a)(3), and
amendments thereto, shall be apportioned as follows, unless otherwise specified:

(1) 80 percent to the Kansas-bred purse supplements to be paid monthly to owners of
Kansas-bred greyhounds, with the registering agency specifying the following:

(A) A procedure for calculating purse supplement payments {0 OWners of Kansas-bred
greyhounds on a point basis, as specified in K.AR. 112-13-5(c), ensuring that payments will be
made each month during a fiscal year; and

(B)  aprocedure for issuing Kansas-bred purse supplements on a monthly basis; and

2 20 percént to supplement stakes races at all Kansas racetrack facilities
offering greyhound races and to create special stakes races designed to promote and develop the
Kansas greyhound industry, with the registering agency specifying the following:

(A) A procedure for the distribution of funds to supplement stakes races at all Kansas
racetrack facilities offering greyhound racing; and

(B)  aprocedure for the administration of special stakes races created to promote and
develop the Kansas greyhound industry, including plans for profnotion and operation of the races
ina manner that includes opportunities for the participation of all racetrack facilities in Kansas.

(by  The official greyhound breed registering agency shall submit the amount of all
proposed payments spelciﬁed in subsection (a) to the commission for approval.

(c) The proposed amount of the distribution shall be submitted to the commission for

approval no later than March 1 of each distribution year based on the recommendations of the

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEPT. OF ADMINISTRATION
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112-13-6
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registering agency. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8767; implementing K.S.A. 2007

Supp. 74-8767(b) and 74-8831; effective P- )

ATTORNEY GENERAL

SEP 2 5 2008
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112-101-1. Prohibition against uncertified management of a gaming facility. No
person may manage a gaming facility unless that person is a lottery gaming facility
manager or racetrack gaming facility manager certified by the commission with a current

facility manager’s certificate. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772;

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751; effective P- ,
ATTORNEY GENER
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112-101-2. Facility manager application procedure. Each lottery gaming facility
manager and each racetrack gaming facility manager that seeks to be certified as a facility
manager shall submit the following to the commission staff:

(a) A completed application for the certificate on a commission-approved form;

(b) any supporting documents;

(c) all plans required by these regulations, including the internal controls system
plan, surveillance system plan, security plan, responsible gaming plan, and, if applicable,
the plan for compliance with the requirements for live racing and purse supplements
established pursuant to the act;

(d) abackground investigation deposit as specified in K.A.R. 112-101-5;

(e) prospective financial statements, including a one-year forecast and a three-
year projection, that have been audited by an independent certified public accountant or
independent registered certified public accounting firm as to whether the prospective
financial information is properly prepared on the basis of the assumptions and is
presented in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework; and

(f) any other information that the commission deems necessary for investigating
or certifying the applicant and its officers, directors, and key employees and any persons
directly or indirectly owning an interest of at least 0.5% in the applicant. (Authorized by

K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8734, 74-

8741, 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P- )
ATTORNEY GENERAL DEPT. OF ADMINISTRATION
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112-101-3. Background investigations. (a) Each applicant for a facility manager’s
certificate and each person whom the executive director deems to have a material
relationship to the applicant, including the applicant’s officers, directors, and key gaming
employees and any persons known to directly or indirectly own an interest of at least
0.5% in the applicant, shall submit to a background investigation conducted by the
commission’s director of security or other person designated by the executive director.
For purposes of this regulation, a material relationship shail mean a relationship in which
the person has an influence on the applicant or facility manager or its business and shall
be determined according to the criteria in paragraphs (b)(1) through (3).

(b) In determining the level of background investigation that a person shail
undergo, all relevant information, including the following; may be considered by the
executive director:

(1) The person’s relationship to the applicant;

(2) the person’s interest in the management of the apf)licant;

(3) the person’s participation with the applicant;

(4) if applicable, identification of the person as a shareholder in a publicly traded
company; and

(5) the extent to which the person has been investigated in another jurisdiction ot
by other governmental agencies.

(c) Each person subject to a background investigatioﬁ shall submit a complete

personal disclosure to the commission on a commission-approved form and shall submit

NEY GENERAL
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any supporting documentation that the commission staff requests.
(d) Each person that is subject to investigation shall have a duty to fully
cooperate with the commission during any investigation and to provide any information

that the commission requests. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-

8751 and 74-8772; effective P- 2
AW
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112-101-4. Affirmative duty to demonstrate qualifications. Each applicant for a
facility manager’s certificate shall have an affirmative duty to the commission to
demonstrate that the applicant, including the applicant’s directors, officers, owners, and

key employees, is qualified for certification. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A.

2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P- 2
.- ERAL
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112-101-5. Fees and costs, (a) Each applicant for a facility manager’s certificate and
each applicant for a certificate as a racetrack gaming facility manager shall provide a
background investigation deposit to the commission. That deposit shall be assessed for
all fees and costs incurred by the commission in performing the background investigation
of the applicant, its officers, directors, and key gaming employees, any persons known to
directly or indirectly own an interest of at least (.5% in the applicant, and any other
person as the executive director deems necessary, including any person specified in
article 102 or 103,

(b) Any facility manager that wishes to renew its certificate may be required to
. provide a background investigation deposit. The facility manager shall be assessed for all
fees and costs incurred by the commission in performing the background investigation of
the applicant, its officers, directors, and key gaming employees, any persons known to
directly or indirectly own an interest of at least 0.5% in the applicant, and any other
person as the executive director deems necessary, including any person specified in
article 102 or 103.

(c) All fees paid to the commission shall be nonrefundable. (Authorized by

K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8734, 74-

8741, 74-8751, and 74-8772; effective P- N
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112-101-6. Disqualification criteria. (a) A facility manager’s certificate shall be
denied or revoked by the commission if the applicant or certificate holder itself has been
convicted of any felony, crime involving gambling, or crime of moral turpitude.

(b) A certificate may be denied, suspended, or revoked by the commission, and a
certificate holder may be otherwise sanctioned by the commission as specified in K.A.R.
112-113-1 if the certificate holder or its officers, directors, key gaming employees, or
any person directly or indirectly owning an interest of at least 0.5% in the applicant meets
any of the following conditions:

(1) Has any employees who have knowingly or negligently provided false or
misleading material information to the commission or its staff;

(2) fails to notify the commission staff about a material change in the applicant’s
or certificate holder’s application within three days;

(3) is delinquent in paying for the cost of regulation, oversight, or background
investigations required under the act or any regulations adopted under the act;

(4) has violated any provision of the act or any regulation adopted under the act;

(5) has failed to meet any monetary or tax obligation to the {ederal government or
to any state or local government;

(6) is financially delinquent to any third party;

(7) has failed to provide information or documentation requested in writing by
the commission in a timely manner;

(8) does not consent to or cooperate with investigations, inspections, searches, or

ATTORNEY GENERAL
DEPT. OF ADMINISTRATION
0CT 2 0 2008
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having photographs and fingerprints taken for investigative purposes;

(9) has failed to meet the requirements of K.AR. 112-101-4;

(10) has officers, directors, key gaming employees, or persons directly or
indirectly owning an interest of at least 0.5% that have any present or prior activities,
criminal records, reputation, habits, or agsociations meeting either of the following
criteria:

(A) Pose a threat to the public interest or to the effective regulation of gaming; or

(B) create or enhance the dangers of unfair or illegal practices in the conduct of
gaming; or

(11) has violated any contract provision with the Kansas lottery. (Authorized by

and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P- 2

ATTO
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112-101-7. Certificate duration. Each certificate for a gaming manager shall be issued
by the commission for no longer than two years and one month. Each certificate shall
expire on the last day of the month of the anniversary date of issue. (Authorized by

K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751;

effective P- )
ATTORNEY GENERAL
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112-101-8. Certificate renewal. (a) Each renewal application for a facility manager’s
certificate shall be submitted to the commission staff at least 120 days before the
expiration of the current certificate. Each certificate holder shall submit the renewal
application on a commission-approved form along with any supporting documents.

(b) Each person seeking to renew its gaming certificate shall be required to meet

all requirements for an initial gaming certificate. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-

8751 and 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751; effective P- )
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0CT 1 0 2008
APPROVED
MF
DEPT. OF ADMINISTRATION
AUG 1 5 2008

APPROVED E.4d (100f 22)



112-101-9. Notice of anticipated or actual change. (a) Each facility manager or
applicant shall notify the commission in writing of any reasonably anticipated or actual
change in its directors, officers, or key employees or persons directly or indirectly
owning an interest of at least 0.5% in the facility manager or applicant.

(b) Each new director, officer, key employee, or person directly or indirectly
owning an interest of at least 0.5% in the facility manager shall submit to a background
investigation as specified in K.A.R. 112-101-3 before acting in the person’s new
capacity.

(¢) Failure to comply with this regulation may result in a sanction as specified in
K.A.R. 112-113-1. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772;

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751; effective P- J
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112-101-10. Advertising; promotion of responsible gaming. (a) As used in this
regulation, the term “advertisement™ shall mean any notice or communication to the
public of any information concerning the gaming-related business of an applicant or
facility manager through broadcasting, publication or any other means of dissemination.
The following notices and communications shall be considered advertisements for
purposes of this regulation:

(1) Any sign, notice, or other information required to be provided by the act or by
regulation, including the following:

(A) Notices regarding the rules of the games;

(B) information about rules of the games, payoffs of winning wagers, and odds;

(C) gaming guides;

(D) information imprinted upon gaming table layouts; and

(B) information imprinted, affixed, or engraved on slot machines or bill changers;

(2) any signs or other directional devices contained in a gaming facility for the
purpose of identifying the location of authorized games; and

(3) press releases.

(b) Each facility manager and each applicant shall provide to the executive
director any proposed advertisement that references the Kansas lottery at least seven
business days in advance of its anticipated publication, broadcast, or other use. The

advertisement may be inspected and approved by the executive director before its

publication, broadcast, or use. o ‘\\E\:@\\f
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(¢) Advertisements shall be based on fact and shall not be false, deceptive, or
misleading. No advertisement may use any type, size, location, lighting, illustration,
graphic depiction, or color resulting in the obscuring of any material fact or fail to
specifically designate any material conditions or limiting factors. Each advertisement
that the executive director finds to reflect negatively on the state of Kansas or upon the
integrity of gaming shall be deemed to be in violation of this regulation, and the facility
manager or applicant may be subject to sanction.

(d) Each applicant or facility manager shall be responsible for all advertisements
that are made by its employees or agents regardless of whether the applicant or facility
manager participated directly in its preparation, placement, or dissemination.

(¢) Each on-site advertisement of a facility manager’s business shall comply with
the facility manager’s responsible gaming plan that has been approved by the commission
pursuant to article 112. Each advertisement shall reference the Kansas toll-free problem
gambling help line in a manner approved by the executive director.

(f) Each applicant and each facility manager shall submit all proposed text and
planned signage informing patrons of the toli-free number regarding compulsive or
problem gambling to the executive director with its responsible gaming plan required in
article 112.

(g) Each advertisement shall be maintained by the facility manager or applicant
for at least one year from the date of broadcast, publication, or use, whether that

advertisement was placed by, for, or on behalf of the facility manager or applicant. Each
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advertisement required to be maintained by this subsection shall be maintained at the
principal place of business of the facility manager or applicant and shall be made
available or produced for inspection upon the request of the commission.

(h) Each gaming facility manager and each applicant shall maintain a file
containing samples of the types and forms of promotional materials not directly related to
gaming activity for at least six months from the date of placement of the promotional
materials. The promotional materials shall be maintained at the principal place of
business of the facility manager or applicant and shall be made available or produced for

inspection upon the request of the executive director. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp.

74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8752 and 74-8772; effective P- D
"
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112-101-11. Material debt transaction. (2)(1) No facility manager shall consummate
a material debt transaction that involves either of the following without the prior approval
of the commission:

(A) Any agreement that provides for any borrowing for a purpose other than
capital and maintenance expenditures; or

(B) a guarantee of debt of an affiliate, whether signing a note or otherwise, an
assumption of the debt of an affiliate, or an agreement to impose a lien on the approved
gaming facility to secure the debts of an affiliate.

(2) A transaction not specified in this subsection shall not require the approval of
the commission.

(b) Inreviewing any material debt transaction specified in paragraph (a)(1),
whether the transaction would deprive the facility manager of financial stabillity shall be
considered by the commission, taking into account the financial condition of the affiliate

and the potential impact of any default on the gaming facility manager. (Authorized by

and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-101-12. Notice of bankruptey or liquidation. Each facility manager shall notify
the commission within one hour following the filing of bankruptcy or an agreement to
liquidate any of the following:

(a) The facility manager;

(b) any parent company of the facility manager; or

(¢) any subsidiary of the facility manager’s parent company. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-101-13. Access to gaming facility and information. (a) Each applicant and each
facility manager, including their intermediary companies and holding companies, shall
consent to inspections of the gaming facility by commission staff.

(b) Each applicant and each facility manager shall provide all information
requested by the commission. The access to information shall be granted upon the
commission’s request. The applicant or facility manager shall deliver any requested
copies of the information within seven calendar days, at the commission’s request.

(Authorized by K.8.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8752

and 74-8772; effective P~ )
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112-101-14. Certification of employees. (a) Each employee, contractor, and agent of
an applicant or facility manager shall be certified by the commission with a current
occupation license before performing any tasks or duties or assuming any responsibilities
for matters regulated by the commission for the applicant or facility manager pursuant to
article 103.

(b) Each applicant and each facility manager shall coordinate the submission of
all occupation license applications and background costs and expenses to the

commission. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-101-15. Reporting requirements. (a) Each facility manager ghall submit a
monthly report to the commission listing all contracts the facility manager has had with
gaming and non-gaming suppliers for the previous month and cumulatively for the past
12 months.

(b) Bach facility manager shall submit a monthly report to the commission listing
all persons working in the gaming facility and any ancillary facilities and each person’s
department, job duty, and function.

(c) At the end of its tax year, each facility manager shall submit to the
commission a copy of its certified financial statements, along with an opinion from a
certified public accountant or independent registered certified public accounting firm
certifying the total revenue from all lottery facility games.

(d) Bach facility manager and each applicant for a gaming certificate shall
disclose in writing within 11 days any material change in any information provided in the
application forms and requested materials submitted to the commission. Each change in
information that is not material shall be disclosed to the commission during the facility
manager’s subsequent application for renewal. For the purpose of this regulation, a
change shall be deemed material if the change includes any of the following:

(1) The personal identification or residence information;

(2) the officers, directors, or key employees or any persons owning an interest of
at least 0.5% in a lottery gaming facility or racetrack gaming facility manager; or

(3) other information that might affect an applicant’s or facility manager’s
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suitability fo hold a gaming certificate, including any of the following occurrences that
happen to the applicant, facility manager, or its material people as determined by the
executive director pursuant to K.AR. 112-101-3:

(A) Arrests;

(B) convictions or guilty pleas;

(C) disciplinary actions or license denials in other jurisdictions;

(D) significant changes in financial condition, including any incurrence of debt
equal to or exceeding $1,000,000; or

(E) relationships or associations with persons having criminal records or criminal

reputations. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772;

effective P- .)
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112-101-16. Prohibitions. Each facility manager shall be prohibited from and subject
to sanctions as specified in K.A.R. 112-113-1 for the following:

(2) Failing to exercise discretion and judgment to prevent any incident that might
adversely reflect on the reputation of the state of Kansas or act as a detriment to the
development of the lottery industry, including allowing lewd entertainment at a gaming
facility;

(b) failing to conduct advertising and public relations activities in accordance
with honest and fair representation;

(¢) knowingly or negligently catering to, assisting, employing, or associating
with, either socially or in business affairs, persons who have a criminal reputation or who
have felony police records, or employing either directly through a contract or other
means, any firm or individual in any capacity in which the repute of the state of Kansas
ot the lottery industry is liable to be damaged because of the unsuitability of the firm or
the individual;

(d) failing to conduct gaming in accordance with the act and these regulations or
permitting conduct that could reflect negatively on the reputation of the state of Kansas or
act as a detriment to the lottery industry;

(¢) failing to report to the commission any known or suspected violations of
commission regulations and applicable law;

(f) failing to comply with any regulation or order of the commission or its

employees relating to gaming; and
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(g) receiving goods or services from a person or business that does not hold a

certificate under article 103 but is required to do so. (Authorized by and implementing

K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-102-1. Prohibition against uncertified business. No person identified in K.A.R.
112-102-2 as a gaming or non-gaming supplier may provide any equipment or services to
a gaming facility or manager unless the person is certified by the commission with a
current gaming supplier certificate, non-gaming supplier certificate, or temporary supplier
permit. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772;

effective P- )
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112-102-3. Gaming and non-gaming supplier employees. Any employee or agent of a
gaming or non-gaming supplier may be required by the commission to be separately
investigated or licensed. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772,;

effective P- )
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112-102-4. Application for a certificate. Each person seeking a gaming supplier
certificate or a non-gaming supplier certificate shall submit the following to the
commission staff:

(a) A completed application for the certificate on a commission-approved
form;

(b)  any supporting documents;

(c) a copy of the applicant’s contractual agreement or statement of intent with a
facility manager that the applicant expects to be supplying its goods or services. As a part
of that contract or statement of intent, the applicant shall describe any arrangement it has

made with the facility manager to cover the fees and costs incurred by the commission in

performing the background investigation of the applicant pursuant to K. AR 112-102-7;
and

(d)  any other information that the commission deems necessary for
investigating or considering the applicant. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007

Supp. 74-8751; effective P- )
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112-102-5. Temporary supplier permit. (a) The commission staff may issue a
temporary supplier permit if all of the following conditions are met:

(1)  The commission staff determines that the applicant has filed a completed
application for a gaming or non-gaming supplier certificate.

(2) The applicant has no immediately known present or prior activities,
criminal records, reputation, habits, or associations that meet either of these conditions:

(A)  Pose a threat to the public interest or to the effective regulation of gaming;
or

(B)  create or enhance the dangers of unfair or illegal practices in the conduct
of gaming.

(3)  The applicant has completed a supplier-sponsored agreement with each
gaming facility that the applicant proposes to conduct business with,

(b) A temporary supplier permit may be issued for a period not to exceed 90
days. Any temporary supplier permit may be extended by the commission’s licensing
staff for an additional 90 days.

(c) The issuance of a temporary supplier permit shall not extend the duration
of the gaming or non-gaming supplier certificate for which the applicant has applied.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-102-6. Affirmative duty to demonstrate qualifications; Each applicant for a
certificate as a gaming supplier or non-gaming supplier shall have an affirmative duty to
the commission to demonstrate that the applicant, including the applicant’s directors,
officers, stockholders, and principal employees and any persons deemed necessary by the
executive director because of that person’s relationship to the applicant, is qualified for

certification. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-

§772; effective P- 2
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112-102-7. Background investigations. Each applicant and each person whom the
executive director deems to have a material relationship to the applicant, including
officers, directors, key gaming employees, and any persons known to directly or
indirectly own an interest of at least 0.5% in the applicant, shall submit to a background
investigation conducted by the commission’s director of security or other person
designated by the executive director.

For purposes of this regulation, a material relationship shall mean a relationship in
which a person participates in the business decisions or finances of the applicant or can
exhibit control over the applicant, as determined by the executive director. (Authorized

by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-102-8. Disqualification criteria. (a) A certificate shall be denied or revoked by the
commission if the applicant or certificate holder has been convicted of any felony, crime
involving gambling, or crime of moral turpitude.

(b) A certificate may be denied, suspended, or revoked by the commission,
and a certificate holder may be sanctioned by the commission under K.AR. 112-113-1 if
the certificate holder or its officers, directors, key gaming employees, or any person
known to directly or indirectif own an interest of at least 0.5% in the applicant meets any
of the following conditions:

(1)  Has knowingly provided false or misleading material information through
its employees to the commission or commission staff;

(2)  fails to notify the commission staff about a material change in the
application within 11 days;

(3)  has violated any provision of the act or any regulation adopted under the
act;

(4)  has failed to meet any monetary or tax obligation to the federal
government or to any state or local government;

(3)  is financially delinquent to any third party;

(6)  has failed to provide information or documentation requested in writing by
the commission in a timely manner;,

(7 does not consent to or cooperate with investigations, inspections, searches,

or having photographs and fingerprints taken for investigative purposes;
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(8)  has failed to meet the requirements of K.A.R. 112-102-6;

(9)  has any officers, directors, key gaming employees, or any person known to
directly or indirectly own an interest of at least 0.5% in the applicant that has any present
or prior activities, criminal records, reputation, habits, or associations meeting either of
the following criteria:

(A)  Pose a threat to the public interest or to the effective regulation of gaming;
or

(B)  create or enhance the dangers of unfair or illegal practices in the conduct
of gaming; or

(10)  has violated any contract with the Kansas lottery. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P- )

pPPROVED DEPT. OF ADMINISTRATION

AUG 1 5 2008

E.4.e (8 of 13)



112-102-9. Certificate duration. Each certificate for a gaming supplier or non-gaming
supplier shall be issued by the commission for no longer than two years and one month.
Each certificate shall expire on the last day of the month of the anniversary date of issue.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751; effective P-

)
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112-102-10. Certificate renewal application. Each renewal application for a gaming
or non-gaming supplier certificate shall be filed with the commission staff at least 120
days before the expiration date of the license. Each certificate holder shall submit the
renewal application on a commission-approved form along with any supporting

documents. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751; effective P-

)
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112-102-11. Change in ownership. (a) Each change in either of the following shall be
sufficient cause for revoking any certificate or temporary permit granted by the
commission:

(1) The ownership of the applicant or the holder of a gaming supplier or non-
gaming supplier certificate; or

(2) the ownership of any holding or intermediary company of the applicant or
certificate holder, unless the holding or intermediary company is a publicly traded
corporation.

(b) Each proposed new owner shall submit to the commission an application for
initial certification as a gaming supplier or non-gaming supplier and all supporting
material. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772;

effective P- J
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112-102-12. Certificates, temporary supplier permits, and badges to be commission
property. (a) Each gaming supplier certificate, non-gaming supplier certificate,
temporary supplier permit, and badge issued by the commission shall be the property of
the commission.

(b) Possession of a certificate, temporary supplier permit, or badge shall not
confer any right upon the certificate holder or temporary permittee to contract with or
work for a gaming facility.

(c) Each certificate holder or temporary permittee shall return that person’s
certificate or temporary supplier permit and each badge in that person’s possession to
commission staff no later than one day after the certificate holder’s or temporary supplier

permit holder’s business is terminated. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007

Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-102-13. Records. (a) Each gaming supplier and each non-gaming supplier
certified by the commission shall maintain that supplier’s business records in a place
secure against loss and destruction. BEach certificate holder shall make these records
available to the commission upon the commission’s request. The records shall include
the following:

(1)  Any correspondence with the commission and any other governmental
agencies;

(2)  any correspondence related to the business with a gaming facility, whether
proposed or existing;

(3)  acopy of any publicity and promotional materials;

&) the personnel files for every employee of the certified gaming supplier or
non-gaming supplier, including sales representatives; and

(5)  the financial records for all the transactions related to the certificate
holder’s business with a gaming facility, whether proposed or existing.

(b)  Each certificate holder shall keep the records listed in subsection (a) for at

least five years from the date of creation. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007

Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P- J)
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112-103-1. Prohibition of unlicensed employment with a facility manager. No person
may work as an employee or independent contractor of a facility manager unless the
person is certified to do so with a current occupation license or temporary work permit
issued by the commission for the actual job, duty, or position that the person is seeking to

perform. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

y
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112-103-2. License levels. (a) Each of the following persons who will be employed by
or working for a facility manager in a position that includes the responsibility or authority
specified in this subsection, regardless of job fitle, shall be considered key employees and
shall be required to hold a current and valid temporary work permit or level 1 occupation
license issued in accordance with the act and these regulations:

(1)  Any person who has authority to perform any of the following;

(A)  Hire or fire employees of a facility manager;

(B) establish working policies for a facility manager;

(C)  act as the chief financial officer or have financial management
responsibility for a facility manager;

(D)  manage all or part of a gaming facility; or

(E) direct, control, manage, or engage in discretionary decision mai(ing over a
facility manager,

(2)  any person who has the authority to develop or administer policy or long-
term plans or to make discretionary decisions about the management of a gaming facility
or ancillary lottery gaming facility, including any of the following persons:

(A)  General manager or chief executive officer;

(B) electronic gaming machine director,

(C)  director of surveillance;

(D) director of security;

(E)  controller;
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(F)  director of internal audit;

(G)  manager of the management information systems section or of any
information system of a similar nature;,

(H)  marketing department manager;

O administrative operations manager;

(I hotel general manager; or

(K)  restaurant or bar general manager, or

(3)  any other person designated as a key employee by the
executive director.

(b)  Each person whose responsibilities predominantly involve the
maintenance or the conducting of gaming activities or equipment and the assets
associated with gaming activities or who will be required to work regularly in a restricted
area shall obtain a temporary work permit or a level IT occupation license. Each person
who will be employed by or working for a facility manager in a position that includes any
of the following responsibilities shall. obtain a temporary work permit or a level I
occupation license:

(1)  Supervising the pit area;

(2)  functioning as a dealer or croupier;

(3)  conducting or supervising any table game;

(4)  repairing and maintaining gaming equipment, including slot machines and

bill validators;
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(5)  functioning as a gaming cashier or change person,

(6)  assisting in the operation of electronic gaming machines and bill
validators, including any person who participates in the payment of jackpots and in the
process of filling hoppers, or supervising those persons;

(7)  identifying patrons for the purpose of offering them complimentaries,
-authorizing the complimentaries, or determining the amount of complimentaries;

(8)  analyzing facility manager operations data and making recommendations
to key personnel of the facility manager relating to facility manager marketing,
complimentaries, gaming, special events and player ratings, and other similar items;

(9)  entering data into the gaming-related computer systems or developing,
maintaining, installing, or operating gaming-related computer software systems;

(10)  collecting and recording patron checks and personal checks that are
dishonored and returned by a bank;

(11)  developing marketing programs to promote gaming in the gaming facility;

(12)  processing coins, currency, chips, or cash equivalents of the facility
manager;

(13)  controlling or maintaining the electronic gaming machine inventory,
including replacement parts, equipment, and tools used to maintain electronic gaming
machines;

(14)  having responsibilities associated with the installation, maintenance, or

operation of computer hardware for the facility manager computer system,
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(15)  providing surveillance in a gaming facility;

(16)  providing security in a gaming facility; or

(17)  supervising areas, tasks, or staff within a gaming facility, including any of
the following:

(A)  The surveillance investigations and operations in a facility manager;

(B)  the count room;

(C)  the facility manager shift manager;

(D)  the shift manager or supervisor of the electronic gaming machine
operation;

(E)  the repair and maintenance of the electronic gaming machines and the bill
validators;

(F)  the surveillance department during a shift;

(G)  repair or maintenance of the surveillance system equipment;

(H)  asurveillance department trainee or a surveillance room technician;

(D the security department,

4)] the cage, satellite cage, and vault;

(K)  the collection unit of the facility manager;

(L)  the internal audit department; or

(M) the management information systems department.

(©) Each person who will be employed by or working for a facility manager or

with an ancillary lottery gaming facility operator and who is not required under the act or
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these regulations to obtain a level I or level IT occupation license shall obtain a temporary

work permit or a level III occupation license. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A.

2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- . )
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112-103-3. Temporary work permit. (a) The commission staff may issue a temporary
work permit to an applicant if both of the following conditions are met:

(1)  The commission staff determines that the applicant has filed a completed
application for a level I, level 11, or level TII occupation license.

(2)  The applicant has no immediately known present or prior activities,
criminal records, reputation, habits, or associations that meet either of these conditions:

(A)  Pose athreat to the public interest or to the effective regulation of gaming;
or

(B)  create or enhance the dangers of unfair or illegal practices in the conduct
of gaming.

(b) A temporary work permit may be issued for an initial period not to exceed
90 days. Any temporary work permit may be extended by the commission’s licensing
staff for an additional 90 days.

() The issuance of a temporary work permit shall not extend the duration of
the level I, level 11, or level 11 license for which the applicant has applied. {Authorized

by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-103-4. Application for a license. Each applicant for a level I, level II, or level 11T
occupation license shall submit a completed application on a commission-approved form
to the human resources department of the facility manager with which the applicant seeks
employment. The human resources staff shall ensure the form’s completeness and shall
submit the form to the commission’s licensing staff, along with an approval to deduct the
amount of the applicant’s background investigation fees and costs from the facility
manager’s background deposit provided to the commission. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-103-5. Applicant identification. (a) Each applicant shall have the responsibility to
identify that person to commission staff when submitting an application by presenting
one of the following:

) A current and valid U.S. passport or certification of naturalization; or

(2) a current identification card issued by the immigration and naturalization
service (INS) containing a photograph or fingerprints and containing identification
information including name, date of birth, sex, height, color of eyes, and address.

(b)  Ifthe documents specified in subsection (a) are not available and the
applicant is a student and a citizen of another country with a federal J-1 authorization, the
applicant shall present a signed J-1 authorization document and a valid and current
foreign passport with the United States citizenship and immigration stamp attached to the
passport.

(c)  If none of the documents specified in subsection (a) or (b) are available,
the applicant shall present one of the following documents:

(1) A current and valid state-issued driver’s license that has a photograph on
the license;

(2)  acurrent and valid identification card issued to persons who serve in the
U.S. military or their dependents that contains a photograph or other identifying
information, or both;

(3)  a current and valid school identification card containing a photograph, an

expiration date, the seal or logo of the issuing institution, and the signature of the card
ATTORNEY GENERAL  pepr. oF apuvisTRATION

FEB 11 2009 FEB 0 5 2009

APPROVED
MF APPROVED?* (90122



112-103-5
Page 2

holder;

(4) a current and valid identification card issued by a federal, state, or local
government agency that contains a photograph and other identifying information; or

(5)  acertified U.S. birth certificate.

(d)  Ifthe applicant is not a citizen of the United States and cannot provide the
documents specified in subsection (a), (b), or (¢), the applicant shall provide
identification showing a country identification number from the applicant’s country of
citizenship.

(¢)  Ifthe name on any identification document provided by an applicant is
different from the name on the application form, the applicant shall provide the
commission with a marriage certificate, a divorce decree, a copy of a court order granting
a petition for a name change, or any other valid document to verify the applicant’s use of
a different name.

) If the commission staff determines that there are irregularities with any
documentation or type of identification presented by an applicant, the staff may require

supplemental identification. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-

8772; effective P- )
KTTORNEY GENERAL
| DEPT. OF ADMINISTRATION
APPRO\?ED FEB & 5 2009
MF APPROVED

E.4f (10 of 22)



112-103-6. Affirmative duty to demonstrate qualifications. Each applicant for an
occupation license shall have an affirmative duty to the commission to demonstrate that

the applicant is qualified for licensure. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007

Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P- J
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112-103-7. Background investigation. Each applicant shall submit to a background

investigation conducted by the commission’s director of security or other person

designated by the executive director. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007

Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-103-8. Disqualification criteria for a level I, Ievel 1L, or Ievel III license. (a) A
level I license shall be denied or revoked by the commission if the applicant or licensee is
or has been convicted of any felony, crime involving gambling, or crime of moral
turpitude.

(b)  Any license may be denied, suspended, or revoked by the commission,
and any licensee may be sanctioned by the commission if the applicant or licensee meets
any of the following conditions:

(1)  Has knowingly provided false or misleading material information to the
commission or its staff;

(2)  fails to notify the commission staff about a material change in the
applicant’s or licensee’s application within 10 days;

(3)  has violated any provision of the act or any regulation adopted under the
act;

(4)  is unqualified to perform the duties required;

(5)  has failed to meet any monetary or tax obligation to the federal
government or to any state or iocal government;

(6) is financially delinquent to any third party;

(7)  has failed to provide information or documentation requested in writing by
the commission in a timely manner;

(8)  does not consent to or cooperate with investigations, inspections, searches,

or having photographs and fingerprints taken for investigative purposes;
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(9 has failed to meet the requirements of K.A.R. 112-103-6; or
(10)  has any present or prior activities, criminal records, reputation, habits, or
associations that meet either of the following criteria:

(A)  Pose a threat to the public interest or to the effective regulation of gaming;

or

(B) create or enhance the dangers of unfair or illegal practices in the conduct

of gaming. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-103-9. Examinations. (a) Any applicant for an occupation license may be
required to demonstrate knowledge, qualifications, and proficiency related to the license
for which application is made through an examination approved by the commission or its
designee.

(b) Any applicant who fails the examination may be retested no earlier than
30 days following the first failure and no earlier than six months following the second
failure. Each applicant failing the examination on the third attempt shall be ineligible to
retake the examination for one year from the date of the third failure. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-103-10. License duration. Each occupation license shall be issued for a period of
no longer than two years and one month. Each license shall expire on the last day of the
month in which the licensee was born. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007

Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-103-11. License renewal. Each occupation licensee wanting to renew the license
shall file an application for occupation license renewal with the commission staff. Each
application shall be submitted on a form approved by the commission. The completed
renewal application shall be filed with the commission staff at least 90 days before
expiration of the license. An applicant’s failure to timely file the renewal application may
result in expiration of the license and an inability to work with or for the gaming licensee.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-103-12. Reapplication after license denial or revocation. A person who is denied

licensure or whose license is revoked shall not reapply for the same or higher level of

license for at least one year from the date of the denial or revocation. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-103-13. Reserved.
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112-103-15. License mobility; limitations. (a) Any licensee may work in any other
position at or below that license level. If a licensee changes positions for more thaﬁ one
shift in a seven-day period or moves to another facility, the licensee shall notify the
commission’s licensing staff about the change.

(b)  If the commission’s licensing staff determines that the person’s license no
longer reflects that person’s actual position, the person shall be required to reapply for the
appropriate occupation license. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74~

8772, effective P- )
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112-103-16. Licenses, temporary work permits, and badges to be commission
property. (2) Each license, temporary work permit, and badge issued by the commission
shall be the property of the commission.

(b)  Possession of é license, temporary permit, or badge shall not confer any
right upon the temporary permittee or licensee to employment with a facility manager.

{c) Each licensee or temporary permittee shall return the license or temporary
work permit and each badge in that person’s possession to commission staff within one
day if the temporary permittee’s or licensee’s employment or contract is terminated.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-107-1. Electronic gaming machine requirements. (a) Each electronic gaming
machine (EGM) approved for use in a gaming facility shall meef the requirements of
article 110.

(b) Unless a facility manager's electronic gaming monitoring system is
configured to automatically record all of the information required by this article, the
facility manager shall be required to house the following entry authorization logs in each
EGM:

(1) A machine entry authorization log that documents each time an EGM or any
device connected to the EGM that could affect the operation of the EGM is opened. The
log shall contain, at a minimum, the following:

(A) The date and time of opening;

(B) the purpose for opening the EGM or device;

(C) the signature and the license or permit number of the person opening and
entering the EGM or device; and

(D) if a device, the asset number corresponding to the EGM in which the device
is housed; and

(2) a progressive entry authorization log that documents each time a progressive
controller not housed within the cabinet of the EGM is opened. The log shall contain, at
a minimum, the following:

(A) The date and time of opening;

(B) the purpose for accessing the progressive controller; and
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112-107-1
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(C) the signature and the license or perrﬁit number of the person accessing the
progressive controller. Each log shall be maintained in the progressive controller unit
and have recorded on the log a sequence number and the gaming supplier's serial number
of the progressive controller.

(¢) Each EGM shall be equipped with a lock controlling access to the card cage
door securing the microprocessor, and the lock’s key shall be different from any other
key securing access to the EGM's components, including its belly door or main door, bill
validator, and electronic gaming cash storage box. Access to the key securing the
microprocessor shall be limited to a supervisor in the security department. The
department’s director of security shall establish a sign-out and sign-in procedure for the
key, which shall include notification to commission staff before release of the key.

(Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8750

and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-107-2. Testing and approval. (a) Each EGM prototype and the associated
equipment operated in this state shall be approved in accordance with the act, this article,
and article 110.

(b) One of the following EGM testing procedures may be required by the
executive director:

(1) An abbreviated testing and approval process in accordance with K.A.R. 112-
107-3(g); or

(2) testing and approval in accordance with K.A.R. 112-107-3(i). (Authorized by
K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8750 and 74-8772;

effective P- J
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112-107-3. Submission for testing and approval. (a) Each EGM prototype and the
associated equipment subject to testing and approval under this regulation shall be
‘evaluated by the commission for the following:

(1) Overall operational integrity and compliance with the act, this article, and the
technical standards adopted by the commission under article 110;

(2) compatibility and compliance with the central computer system; and

(3) compatibility with any protocol specifications approved by the Kansas lottery
commission, including the ability to communicate with the centr.al computer system for
the purpose of transmitting auditing program information, real-time information retrieval,
and activation and disabling of EGMs.

(b) EGMS and associated equipment that shall be submitted for testing and
commission approval include the following:

(1) Bill validators and printers;

(2) electronic gaming monitoring systems, to the extent that the systems interface
with EGMs and related systems;

(3) EGM management systems that interface with EGMs and related systems;

(4) player tracking systems that interface with EGMs and related systems;

(5) progressive systems, including wide-area progressive systems;

(6) gaming ticket systems;

(7) external bonusing systems;

(8) cashless funds transfer systems;
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(9) machines performing gaming ticket, coupon, or jackpot payout transactions;

(10) coupon systems, to the extent the systems interface with EGMs and related
systems; and

(11) other EGM-related systems as determined by the executive director.

(c) A product submission checklist to be completed by an applicant for or holder
of a gaming supplier certificate may be prescribed by the executive director.

(d) The chief engineer of the applicant for or holder of a gaming supplier
certificate or the engineer in charge of the division of the gaming supplier responsible for
producing the product submiited may be required by the executive director to attest that
the EGMs and associated equipment were properly and completely tested by the gaming
sapplier before submission to the commission.

(¢) An abbreviated testing and approval process may be utilized by the
commission in accordance with the act.

(f) If a facility manager develops software or a system that is functionally
equivalent to any of the electronic gaming systems specified in subsection (b), that
software or system shall be subject to the testing and approval process of this article to
the same extent as if the software or system were developed by a gaming supplier
certificate holder. Each reference in this article {0 the responsibilities of a gaming
supplier certificate holder shall apply to a facility manager developing software or

systems subject to testing and approval under this article.
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(g) When an applicant or gaming supplier certificate holder seeks to utilize the
abbreviated testing and approval process for an EGM prototype, associated device or
software, or any modification to an EGM prototype, associated device or software, the
applicant or supplier shall submit the following to the independent testing laboratory:

(1) A prototype of the equipment, device, or software accompanied by a written
request for abbreviated testing and approval that identifies the jurisdiction within the
United States upon which the applicant or supplier proposes that the commission rely.
The applicant or supplier shall transport the equipment, device, or software at its own
expense and deliver it to the offices of the independent testing laboratory;

(2) a certification executed by the chief engineer or engineer in charge of the
applicant or supplier verifying that all of the following conditions are met:

(A) Thé prototype or modification is identical in all mechanical, electrical, and
other respects to one that has been tested and approved by the testing facility operated by
the jurisdiction or private testing facility on behalf of the jurisdiction;

(B) the applicant or supplier is currently certified and in good standing in the
named jurisdiction, and the prototype has obtained all regulatory approvals necessary to
sale or distribution in the named jurisdiction;

(C) in the engineer's opinion, the testing standards of the named jurisdiction are
comprehensive and thorough and provide adequate safeguards that are similar to those

required by this article; and
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(D) in the engineer's opinion, the equipment, device, or software meets the
requirements of the act, this article, and the technical standards adopted by the
commission under article 110, including requirements related to the central computer
gystem;

(3) an executed copy of a product submission applicable to the submitted
equipment, device, or software unless a substantially similar checklist was filed with the
named jurisdiction and is included in the submission package required by paragraph
(8)(4);

(4) copies of the submission package and any amendments filed with the named
jurisdiction, copies of any correspondence, review lettérs, or approvals issued by the
testing facility operated by the named jurisdiction or a private testing facility on behalf of
the named jurisdiction and, if applicable, a copy of the final regulatory approval issued by
the named jurisdiction;

(5) a disclosure that details any conditions or limitations placed by the named
jurisdiction on the operation or placement of the equipment, device, or software at the
time of approval or following approval,

(6) a complete and accurate description of the manner in which the equipment,
device, or software was tested for compatibility and compliance with the central
computer system and protocol specifications approved by the Kansas lottery, including

the ability to communicate with the central computer system for the purpose of
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transmitting auditing program information, real-time information retrieval, and activation
and disabling of EGMs;

(7) any hardware, software, and other equipment, including applicable technical
support and maintenance, required by the independent testing laboratory to conduct the
abbreviated testing and approval process required by the act, this article, and the technical
standards adopted by the commission under article 110. The testing equipment and
services required by this subsection shall be provided at no cost to the commission; and

(8) any additional documentation requested by the commission that is necessary
to evaluate the EGM, associated equipment, or any modification.

(h) When an applicant or a gaming supplier seeks commission approval of an
BGM, equipment, device, or software, or any modification to which the abbreviated
testing process in subsection (f) is not applicable, the applicant or supplier shall submit
the following to the independent testing labdratory:

(1) A prototype of the equipment, device, or software accompanied by a written
request for testing and approval. The gaming supplier shall transport the equipment,
device, or software at its own expense and deliver the equipment, device, or software to
the offices of the commission's independent testing laboratory in accordance with
instructions provided;

(2) any certifications required under this regulation;

(3) an executed copy of a current product submission checklist;
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(4) a complete and accurate description of the equipment, device, or software,
accompanied by related diagrams, schematics, and specifications, together with
documentation with regard to the manner in which the product was tested before its
submission to the commission;

(5) any hardware, software, and other equipment, including applicable technical
support and maintenance, required by the independent testing laboratory to conduct the
testing and approval process required by the act, this article, and the technical standards
adopted by the commission under article 110. All testing equipment and services
required by this subsection shall be provided at no cost to the commission;

(6) for an EGM prototype, the following additional information, which shall be
provided to the commission:

(A) A copy of all operating software needed to run the EGM, including data and
graphics information, on electronically readable and unalterable media;

(B) a copy of all source code for programs that cannot be reasonably
demonstrated to have any use other than in an EGM, on electronically readable and
unalterable media;

(C) a copy of all graphical images displayed on the EGM, including reel strips,
rules, instructions, and pay tables;

(D) an explanation of the theoretical return to the player, listing all mathematical

assumptions, all steps in the formula from the first principles through the final results of
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all calculations including bonus payouts, and, when a game requires or permits player
skill in the theoretical derivations of the payout return, the source of strategy;

(E) hardware block diagrams of the major subsystems;

(F) acomplete set of schematics for all subsystems;

(G) a diagram of the wiring harness connection;

(H) a technical or operator manual;

(I) a description of the security methodologies incorporated into the design of the
EGM including, when applicable, encryption methodology for all alterable media, auto-
authentication of software, and recovery capability of the EGM for power interruption;

() a cross reference of product meters to the required meters specified in article
110;

(K) a description of tower light functions indicating the corresponding condition;

(L) a description of each error condition and the corresponding action required to
resolve the error;

(M) a description of the use and function of available electronic switch settings or
configurable options;

(N) a description of the pseudo random number generator or generators used to
determine the results of a wager, including a detailed explanation of operational
methodology, and a description of the manner by which the pseudo random number
generator and random number selection processes are impervious to outside influences,

interference from electromagnetic, electrostatic, and radio frequencies, and influence
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from ancillary equipment by means of data communications. Test results in support of
representations shall be submitted,

(O) specialized hardware, software, or testing equipment, including technical
support and maintenance, needed to complete the evaluation, which may include an
emulator for a specified microprocessor, personal computers, extender cables for the
central processing unit, target reel strips, and door defeats. The testing equipment and
services required by this subsection shall be provided at no cost to the comumission;

(P) a compiler, or reasonable access to a compiler, for the purpose of building
applicable code modules;

(Q) program storage media including erasable programmable read-only memory
(EPROM), electronically erasable programmable read-only memory (EEPROM), and any
type of alterable media for EGM software;

(R) technical specifications for any microprocessor or microcontrolier;

(S) a complete and accurate description of the manner in which the EGM was
tested for compatibility and compliance with the central computer system and protocol
specifications approved by the Kansas lottery, including the ability to communicate with
the central computer system for the purpose of transmitting auditing program
information, real-time information retrieval, and activation and disabling of EGMs; and

(T) any additional documentation requested by the commission relating to the

EGM;
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(7) if an BEGM prototype is modified, including a change in theme, the following
additional information, which shall be provided to the commission:

(A) A complete and accurate description of the proposed modification to the
EGM prototype, accompanied by applicable diagrams, schematics, and specifications;

(B) when a change in theme is involved, a copy of the graphical images displayed
on the EGM, including ;‘eel strips, rules, instructions, and pay tables;

(C) when a change in the computation of the theoretical payout percentage is
involved, a mathematical explanation of the theoretical return to the player, listing all
assumptions, all steps in the formula from the first principles through the final results of
all calculations including bonus payouts, and, when a game requires or permits player
skill in the theoretical derivations of the payout return, the source of strategy; |

(D) a complete and accurate description of the manner in which the EGM was
tested for compatibility and compliance with the central computer system and protocol
specifications approved by the Kansas lottery, including the ability to communicate with
the central computer system for the purpose of transmitting auditing program
information, real-time information retrieval and activation, and the disabling of EGMs;
and

(E) any additional documentation requested by the commission relating to the
modification of the EGM;

(8) for an electronic gaming monitoring system, casino management system,

player tracking system, wide-area progressive system, gaming ticket system, external
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bonusing system, cashless funds transfer system, automated gaming ticket, coupon
redemption or jackpot payout machine, coupon system, or any other equipment or system
required to be tested and approved under subsection (b), the following:

(A) A technical manual;

(B) a description of security methodologies incorporated into the design of the
system, which shall include the following, when applicable:

(i) Password protection;

(i) encryption methodology and its application;

(i1i) automatic authentication; and

(iv) network redundancy, backup, and recovery procedures;

(C) acomplete schematic or network diagram of the system's major components
accompanied by a description of each component's functionality and a software object
report;

(D) a description of the data flow, in narrative and in schematic form, including
specifics with regard to data cabling and, when appropriate, communications
methodology for multisite applications;

(E) a list of computer operating systems and third-party software incorporated
into the system, together with a description of their interoperability;

(F) system software and hardware installation procedures;

(G) a list of available system reports;
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(H) when applicable, features for each system, which may include patron and
employee card functions, promotions, reconciliation procedures, and patron services;

() a description of the interoperability testing, including test results for each
submitted system's connection to EGMs, to ticket, coupon redemption, and jackpot
payout machines, and to computerized systems for counting money, tickets, and coupons.
This list shall identify the tested products by gaming supplier, model, and software
identification and version number;

(1) anarrative describing the method used to authenticate software;

(K) all source codes;

(L) a complete and accurate description, accompanied by applicable diagrams,
schemaﬁcs, and specifications, of the creation of a ticket and the redemption options
available;

(M) a complete and technically accurate description, accompanied by applicable
diagrams, schematics, and specifications, of the creation of a coupon and the redemption
options available;

(N) any specialized hardware, software, or other equipment, including applicable
technical support and maintenance required by the independent testing laboratory to
conduct the testing and approval process required by the act, this article, and the technical
standards adopted by the commission under article 110. The testing equipment and

services required by this subsection shall be provided at no cost to the commission; and
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(O) any additional documentation requested by the executive director related to
the equipment or system being tested; and

(9) for a modification to any of the systems identified in paragraph (h)(8), the
following additional information:

(A) A complete and accurate description of the proposed modification to the
system, accompanied by applicable diagrams, schematics, and specifications;

(B) anarrative disclosing the purpose for the modification; and

(C) any additional documentation requested by the executive director relating to
the modification.

(i) A trial period may be required by the commission to assess the functionality
of the prototype or modification in a live gaming environment. The conduct of the trial
period shall be subject to compliance by the gaming supplier and the facility manager
with any conditions that may be required by the commission. These conditions may
include development and implementation of product-specific accounting and internal
controls, periodic data reporting to the commission, and compliance with the technical
standards adopted under article 110 on trial periods or the prototype or modification
adopted by the commission. Termination of the trial period may be ordered by the
executive director if the executive director determines that the gaming supplier or the
facility manager conducting the trial period has not complied with the conditions required

by the commission or that the product is not performing as expected.
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(j) At the conclusion of the testing of a prototype or modification, the
independent testing laboratory shall report the results of its testing to the commission.
Upon receipt of the independent testing laboratory's report, any one of the following shall
be done by the commission:

(1) Approve;

(2) approve with conditions;

(3) reject the submitted prototype or modification; or

(4) require additional testing or a trial period under subsection (i).

(k) A facility manager shall not install an EGM or associated equipment, or any
modification, required to be tested and approved under subsection (b) unless the
equipment, device, or software has been approved by the commission and issued a
certificate authorizing its use at the gaming facility. The certificate shall be prominently
displayed on the approved deyice. A facility manager shall not modify, alter, or tamper
with an approved EGM, the associated equipment, or a commission-issued ceriificate.
Before the removal of the EGM or associated equipment from the gaming facility, the
certificate shall be removed by a commission agent. An EGM or the associated
equipment installed in 2 gaming facility in contravention of this requirement shall be
subject to seizure by any Kansas law enforcement officer.

() The installation of a modification to an EGM prototype or the associated
equipment prototype may be authorized by the executive director on an emergency basis

to prevent cheating or malfunction, upon the written request of a gaming supplier. The
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request shall specify the name and employer of any persons to be involved in the
installation of the modification and the manner in which the installation is to be effected.
Within 15 days of receipt of any authorization to install an emergency modification, the
gaming supplier shall submit the modification for full testing and approval in accordance
with this article.

(m) Each facility manager shall, no later than four hours after detection, notify
the commission’s security staff of any known or suspected defect or malfunction in any
EGM or associated equipment installed in the gaming facility. The facility manager shall
comply with any instructions from the commission staff for use of the EGM or associated
equipment.

(n) Each facility manager shall file a master list of approved gaming machines as
required by K.A.R. 112-107-10. (Authorized by K.S8.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772;

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8749, 74-8750, and 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-107-5. Transportation of EGMs. (a) The transportation of any EGM inio or out
of this state shall be approved in advance by the executive director. The person causing
the EGM to be transported or moved shall notify the executive director of the proposed
importation or exportation at least 15 days before the EGM is moved. The notice shall
include the following information:

(1) lThe name and address of the person shipping or moving the EGM;

(2) the name and address of the person who manufactured, assembled,
distributed, or resold the EGM, if different from the person shipping or moving the
machine;

(3) the name and address of a new owner if ownership is being changed in
conjunction with the shipment or movement;

(4) the method of shipment or movement and the name and address of the
common carrier or carriers, if applicable;

(5) the name and address of the person to whom the EGM is being sent and the
destination of the EGM, if different from that address;

(6) the quantity of EGMs being shipped or moved and the manufacturer’s make,
model, and serial number of each machine;

(7) the expected date and time of delivery to, or removal from, any authorized
location within this state;

(8) the port of entry or exit, if any, of the EGM if the origin or destination of the

EGM is outside the continental United States; and
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(9) the reason for transporting or moving the EGM.

(b) Each shipment of EGMs shall be sealed before being transported. On arrival
at the gaming facility, the shipment shall not be opened or inventoried until the seal is
witnessed and broken by an agent of the commission. An agent of the commission shall
verify that the EGMs are unloaded, inventoried, and compared to the notice required in
subsection (a). The software shall not be loaded in the machine before shipment.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-107-6. Off-premises storage of EGMs. (a) A gaming licensee shall not store
EGMs off the premises of the gaming facility without prior approval from the
commission.

(b) Each gaming licensee seeking to store EGMs off the premises of the gaming
facility shall file a written request for off-premises storage with the executive director.
The request shall include all of the following:

(1) The location and a physical description of the proposed storage facility;

(2) a description of the type of surveillance system that has been or will be
installed at the storage facility;

(3) the gaming licensee’s plan to provide continuous security at the storage
facility;

(4) the number and the name of the manufacturer of the EGMs that will be stored
at the facility;

(5) the date tha_it the EGMs are expected to arrive at the storage facility; and

(6) the date that the EGMs are expected to be moved to the gaming facility.

(c) Before acting on a request for off-premises storage of EGMs, agents of the
commission shall inspect the proposed storage facility.

(d) Each request shall be responded to by the executive director within 30 days.
Any request approved by the executive director may be subject to specific terms and

conditions imposed by the executive director.
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(e) No software shall be loaded in an EGM during storage. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- 2
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112-107-7. Gaming floor plan. (a) Each applicant or gaming facility manager shall
submit to the commission a floor plan of its gaming floor and the restricted areas
servicing the electronic gaming operation. The floor plan shall include depictions drawn
to a scale of 1/8 inch per foot, unless another scale is approved by the executive director,
of the following:

(1) Each EGM area on the gaming floor and each EGM location within each
EGM area. EGM locations shall be identified by number;

(2) the cage and any satellite cage, including each cage window and window
number;

(3) each count room and any trolley storage area;

(4) each automated bill validator, gaming ticket redemption machine, coupon
redemption machine, and jackpot payout machine;

(5) each automated teller machine;

(6) each area designated for the storage or repair of EGMs;

(7) the location of each vault and armored car bay; and

(8) any additional documentation requested by the executive director relating to
the floor plan for the gaming floor.

(b) A gaming facility manager shall not commence electronic gaming operations
until the floor plan depicting the facility manager’s gaming floor and all restricted areas

servicing the electronic gaming operation has been approved in writing by the executive

director. i
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(c) A gaming facility manager shall not change the number, configuration, or
location of EGMs on the floor plan approved under subsection (b) without the prior

written approval of the executive director. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772,

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8752 and 74-8772; effective P- J
/ATTORNEY GENERAL
. OF ADMINISTRATION
GEP 1 0 2003 DEPT.O
APPROVED SEP 69 2008
T MF

E.4.g (23 of 85)



112-107-9. Testing and software installation on the live gaming floor. (a) Each
gaming licensee shall notify the executive director in writing at least 72 hours before
testing any BGMs, associated equipment, and displays on a gaming floor during the
gaming licensee’s gaming hours. The notification shall include the following:

(1) A detailed narrative description of the type of testing to be conducted,
including the reason for the testing, a list of individuals conducting the testing, and the
gaming licensee's procedures for conducting the testing;

(2) the date, time, and approximate duration of the testing;

(3) the model, EGM location number, and asset number of the EGM or machines
to be tested; and

~ (4) the location within the gaming facility where the testing shall occur.

(b) Each gaming licensee shall notify the executive director at least 72 hours
before installing any new software or installing any change in previously approved
software for the following:

(1) Automated gaming ticket and coupon redemption machines;

(2) wide-area progressive systems;

(3) electronic gaming monitoring systems;

(4) casino management systems;

(5) player tracking systems;

(6) external bonusing systems, as specified in K.A.R. 112-107-26;

(7) cashless funds transfer systems;
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(8) server-supported electronic gaming systems;

(9) server-based electronic gaming systems; and

(10) automated jackpot payout machines.

(c) The notification required by subsection (b) shall include the following:

(1) A description of the reasons for the new installation or change in previously
approved software;

(2) a list of the computer components and the programs or versions to be
modified or replaced;

(3) a description of any screens, menus, reports, operating processes,
configurable options, or settings that will be affected,;

(4) the method to be used to complete the proposed installation;

(5) the date that the proposed modification will be installed and the estimated
time for completion;

(6) the name, title, and employer of the persons performing the installation;

(7) a diagrammatic representation of the proposed hardware design change;

(8) restrictions on access to the production code by the person implementing the
installation; and

(9) procedures to ensure that user and operator manuals are updated to reflect
changes in policies and procedures resulting from the proposed installation. (Authorized
by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8750 and 74-8772;

effective P- )
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112-107-10. Master list of approved gaming machines. (a) At least 20 days before
commencing gaming, each facility manager shall file with the commission, in writing, a
complete list of the EGMs and gaming equipment possessed by the facility manager on
its gaming floor, in restricted areas off the gaming floor but within the gaming facility as
approved by the commission under K.AR. 1i2— 104-26, and in storage locations in this
state off the premises of the gaming facility as approved by the commission under K.A.R.
112-107-6. The list shall be titled as a master list of approved gaming machines.

(b) The master list of approved gaming machines shall contain the following
information that, for those EGMs and the gaming equipment located on the gaming floor,
shall be presented for each EGM and gaming equipment in consecutive order by the
EGM or gaming equipment location number under K.A R, 112-107-8:

(1) The date the list was prepared,

(2) adescription of each EGM and all gaming equipment, using the following:

(A) Asset number and model and manufacturer's serial number;

(B) computer program number and version,

(C) denomination, if configured for multiple denominations, and a list of the
denominations;

(D) manufacturer and machine type, noting cabinet type;

(E) if an EGM, specification of whether the EGM is a progressive or a wide-area

progressive EGM;
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(F) an indication as to whether the EGM or gaming equipment is configured to
communicate with a cashless funds transfer system;

(G) an indication as to whether the EGM or gaming equipment is configured to
communicate with a gaming ticket system,

(H) designation of which specific surveillance video system cameras will be able
to view that specific machine; and

(I} commission certificate number;

(3) for those EGMs or gaming equipment located off the gaming floor, an
indication as to whether the EGM or gaming equipment is in a restricted area off the
gaming floor but within the gaming facility under K.A.R. 112-104-26 oris ina
commission-approved storage location in this state off the premises of the gaming facility
under K.AR. 112-107-6; and

(4) any additional relevant information requested by the commission.

(c) If an EGM or gaming equipment has been placed in an authorized location on
the gaming floor or is stored in a restricted area off the gaming floor but within the
gaming facility as approved by the commission under K.A.R. 112-104-26, then all
subsequent movements of that EGM or gaming equipment within the gaming facility
shall be recorded by an EGM department member in a machine movement log, which
shall include the following:

(1) The asset number and model and the manufacturer’s serial number of the

moved EGM or gaming equipment;
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(2) the date and time of movement;

(3) the location from which the EGM or gaming equipment was moved;

(4) the location to which the EGM or gaming equipment was moved,;

(5) the date and time of any required notice to the Kansas lottery in connection
with the activation or disabling of the EGM in the central computer system;

(6) the signature of the EGM shift manager and the commissjon’s electronic
gaming inspector verifying the movement of the EGM or gaming equipment in
compliance with this regulation; and

(7) any other relevant information the commission may require.

(d) Before moving an EGM or any gaming equipment that has been placed in an
authorized location on the gaming floor, the facility manager shall remove the bill
validator canister drop box and transport the drop box to the count room in accordance
with the procedures in K.A.R. 112-104-18.

(e) The facility manager shall daily submit documentation summarizing the
movement of EGMs and gaming equipment within a gaming facility to the commission,
in writing or in an electronic format approved by the commission.

(f) On the first Tuesday of each month following the initial filing of a master list
of approved gaming machines, a facility manager shall file with the commission, in
writing or in an electronic format approved by the commission, an updated master list of

approved gaming machines containing the information required in subsection (b}.
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(g) Each gaming supplier and each regulatory or law enforcement agency that
possesses EGMs under K.A.R. 112-107-4 shall file with the commission, in writing or in
an electronic format approved by the commission, a complete list of the EGMs possessed
by the entity. The list shall be titled as a master list of approved gaming machines and
shall be filed within three business days of the initial receipt of the EGMs. Each list shall
contain the following information:

(1) The date on which the list was prepared; and

(2) a description of each EGM by the following:

(A) Model and manufacturer’s serial number;

(B) manufacturer and machine type, noting cabinet type; and

(C) specification of whether the EGM is a progressive or a wide-area progressive
EGM.

(h) On the first Tuesday of each month following the initial filing of a master list
of approved gaming machines, those persons specified in subsection (f) shall file with the
commission, in writing or in an electronic format approved by the commission, an
updated master list of approved gaming machines containing the information required in

subsection (g). (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.3.A. 2007

Supp. 74-8750 and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-107-11. Notice to cenfral computer system. Each gaming licensee shall obtain
authorization from the executive director and the Kansas lottery’s executive director
before doing any of the following:

(1) Placing an EGM on the gaming floor;

(2) moving an EGM to a different location on the gaming floor; or

(3) removing an EGM from the gaming floor. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp.

74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8749, 74-8750, and 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-107-13. Commencement of electronic gaming operations. (a) Each facility
manager shall demonstrate that the facility manager has met all of the following
conditions before commencing electronic gaming at a gaming facility:

(1) The gaming facility, including the gaming floor and restricted areas servicing
the electronic gaming operation, meets all the applicable requirements of the act, this
article, and article 110.

(2) Bach EGM and the associated equipment installed in the gaming facility and
utilized in the conduct of EGM operations have been tested and apbroved by the
commission in compliance with the act, this article, and article 110.

(3) The gaming floor plan required under K.A.R. 112-107-7(a) has been
approved by the executive director in compliance with the act, this article, and article
110.

(4) The facility manager's internal control system has been approved by the
commission in compliance with the act, this article, K.A.R 112-104-1, and article 110.

(5) The facility manager is prepared to implement necessary management
controls, surveillance, and security precautions to ensure the efficient conduct of
electronic gaming operations.

(6) The facility manager's employees are licensed or permitted by the
commission and are trained in the performance of their responsibilities.

(7) The gaming facility is prepared in all respects to receive the public.

(8) The facility manager has successfully completed a test period,
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(9) For racetrack gaming facility managers, the facility manager has met the live
racing requirements under the act.

(b) When a facility manager meets the requirements in subsection (a), the date
and time at which the facility manager may begin gaming operations at the gaming
facility shall be authorized by the commission. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74~
8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8749, 74-8750, and 74-8772; effective P-

y)
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112-107-14. EGM conversions. Each gaming licensee shall meet the following
requirements:
(a) Maintain complete and accurate records of all EGM conversions;

(b) give prior written notice of each EGM conversion to the commission; and

(c) notify the Kansas lottery commission in accordance with K.A.R. 112-107-11.

(Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8750,

74-8752, and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-107-15. Revocations and additional conditions. The approval of or imposition of
additional conditions on an EGM prototype, associated equipment prototype, or
modification may be revoked by the commission if the equipment, device, or software
meets either of the following conditions:

(a) The equipment, device, or software does not meet the requirements of the act,
this article, or article 110.

(b) The EGM, or modification to the EGM, is not compatible or compliant with
the central computer system and protocol specifications approved by the Kansas lottery
commission or is unable to communicate with the central computer system for the
purpose of transmitting auditing program information, real-time information retrieval,
and the activation and disabling of EGMs. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772;

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8749, 74-8750, and 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-107-16. Kiosks as automated gaming ticket and coupon redemption machines.
(a) Any gaming licensee may utilize a kiosk as an automated gaming ticket and coupon
redemption machine if that machine has been tested and approved by the commission
under K.A.R. 112-107-3.

(b) Automated gaming ticket and coupon redemption machines may be located
on or proximate to the gaming floor of a gaming facility and shall be subject to
surveillance coverage under article 106. Each kiosk shall have imprinted, affixed, or
impressed on the outside of the machine a unique asset identification number.

(c) Each kiosk shall meet the requirements of article 110.

(d) Before using a kiosk, a gaming licensee shall establish a comprehensive
system of internal controls addressing the distribution of currency or coin, or both, to the
machines, the removal of gaming tickets, coupons or currency accepted by the machines,
and the associated reconciliations. The internal controls shall be submitted to and
approved by the commission under K.A.R. 112-104-1.

(e) Each kiosk or the ancillary systems, applications, and equipment associated
with reconciliation shall be capablel of producing the following reports upon request:

(1) A gaming ticket transaction report. The report shall include the disposition of
gaming tickets, including whether the ticket has been paid, partially paid, unpaid, or
accepted by a kiosk, which shall include the validation number, the date and time of
redemption, amount requested, and the amount dispensed. This information shall be

available by reconciliation period, which may be by day, shift, or drop cycle;
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(2) a coupon transaction report. This report shall include the payment disposition
of coupons accepted by a kiosk, which shall include the unique serial number, the date
and time of redemption, the amount requested, and the amount dispensed. The
information shall be available by reconciliation period, which may be by day, shift, or
drop cycle;

(3) areconciliation report. The report shall include all of the following:

(A) Report date and time;

(B) unique asset identification number of the machine;

(C) total cash balance of the currency cassettes;

(D) total count of currency accepted by denomination;,

(E) total dollar amount of tickets accepted,

(F) total count of gaming tickets accepted;

(G) total dollar amount of coupons accepted; and

(H) total count of coupons accepted;

(4) gaming ticket, coupon, and currency storage box report. The report shall be
generated, at a minimum, whenever a gaming ticket, coupon, or currency storage box is
removed from a kiosk. The report shall include all of the following:

(A) Report date and time;

(B) unique asset identification number of the machine;

(C) unique identification number for each storage box in the machine;

(D) total value of currency dispensed;
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(E) total number of bills dispensed by denomination;

(F) total dollar value of gaming tickets accepted;

(G) total count of gaming tickets accepted;

(H) total dollar value of coupons accepted;

(I) total count of coupons accepted; and

(J) the details required to be included in the gaming ticket transaction report
required by paragraph (e)(1) and the coupon transaction report required in paragraph
(e)(2); and

(5) atransaction report. The report shall include all critical patron transaction
history, including the date, time, amount, and disposition of each complete and
incomplete transaction. If a kiosk is capable of redeeming multiple tickets or coupons in
a single transaction, the transaction history shall include a breakdown of the transaction

with regard to the individual gaming tickets and coupons accepted. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- J
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112-107-17. Automated jackpot payqut machines. (a) Any gaming licensee may
utilize an automated jackpot payout machine that has been tested and approved by the
commission under K.AR. 112-107-3.

(b) Each automated jackpot payout machine shall meet the requirements of the
act, this article, and article 110.

(c) Before using an automated jackpot payout machine, each gaming licensee
shall establish a comprehensive system of internal controls for the payment of jackpot
payouts utilizing an automated jackpot payout machine and the distribution of currency
or coin, or both, to the machines. The internal controls shall be submitted to and
approved by the commission under K.A.R. 112-104-1. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007

Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8750 and 74-8772; effective P-

)
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112-107-18. Gaming tickets. (a) A facility manager may utilize gaming tickets and a
gaming ticket system that has been tested and approved by the commission under K.A.R.
112-107-3.

(b) Bach facility manager shall establish a system of internal controls for the
issuance and redemption of gaming tickets. The internal controls shall be submitted and
approved by the commission under K.A.R. 112-104-1 and shall address the following:

(1) The procedures for assigning an EGM's asset number, identifying other
redemption locations in the system, and enabling and disabling ticket capabilities for
EGMs and redemption locations;

(2) the procedures for issuance, modification, and termination of a unique system
account for each user in accordance with article 110;

(3) the procedures used to configure and maintain user passwords in accordance
with article 110;

(4) the procedures for restricting special rights and privileges, including
administrator and override capabilities, in accordance with article 110;

(5) the duties and responsibilities of the information technology, internal audit,
electronic gaming operations, cage, and accounting departments and the level of access
for each position with regard to the gaming ticket system;

(6) a description of physical controls on all critical hardware, including locks and
surveillance. This description shall include the location and security protocols applicable

to each piece of equipment;
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(7) the procedures for the backup and timely recovery of critical data in
accordance with article 110; and

(8) the use of logs to document and maintain the details of commission-approved
hardware and software modifications upon implementation.

(¢) The system of internal controls required in subsection (b) shall also include
controls over the issnance and redemption of gaming tickets and shall include all of the
following requirements:

(1) Upon presentation of a gaming ticket for redemption, the electronic gaming
cashier or EGM shall use the gaming ticket system to verify the validity of the serial
number and value of the ticket, and if valid, the system shall immediately cancel the
ticket electronically and permit the redemption of the ticket for the value printed thereon.
Before redeeming a gaming ticket, the complete serial number of the unredeemed gaming
ticket shall be available only to the system.

(2) The facility manager shall maintain a record of all transactions in the gaming
ticket system for at least 210 days from the date of the transaction.

(3) Each gaming ticket shall expire in not less than 180 days from the date of
issuance if not redeemed.

(4) A gaming ticket system shall not be configured to issue a gaming ticket
exceeding $10,000.

(5) The facility manager shall maintain a record of unredeemed gaming tickets

for all gaming tickets that were issued but not redeemed. The record shall be stored in
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the system for a period of time approved by the executive director, which shall be at least
one year from the date of issuance of the gaming ticket. The following requirements
shall apply:

(A) Each unredeemed gaming ticket record removed from the system after one
year shall be stored and controlled in a manner approved by the commission.

(B) Each unredeemed gaming ticket record removed from the system shall be
subject to the standard record retention requirements of this article.

(d) The system of internal controls required to be .submitted and approved by the
commission under subsection (b) shall also include procedures to be used in the
following instances:

(1) If the facility manager chooses to pay a patron the represented value of a
gaming ticket notwithstanding the fact that the gaming ticket system is inoperable,
rendering the manager unable to determine the validity of the gaming ticket at the time of
payment. The system of internal conirols shall include procedures to verify the ticket
once the gaming ticket system becomes operable in accordance with article 110; and

(2) if the facility manager chooses to pay a patron the value of a gaming ticket
notwithstanding the fact that the gaming ticket system failed to verify and electronically
cancel the gaming ticket when it was scanned. Each payment by the facility manager

shall be treated as a complimentary. These payments shall not result in a deduction from

EGM income.
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(e) At the end of each gaming day, the gaming ticket system shall be caused by
the facility manager to generate reports, and the reports shall be provided to the
manager’s accounting department, either directly by the system or through the
management information systems department. The report, at a minimum, shall contain
the following information:

" (1) A list of all gaming tickets that have been issued, including the asset number
and the serial number of the EGM, and the value, date, and time of issuance of each
gaming ticket;

(2) a list of all gaming tickets that have been redeemed and cancelled, including
the redemption location, the asset number of the EGM or location if other than an EGM,
the serial number, the value, date, and time of redemption for each ticket, the total value
of all gaming tickets redeemed at EGMs, and the total value of all gaming tickets
redeemed at locations other than EGMs; |

(3) the liability for unredeemed gaming tickets;

(4) the readings on gaming ticket-related EGM meters and a comparison of the
readings to the number and value of issued and redeemed gaming tickets, as applicable;

(5) the exception reports and audit logs; and

(6) any other relevant reports as required by the executive director.

() Each facility manager shall, at the time of discovery, report to the commission

audit staff any evidence that a gaming ticket has been counterfeited, tampered with, or
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altered in any way that would affect the integrity, accuracy, reliability, or suitability of
the gaming ticket.

(2) Upon any attempt to redeem a gaming ticket when the total value of which
gaming ticket cannot be completely converted into an equivalent value of credits, the
EGM shall perform one of the following procedures:

(1) Automatically issue a new gaming ticket containing the value that cannot be
completely converted,

(2) not redeem the gaming ticket and return the gaming ticket to the patron; or

(3) allow for the additional accurmulation of credits on a meter that displays the
value in dollars and cents.

(h) Each facility manager that utilizes a system or an EGM that does not print a
test gaming ticket that is visually distinguishable from a redeemable gaming ticket shall
adopt internal controls for all of the following:

(1) The issuance of test currency from the cage; and

(2) the return and reconciliation of the test currency and any gaming tickets
printed during the testing process.

(i) Except as provided in subsection (m), each gaming ticket shall be redeemed
by a patron for cash, EGM credits, or a check issued by the facility manager in the
amount of the gaming ticket redeemed. A facility manager shall not permit redemption
of a gaming ticket if the facility manager knows or has reason to know that the ticket

meets any of the following conditions:
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(1) Is different from the sample of the gaming ticket approved by the
commission,

(2) was previously redeemed; or

(3) was printed as a test gaming ticket.

(j) Any facility manager may effectuate redemption requests submitted by mail.
Gaming tickets redeemed by mail may only be redeemed by a cage supervisor in
accordance with internal controls approved by the commission under K.A.R. 112-104-1
that include the following:

(1) Procedures for using the gaming ticket system to verify the ;ralidity of the
serial number and value of the ticket that, if valid, shall be immediately cancelled
electronically by the system; and

(2) procedures for the issuance of a check equal to the value of the ticket.

(k) Gaming tickets redeemed at cashier locations shall be transferred to the
facility manager’s accounting department on a daily basis. The gaming tickets redeemed
by EGMs shall be counted in the count room and forwarded to the manager’s accounting
department upon the conclusion of the count process. The gaming tickets redeemed at
automated gaming ticket redemption machines shall be forwarded to the manager’s
accounting department upon the conclusion of the cage reconciliation process. The
manager’s accounting department employees shall perform the following, at a minimum:

(1) On a daily basis, the following:
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(A) Compare gaming ticket system report data to any count room system report
data available for that gaming day to ensure proper electronic cancellation of the gaming
ticket; and

(B) calculate the unredeemed liability for gaming tickets, either manually or by
means of the gaming ticket system; and

(2) on a weekly basis, compare appropriate EGM meter readings to the number
and value of issued and redeemed gaming tickets per the gaming ticket system. Meter
readings obtained through an electronic gaming monitoring system may be utilized to
complete this comparison.

(1) Bach facility manager shall provide written notice to the commission audit
staff of any adjustment to the value of any gaming ticket. The notice shall be made
before or concurrent with the adjustment.

(m) Employees of a facility manager who are authorized to receive gratuities
under K.A.R. 112-104-27 may redeem gaming tickets given as gratuities only at a cage.
Gaming tickets valued at more than $100 shall be redeemed at the cage only with the
approval of the supervisor of the cashier conducting the redemption transaction.

(n) Each gaming ticket system shall be configured to alert each facility manager
to any malfunction in accordance with article 110. Following a malfunction of a system,
the facility manager shall notify the commission within 24 hours of the malfunction and

shall not utilize the system until the malfunction has been eliminated. A facility manager
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may be permitted by the executive director to utilize the system before the system is
restored, for a period not to exceed 72 hours, if all of the following conditions are met:

(1) The malfunction is limited to a single storage media device, including a hard
disk drive.

(2) The system contains a backup storage media device not utilized in the normal
operation of the system. The backup device shall automatically replace the
malfunctioning device and permit a complete recovery of all information in the event of
an additional rhalﬁmction.

(3) Continued use of the malfunctioning system would not inhibit the ability to
perform a complete recovery of all information and would not otherwise harm or affect
the normal operation of the system.

(0) Other than a modification to a gaming ticket system that is required on an
emergency basis to prevent cheating or malfunction and is approved by the executive
director under K.A.R. 112-107-3(m), a modification to a gaming ticket system shall not

be installed without being tested and approved under K.A R. 112-107-3. (Authorized by
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112-107-19. Coupons. (a) Any gaming licensee may utilize coupons and a coupon
system that has been tested and approved by the commission under K.A.R. 112-107-3.

(b) The design specifications for the coupon shall meet the requirements of
article 110.

(c) The design specifications for the coupon system shall meet the requirements
of article 110.

(d) Each gaming licensee shall establish a system of internal controls for the
issuance and redemption of coupons before issuing any coupon. The internal controls
shall be submitted to and approved by the commission under K.A.R. 112-104-1. The
system of internal controls shall include the following requirements:

(1) The package containing the coupons shall be opened and examined by at least
two members of the accounting department. Each deviation between the invoice and
contro] listing accompanying the coupons, the purchase or requisition order, and the
actual coupons received shall be reported to the controller or to a higher authority in a
direct reporting line and to the director of internal audit.

(2) Upon examination of the coupons, the gaming licensee shall cause to be
recorded in a coupon control ledger the type and quantity of coupons received, the date of
the receipt, the beginning serial number, the ending serial number, the new quantity of
unissued coupons on hand, the purchase order or requisition number, any deviations
between the number of coupons ordered and the number received, and the signature of

any individual who examined the coupons.
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(3} All unissued coupons shall be stored in the cage, controlled by a cage
department supervisor.

(4) A representative from the internal audit department shall prepare a monthly
inventory of unissued coupons. Any deviations between the coupon inventory and the
coupon control ledger shall be reported to the controller and the director of internal audit.

(5) A representative of the gaming licensee shall estimate the number of coupons
needed by shift each day. An accounting department employee shall obtain the quantity
of coupons to be issued. If a date indicating when the coupon becomes invalid is not
preprinted on the coupon, the accounting department employee shall affix a stamp
indicating the date the coupon becomes invalid. The following, at a minimum, shall be
recorded in the coupon control ledger:

(A) The date the coupons were issued;

(B) the type of coupons issued;

(C) the beginning serial number of the coupons issued;

(D) the ending serial number of the coupons issued;

(E) the quantity issued and the quantity remaining; and

(F) the signatures of the accounting department employee issuing the coupons
and any other department's employee receiving the coupons.

(6) The gaming licensee shall require unused coupons obtained from the
accounting department employee to be stored in a locked cabinet until the coupons are

distributed to patrons. All coupons remaining unused at the end of a shift shall be either
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returned to the cage department for receipt and redistribution or kept for use by the
following shift if accountability between shifts is maintained. All expired coupons shall
be returned to the cage department on a daily basis. Any coupons that are not used by the
expiration date indicated on the coupons shall be voided when returned to the cage
department.

(7) Documentation shall be prepared by a representative of the gaming licensee
for the distribution of coupons to patrons. The documentation shall include the following
information, at a minimum:

(A) The date and time or the shift of preparation;

(B) the type of coupons used;

(C) the beginning serial number of the coupons used;

(D) the ending serial number of the coupons used;

(E) the total number of coupons used,

(F) the total number of coupons remaining for use by the next shift or returned to
the accounting department; and

(G) the signatures of the gaming licensee’s representatives who distributed the
COUpons.

(8) The coupons shall be redeemed in the following manner:

(A) Coupons redeemable for cash or tokens shall be redeemed only by change
persons or at cashiers’ booths, the cage, or at any other location within the gaming

facility approved by the commission. A change person, booth cashier, or general cage
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cashier shall accept the coupons in exchange for the stated amount of cash or tokens.
Coupons accepted for redemption shall be cancelled by those authorized to accept
coupons. Cancellation of coupons shall be done in a manner that cancels the coupon
number and shall permit subsequent identification of the individual who accepted and
cancelled the coupon. Redeemed coupons shall be maintained and shall be submitted to
the main bank not less frequently than at the conclusion of each day.

(B) Coupons redeemable for wagers shall be accepted only in exchange for the
wagers stated on the coupons. Cancellation of coupons shall be done in a manner that
permits subsequent identification of the individual who accepted and cancelled the
coupon, Redeemed coupons shall be maintained and shall be submitted to the main bank
not less frequently than at the conclusion of each gaming day.

(C) A coupon redeemable for gaming chips shall be redeemed only by one of the
following ways:

(i) At a gaming table and only by a dealer or first-level supervisor who supervises
the game, who shall accept the coupon in exchange for the stated amount of gaming chips
and shall deposit the coupon into the drop box upon acceptance; or

(i) by a chip person, who shall accept the coupon only from a patron seated at a
poker table at which a game is in progress in exchange for the stated amount of gaming
chips and shall cancel the coupon upon acceptance. The coupon shall be cancelled in a

manner that permits subsequent identification of the individual who accepted and
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cancelled the coupon. The cancelled coupons shall be exchanged with the main bank at
the conclusion of the chip person’s shift, at a minimum.

(D) A match play coupon shall be redeemed only at a gaming table that offers an
authorized game in which patrons wager only against the house. The coupon shall be
redeemed only by a dealer and only if accompanied by the proper amount of gaming
chips required by the coupon. The dealer shall accept the coupon as part of the patron's
wager and deposit the coupon into the drop box after the wager is won or lost.

(9) Documentation on unused coupons, voided coupons, and redeemed coupons
maintained shall be forwarded on a daily basis to the accounting department, which shall
perform the following regarding the coupons:

(A) Review for the propriety of signatures on documentation and for proper
cancellation of coupons;

(B) examine for proper calculation, summarization, and recording on
documentation, including the master game report;

(C) reconcile by the total number of coupons given to representatives of the
department making distribution to patrons, returned for reissuance, distributed to patrons,
voided, and redeemed;

(D) record; and

(E) maintain and control until destruction of the coupons is approved by the

commission. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-
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112-107-20. EGM computer systems. (a) All components of a facility manager’s
production EGM computer system shall be located within the gaming facility. Asused in
this regulation, “production EGM computer system™ shall mean the facility manager’s
primary EGM computer system comprised of a collection of hardware and software used
to process or monitor EGM activity in real time. A production EGM computer system
shall include any segregated testing component.

(b) With the written approval of the executive director, a facility manager’s back-
up EGM computer systemn, or any part of it, may be located in a secure and remote
computer that is under the custody and control of an affiliate, intermediary, subsidiary, or
holding company approved by the commission, referred to as a *‘host entity.”” A backup
EGM computer system may consist of either of the following:

(1) A mirrored backup system that duplicates the production system by
recording all slot-related operations on a real-time basis and is designed to become the
production system whenever needed; or

(2) a periodic backup system that consists of regularly scheduled recording of
selected data, which may include a complete image of the production system or any
portion of the system.

(¢} Ata minimum, each facility manager requesting authorization to allow a
backup EGM computer system to reside outside the gaming facility shall certify that both

of the following conditions are met:
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(1) Communications between the remote computer and the facility manager’s
EGM computer system occur using a dedicated and secure communication medium,
which may include a leased line.

(2) The remote computer automatically performs the following functions:

(A) Generates daily monitoring logs and real-time alert messages to inform the
facility manager and host entity of any system performance problems and hardware
problems;

(B) generates daily monitoring logs and real-time alert messages to inform the
facility manager of any software errors;

(C) generates daily monitoring logs to inform the facility manager of any
unsuccessful attempts by a device, person, or process to obtain computer access;

(D) authenticates the identity of every device, person, and process from which
communications are received before granting computer access to the device, person, or
process;

(E) ensures that data sent through a transmission is completely and accurately
received; and

(F) detects the presence of corrupt or lost data and, as necessary, rejects the
transmission.

(d) Unless a remote computer is used exclusively to maintain the EGM computer
system of the facility manager, the system shall be partitioned in a manner approved by
the executive director and shall include the following:
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(1) A partition manager that meets the following requirements:

(A) The partition manager shall be comprised of hardware or software, or both,
and perform all partition management tasks for a remote computer, including creating the
partitions and allocating system resources o each partition;

(B) the facility manager and host entity shall jointly designate and identify the
security officer who will be responsible for administering the partition manager and
maintaining access codes to the partition manager. The security officer shall be an
employee of the facility manager or host entity and shall be licensed as a level I
employee;

(C) special rights and privileges in the partition manager, including the
administrator, shall be restricted to the management information systems director or
security officer of the facility manager or host entity, who shall be licensed as level T
employees;

(D) access to the partition manager shall be limited to employees of the
management information systems departments of the facility manager and host entity;
and

(E) software-based partition managers contained in a remote computer shall be
functionally limited to performing partition management tasks for the remote computer,
while partition managers using hardware and software that are not part of a remote
computer may be utilized to perform otﬁer functions for a remote computer that are
approved by the executive director;
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(2) a separate partition established for the facility manager’s EGM computer
system that meets the following requirements:

(A) The partition shall be limited to maintaining the software and data of the
facility manager for which the partition has been established,

(B) the security officer of the facility manager for which the partition has been
established shall be licensed as a level T employee and shall be responsible for
maintenance of access codes to the partition; and

(C) special rights and privileges in the partition, including the administrator, shall
be restricted to the security officer and the management information systems director of
the facility manager for which the partition has been established; and

(3) separate and distinct operating system software, application software, and
computer access controls for the partition manager and each separate partition.

(e) Any facility manager may be permitted by the executive director to egtablish a
partition within a computer that contains its EGM computer system for its affiliate,
intermediary, subsidiary, or holding company if all of the following requirements are
met:

(1) A partition manager comprised of hardware or software, or both, shall be
utilized to perform all partition management tasks, including creating the partitions and
allocating system resources to each partition.

(2) A security officer shall be designated within the management information

systems department of the facility manager to be responsible for administering the
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partition manager and maintaining access codes to the partition manager. Special rights
and privileges in the partition manager, including the administrator, shall be restricted to
the security officer and the management information systems director of the facility
manager.

(3) Special rights and privileges in any partition that has been established for the
benefit of an affiliate, intermediary, subsidiary, or holding company shall be restricted to
the security officer and information technology director of the affiliate, intermediary,
subsidiary, or holding company.

(f) Any facility manager may be permitted by the executive director to maintain
backup or duplicate copies of the software and data of its EGM computer system, or any
portion of the software and data, in removable storage media devices, including magnetic
tapes or disks, in a secure location within a gaming facility or other secure location
outside the gaming facility as approved by the executive director for the purposes of
disaster recovery.

(g) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a), upon the declaration of a
disaster affecting the EGM computer system by the chief executive officer of the facility
manager and with the prior written approval of the executive director, a facility manager
may maintain the software and data of its EGM computer system, or any portion of the
software and data, in a computer located in a secure location outside the gaming facility.

(h) Any facility manager may locate software or data not related to an EGM

computer system, including software or data related to the sale of food and beverages, in
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a computer located outside the gaming facility. With the written approval of the
executive director, a facility manager may connect the computer to an EGM computer
system if all of the following conditions are met:

(1) Logical access to computer software and data of the EGM computer system is
appropriately limited.

(2) Communications with all portions of the EGM computer system occur using a
dedicated and secure communications medium, which may consist of a leased line.

(3) The facility manager complies with other connection-specific requirements of
the commission. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772;

effective P- )
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112-107-21. Progressive EGMs. (a) Each progressive EGM shall meet the
requirements of article 110.

(b) Each facility manager seeking to utilize a linked EGM shall submit the
Jocation and manner of installing any progressive meter display mechanism to the
executive director for approval.

(c) An EGM that offers a progressive jackpot shall not be placed on the gaming
floor until the executive director has approved the following:

(1) The initial and reset amounts at which the progressive meter or meters will be
set;

(2) the proposed system for controlling the keys and applicable logical access
controls to the EGMs;

(3) the proposed rate of progression for each progressive jackpot;

(4) the proposed limit for the progressive jackpot, if any; and

(5) the calculated probability of winning each progressive jackpot. The
probability shall not exceed 50 million to one.

(d) Progressive meters shall not be turned back to a lesser amount unless one of
the following occurs:

(1) The amount indicated has been actually paid to a winning patron.

(2) The progressive jackpot amount won by the patron has been recorded in

accordance with a system of internal controls approved under K.A.R. 1 12-104-1.
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(3) The progressive jackpot has, upon executive director approval, been
transferred to another progressive EGM or wide-area progressive system in accordance
with this article.

(4) The change is necessitated by an EGM or meter malfunction. For progressive
jackpots governed by subsection (a), an explanation for the malfunction shall be entered
on the progressive electronic gaming sumumary required by this article, and the
commission shall be notified of the resetting in writing.

(e) Once an amount appears on a progressive meter, the probability of hitting the
combination that will award the progressive jackpot shall not be decreased unless the
progressive jackpot has been won by a patron or the progressive jackpot has been
transferred to another progressive EGM or wide-area progressive system or removed in
accordance with subsection (g).

(f) If an EGM has a progressive meter with digital limitations on the meter, the
facility manager shall set a limit on the progressive jackpot, which shail not exceed the
display capability of the progressive meter.

(g) Any facility manager may limit, transfer, or terminate a progressive jackpot
offered on a gaming floor only under any of the following:

(1) A facility manager may establish a payout limit for a progressive jackpot if
the payout limit is greater than the payout amount that is displayed to the patron on the

progressive jackpot meter. The facility manager shall provide notice to the commission
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of the imposition or modification of a payout limit on a progressive meter concurrent
with the setting of the payout limit.

(2) A facility manager may terminate a progressive jackpot concurrent with the
winning of the progressive jackpot if its EGM program or progressive controller was
configured before the winning of the progressive jackpot to establish a fixed reset amount
with no progressive increment.

(3) A facility manager may permanently remove one or more linked EGMs from
a gaming floor if both of the following conditions are met:

(A) If the EGM is part of a wide-area progressive system offered at multiple
facilities, the facility manager retains at least one linked EGM offering the same
progressive jackpot on its gaming floor.

(B) If the progressive jackpot is only offered in a single gaming facility, at least
two linked EGMs offering the same progressive jackpot remain on the gaming floor.

(4) Any facility manager may transfer a progressive jackpot amount on a stand-
alone EGM or the common progressive jackpot on an entire link of EGMs with a
common progressive meter, including a wide-area progressive system, from a gaming
floor. The facility manager shall give notice of its intent to transfer the progressive
jackpot to the commission at least 30 days before the anticipated transfer and shall -
conspicuously display the facility manager’s intent to transfer the progressive jackpot on
the front of each EGM for at least 30 days. To be eligible for transfer, the progressive

jackpot shall meet the following conditions:
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(A) Be transferred in its entirety; and

(B) be transferred to one of the following:

(i) The progressive meter for an EGM or wide-area progressive system with the
same or greater probability of winning the progressive jackpot, the same or lower wager
requirement to be eligible to win the progressive jackpot, and the same type of
progressive jackpot. However, if no other EGM or wide-area progressive system meets
all of these qualifications, a transfer of the jackpot to the progressive meter of the most
similar EGM or wide-area progressive system available may be authorized by the
executive director; or

(i) the progressive meters of two separate EGMs or wide-area progressive
systems if each EGM or wide-area progressive system to which the jackpot is transferred
individually satisfies the requirements of paragraph (g)(4)(B)(®).

(5) Any facility manager may immediately and permanently remove a
progressive jackpot on a stand-alone progressive EGM, the common progressive jackpot
on an entire link of EGMs with a common progressive meter, or an entire wide-area
progressive system from a gaming floor if notice of intent to remove the progressive
jackpot meets the following requirements:

(A) Ts conspicuously displayed on the front of each EGM for at least 30 days; and

(B) is provided in writing to the commission at least 30 days before to the

removal of the progressive jackpot.
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(h) The amount indicated on the progressive meter or meters and coin-in meter
on each EGM governed by subsection (a) shall be recorded by the facility manager’s
accounting department or EGM department on a progressive electronic gaming summary
report at least once every seven calendar days. Each report shall be signed by the
preparer. If not prepared by the accounting department, the progressive electronic
gaming summary report shall be forwarded to the accounting department by the end of
the gaming day on which it is prepared. An employee of the accounting department shall
be responsible fof calculating the correct amount that should appear on a progressive
meter. If an adjustment to the progressive meters is necessary, the adjustment shall be
made by a member of the EGM department as follows:

(1) Supporting documentation shall be maintained to explain any addition or
reduction in the registered amount on the progressive meter. The documentation shall
include the date, the asset number of the EGM, the amount of the adjustment, and the
signatures of the accounting department member requesting the adjustment and the EGM
department member making the adjustment; and

(2) the adjustment shall be effectuated within 48 hours of the meter reading.

(i) Except as otherwise authorized by this regulation, each EGM offering a
progressive jackpot that is removed from the gaming floor shall be returned to or replaced
on the gaming floor within five gaming days. The amount on the progressive meter or
meters on the returned or replacement EGM shall not be less than the amount on the

progressive meter or meters at the time of removal. If an EGM offering a progressive
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jackpot is not returned or replaced, any progressive meter amount at the time of removal
shall, within five days of the EGM’s removal,' be added to an EGM offering a progressive
jackpot approved by the executive director. The EGM shall offer the same or greater
probability of winning the progressive jackpot and shall require the same or lower
denomination of currency to play that was in use on the EGM that was removed. This
subsection shall not apply to the temporary removal by a facility manager, for a period
not to exceed 30 days, of all linked EGMs that are part of a particular wide-area
progressive system if the progressive jackpot offered by the temporarily removed EGMs
remains available on EGMs that are paﬁ of the same wide-area progressive system in
another gaming facility.

(j) If an EGM is located adjacent to an EGM offering a progressive jackpot, the
facility manager shall conspicuously display on the EGM a notice advising patrons that
the EGM is not participating in the progressive jackpot of the adjacent EGM.

(Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8750
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112-107-22. Wide-area progressive systems. (a) Two or more facility managers may
operate linked progressive EGMs that are interconnected between two or more
participating gaming facilities, with the prior written approval of the commission and the
Kansas lottery as required under subsection (c). The EGMs participating in the link shall
be collectively referred to as a wide-area progressive system.

(b) BEach wide-area progressive system shall at all times be installed and operated
in accordance with relevant requirements of the act, this article, and article 110.

(¢) Bach wide-area progressive system shall be operated and administered by
participating facility managers in accordance with the terms and conditions of a written
agreement executed by the participating facility managers. The agreefnent shall be
referred to as an electronic gaming system agreement. Each electronic gaming system
agreement shall be submitted in writing and approved by the commission and the Kansas
Jottery before implementation and shall meet the requirements of the act, this article, and
article 110.

(d) Any facility manager participating in an electronic gaming system agreement
may delegate, in whole or in part, the management and administration of a wide-area
progressive system to a gaming supplier if the electronic gaming system agreement is
executed by the gaming supplier and the terms of the agreement are approved by the
commission and the Kansas lottery. The persons designated in an electronic gaming
system agreement as being responsible for the management and administration of a wide-

area progressive system shall be referred to as the wide-area progressive system operator.
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(e) An agreement between a gaming supplier and a facility manager under which
a gaming supplier sells, leases, or services a wide-area progressive system shall not
constitute an electronic gaming service agreement, unless the agreement also covers the
management and adminisiration of the wide-area progressive system.

(f) Bach electronic gaming system agreement providing for the management and
administration of a wide-area progressive system shall identify and describe with
specificity the duties, responsibilities, and authority of each participating facility manager
and each electronic gaming system operator, including the following:

(1) Details with regard to the terms of compensation for the electronic gaming
system operator. The agreement shall address td what extent, if any, the electronic
gaming system operator is receiving compensation based, directly or indirectly, on an
interest, percentage, or share of a facility manager’s revenue, profits, or earnings from the
management of the wide-area progressive system;

(2) responsibility for the funding and payment of all jackpots and fees associated
with the management of the wide-area progressive system;

(3) control and operation of the computer monitoring room required under
subsection (1);

(4) a description of the process by which significant decisions with regard to the
management of the wide-area progressive system are approved and implemented by the

participating facility managers and electronic gaming system operator;
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(5) when applicable, terms satisfactory to the commission with regard to
apportionment of responsibility for establishing and servicing any trust agreement
associated with any annuity jackpot offered by the wide-area progressive system;

(6) responsibility for generating, filing, and maintaining the records and reports
required under the act, this part, and article 110; and

(7) any other relevant requirements of the commission, including those required
to comply with the technical standards on wide-area progressive systems adopted by the
commission under article 110.

(g) An electronic gaming system agreement submitted to the commission for
approval shall be accompanied by a proposed system of internal controls addressing the
following:

(1) Transactions directly or indirectly relating to the payment of progressive
jackpots, including the establishment, adjustment, transfer, or removal of a progressive
jackpot amount and the payment of any associated fees; and

(2) the name, employer, position, and gaming license status of any person
involved in the operation and control of the wide-area progressive system.,

(h) The information identified in paragraph (g)(2) shall be reviewed by the
executive director to determine, based on an analysis of specific duties and
responsibilities, which persons shall be licensed. The electronic gaming system manager

shall be advised of the executive director’s findings. Each participating facility manager

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEPT, OF ACMINSTRATION
SEP 1 0 2008 SEP 05 2008
APPROVED

MF

BLL 4. (66 of 85)



112-107-22
Page 4

and any participating gaming supplier shall comply with the commission’s licensing
instructions.

(i) An electronic gaming system manager shall not commence operation and
administration of a wide-area progressive system pursuant to the terms of an electronic
gaming system agreement until the agreement and the internal controls required under
subsection (g) have been approved in writing by the commission and any licensing
requirements under subsection (h) have been met.

(j) If an electronic gaming system agreement involves payment to a gaming
supplier functioning as a electronic gaming system operator, of an interest, percentage, or
share of a facility manager’s revenue, profits, or earnings from the operation of a wide-
area progressive system, the electronic gaming system agreement may be approved by
the commission only if it determines that the total amounts paid to the gaming supplier
under the terms of the agreement are commercially reasonable for the managerial and
administrative services provided. Nothing in this regulation shall limit the commission’s
consideration of the electronic gaming system agreement to its revenue-sharing
provisions.

(k) Each wide-area progressive system shall be controlled from a computer
monitoring room. The computer monitoring room shall meet the following requirements:

(1) Be under the sole possession an& control of employees of the wide-area
progressive system manager designated in the electronic gaming system agreement for

that system. The employees of the wide-area progressive system manager may be
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required to obtain a license or permit if the executive director determines, after a review
of the work being performed, that the employees require a license or permit for the
protection of the integrity of gaming;

(2) have its monitoring equipment subjected to surveillance coverage either by
the surveillance system of a facility manager participating in the electronic gaming
system agreement or by a dedicated surveillance system maintained by the wide-area
progressive system manager. The surveillance plan shall be approved by the executive
director; |

(3) be accessible only through a locked door. The door shall be alarmed in a
manner that audibly signals the surveillance monitoring room for the surveillance system
elected under paragraph (1)(2); and

(4) have a computer monitoring room entry log. The log shall meet the following
requirements:

(A) Be kept in the computer monitoring room;

(B) be maintained in a book with bound, numbered pages that cannot be readily
removed; and

(C) be signed by each person entering the computer monitoring room who is not
an employee of the wide-area progressive system manager employed in the computer
monitoring room on that person’s assigned shift. Each entry shall contain the following
information:

(i) The date and time of entering and exiting the room;
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(ii) the name, department, or license number of the person entering and exiting
the room and of the person authorizing the entry; and

(iif) the reason for entering the computer monitoring room.

(D In evaluating a proposed location for a computer monitoring room, the
following factors may be considered by the executive director:

(1) The level of physical and system security offered by the proposed location;
and

(2) the accessibility of the locétion to the commission’s audit, law enforcement,
and technical staff. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A.

2007 Supp. 74-8750 and 74-8772; effective P- J
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112-107-23. Electronic gaming monitoring systems. (a) Any gaming licensee may
utilize an electronic gaming monitoring system that has an interface between it, EGMs,
and related systems if the electronic gaming monitoring system has been tested and
approved by the commission under K.A.R. 112-107-3.

(b) Bach electronic gaming monitoring system shall meet the requirements of the
act, this article, and article 110. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp.

74-8772; effective P- D
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112-107-24. Casino management systems. (2) Any gaming licensee may utilize a
casino management system that has an interface between it, EGMs, and related systems if
the casino management system has been tested and approved by the commission under
K.A.R, 112-107-3.

(b) Fach casino management system shall meet the requirements of the act, this
article, and article 110. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772;

effective P- J)
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112-107-25. Player tracking systems. (a) Any gaming licensee may utilize a player
tracking system that has an interface between it, EGMs, and related systems if the player
tracking system has been tested and approved by the commission under K.A.R. 112-107-
3.

(b) Each player tracking system shall meet the requirements of the act, this
article, and article 110. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772;

effective P- )
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112-107-26. External bonusing systems. (a) Any gaming licensee may utilize an
external bonusing system that has been tested and approved by the commission under
K.AR.112-107-3.

(b) The combination of the EGM theoretical payout percentage plus the bonus
awards generated by an external bonusing system shall not equal or exceed 100% of the
theoretical payout for an EGM on which the external bonus award is available.

(c) Each EGM shall meet the minimum theoretical payout percentage required
under this article without the contribution of any external bonus award available on the
EGM.

(d) Each external bonusing system shall meet the requirements of the act, this
article, and article 110. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772;

effective P- )
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112-107-27. Cashless funds transfer systems. (a) Any facility manager may utilize a
cashless funds transfer system that has been tested and approved by the commission
under K.A.R. 112-107-3.

(b) Each cashless funds transfer system shall meet the requirements of the act,
this article, and article 110.

(¢) Before utilizing a cashless funds transfer system, each facility manager shall
establish a system of internal controls for the cashless funds transfer system. The internal
controls shall be submitted to and approved by the commission under K.A R, 112-104-1.
The internal control procedures submitted by the facility manager shall address the
integrity, security, and control of the facility manager’s cashless funds transfer system
shall include the following:

(1) An overview of the system design;

(2) system access controls and restrictions;

(3) override policies and restrictions;

(4) backup and recovery procedures;

(5) logical and physical access controls and restrictions;

(6) network security; and

(7) procedures for handling customer disputes.

(d) The transfer of electronic credits to an EGM under this regulation shall be

initiated only by a patron using an access control. Access controls shall require the use of
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a unique access code for each patron. The access code shall be selected by and available
to only the patron.

(e) Each facility manager shall maintain a record of every transfer of electronic
credits to an EGM under this regulation. Each transfer shall be identified by, at a
minimum, the date, the time, and the asset number of the EGM to which the transfer
occurred and an identification number assigned to the patron who initiated the
transaction. The identification number assigned to a patron for the purposes of this
regulation shall be different from the unique access code selected by the patron as part of
an access control.

(f) On at least a monthly basis, each facility manager using a cashless funds
transfer system shall provide a statement to each patron who has participated in the
system that month. The statement shall include, at a minimum, the patron’s beginning
monthly balance, credits earned, credits transferred to an EGM pursuant to this
regulation, and the patron's monthly ending balance. With the written authorization of
the patron, the mailing of a monthly statement may be issued electronically to the patron.
However, a monthly statement shall not be required for transfers of temporary electronic
credits or transfers of electronic credits from a temporary anonymous account.

(g) Each facility manager shall provide notice to the commission in writing of
any adjustment to the amount of a credit transferred to an BEGM by means of a cashless

funds transfer system. The notice shall be submitted on or before the date of the
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adjustment. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

Y
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112-107-28. Server-supported electronic gaming systems. (a) Any gaming licensee
may utilize a server-supported electronic gaming system if that system has been tested
and approved by the commission under K.A.R. 112-107-3.

(b) Each server-supported electronic gaming system shall meet the requirements
of the act, this article, and article 110.

(c) Before utilizing a server-supported electronic gaming system, each gaming
licensee shall establish a system of internal controls for the server-supported electronic
gaming system. The internal controls shall be submitted to and approved by the
commission under K.A R. 112-104-1. The internal controls submitted by the gaming
licensee shall address the integrity, security, and control of the server-supported
electronic gaming system. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74~

8772, effective P- D
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112-107-29. Server-based electronic gaming systems. (a) Any gaming licensee may
utilize a server-based electronic gaming system if that system has been tested and
approved by the commission under K.A.R. 112-107-3.

(b) Each server-based electronic gaming system shall meet the requirements of
the act, this article, and article 110.

(c) Before utilizing a server-based electronic gaming system, each gaming
licensee shall establish a system of internal controls for the server-based electronic
gaming system. The internal controls shall be submitted to and approved by the
commission under K.A.R. 112-104-1. The internal controls submitted by the gaming
licensee shall address the integrity, security, and control of its server-based electronic
gaming system. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective

P- )
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112-107-30. EGMs and associated equipment utilizing alterable storage media. The
use of alterable storage media in an EGM or associated equipment shall meet the
requirements of the act, this article, and the technical standards on alterable storage media

adopted by the commission under article 110. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A.

2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-107-31. Remote system access. (a) In emergency situations or as an element of
technical support, an employee of a gaming supplier may perform analysis of, or render
technical support with regard to, a facility manager’s electronic gaming monjtoring
system, casino management system, player tracking system, external bonusing system,
cashless funds transfer system, wide-area progressive system, gaming ticket system, or
other approved system from a remote location. All remote access to these systems shall
be performed in accordance with the following procedures:

(1) Only an employee of a gaming supplier who separately holds an occupation
license under article 103 may remotely access a system sold, leased, or otherwise
distributed by fhat gaming supplier for use at a gaming facility.

(2) The gaming supplier shall establish a unique system account for each
employee of a gaming supplier identified by that supplier as potentially required to
perform technical support from a remote location. All system access afforded pursuant to
this regulation shall meet the following requirements:

(A) Be restricted in a manner that requires the facility manager’s management
information systems department to receive prior notice from the gaming supplier of its
intent to remotely access a designated system;

(B) require the facility manager to take affirmative steps, for each instance of

access, to activate the gaming supplier’s access privileges; and
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(C) be designed to appropriately limit the ability of any person authorized under
this regulation to deliberately or inadvertently interfere with the normal operation of the
system or its data.

(3) A separate log shall be maintained by both the gaming supplier and the
facility manager’s management information systems department. Each log shall contain,
at a minimum, the following information:

(A) The system accessed, including manufacturer, and version number;

(B) the type of connection;

(C) the name and license number of the employee remotely accessing the system;

(D) the name and license number of the employee in the management
information systems department activating the gaming supplier’s access to the system;

(E) the date, time, and duration of the connection;

(F) the reason for the remote access, including a description of the symptoms or
malfunction prompting the need for remote access to the system; and

(G) any action taken or further action required.

(4) All communications between the gaming supplier and any of the systems
identified in subsection (a) shall occur using a dedicated and secure communication
facility which may consist of a leased line approved in writing by the executive director.

(b} Bach modification of, or remedial action taken with respect to, an approved

system shall be processed and approved by the commission either in accordance with the
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emergency modification provisions of K.A.R. 112-107-3(1) or as a standard modification
submitted under K.A.R. 112-107-3(h).

(¢) If an employee of a gaming supplier is no longer employed by, or authorized
by, that manufacturer to remotely access a system pursuant to fhis regulation, the gaming
supplier shall notify, by the end of that business day, the commission and each facility
manager that has established a unique system account for that employee of the change in
authorization and shall verify with each facility manager that any access privileges
previously granted have been revoked.

(d) All remote system access shall be performed in accordance with article 110.

(e) Each facility manager authorizing access to a system by a gaming supplier
under this regulation shall be responsible for implementing a system of access protocols
and other controls over the physical integrity of that system and the remote access
process sufficient to ensure appropriately limited access to software and the systemwide
reliability of data. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772;

effective P- )

TTORNEY GENERAL
SEP 10 7008 BﬁPT.OFADWNlSTRAﬂON
APP&?:VED SEP 09 2008
APPROVED

E.4.g (82 of 85)



112-107-32. EGM destruction procedures. (a) Each gaming licensee shall establish a
comprehensive system of internal controls for the EGM destruction procedures required
by this regulation. The internal controls shall be submitted to and approved by the
commission under K.A R, 112-104-1.

(b) The gaming licensee shall submit a request in writing with an attached
approval letter from the Kanéas lottery commission requesting the destruction of an
EGM. The notice shall contain the asset number of each EGM that is requested to be
destroyed and shall be submitted at least 14 days in advance of the requested destruction
date.

(c) When destroying an EGM, the critical program storage media (CPSM) and
component parts shall be removed from the EGM before destruction of the cabinet. For
the purposes of this regulation, a component part shall mean any part as defined by
K.S.A. 21-4302(d)(1XC), and amendments thereto, and shall include any equipment
necessary for any of the following operations by the EGM:

(1) The acceptance of currency, tickets, coupons, or tokens;

(2) the discharge of currency, tickets, coupons, or tokens;

(3) the determination or display of the outcome of the game;

(4) recordkeeping; and

(5) security.
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(d) The CPSM and component parts may be destroyed or placed into the
controlled inventory of the EGM department. All destroyed CPSM and component parts
shall be destroyed separately from the EGM cabinets.

(e} The destruction of any EGMs, CPSM, and component parts shall be

witnessed by an agent of the commission. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772;

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8750 and 74-8772; effective P- N
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112-107-34. Waivers. (a) The requirements in this article or article 110 for an EGM
may be waived by the commission upon the commission’s determination that the EGM,
associated equipment, or modification as submitted by the gaming licensee meets the
operational integrity requirements of the act, this article, and article 110,

(b) Any gaming supplier may submit a written request to the commission for a
waiver for one or more of the requirements in this article or article 110. The request shall
included supporting documentation demonstrating how the EGM, associated equipment,
or modification for which the waiver has been requested meets the operational integrity

requirements of the act, this article, and article 110. (Authorized by and implementing

K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-110-1. Adoptions by reference. The following texts by gaming laboratories
international (GLI) are hereby adopted by reference:

(a) “GLI-11: gaming devices in casinos,” version 2.0, dated April 20, 2007,
except the following:

(1) Each reference to a “75% payout percentage,” which shall be replaced with
“an average of not less than 87% of the amount wagered over the life of the machine”;

(2) section 1.1;

(3) section 1.2;

(4) section 1.4; and

(5) the section titled “revision history™;

(b) “GLI-12: progressive gaming devices in casinos,” version 2.0, dated April 20,
2007, except the following:

(1) Section 1.1;

(2) section 1.2;

(3) section 1.4; and

(4) the section titled “revision history”;

(¢) “GLI-13: on-line monitoring and control systems (MCS) and validation
systems in casinos,” version 2.0, dated April 20, 2007, except the following:

(1) Section 1.3;

(2) section 1.5;

(3) the “note” in section 3.4.3; and
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(4) the section titled “revision history”;

(d) “GLI-15: electronic bingo and keno systems,” version 1.2, dated April 12,
2002, except the following:

(1) Section 1.3;

(2) section 1.5; and

(3) the section titled “revision history”;

(e) “GLI-16: cashless systems in casinos,” version 2.0, dated April 20, 2007,
except the following:

(1) Section 1.2;

(2) section 1.4; and

(3) the section titled “revision history”;

(f) “GLI-17: bonusing systems in casinos,” version 1.2, dated February 27, 2002,
except the following:

(1) Section 1.2;

(2) section 1.4; and

(3) the section titled “revision history”;

(g) “GLI-18: promotional systems in casinos,” version 2.0, dated April 20, 2007,
except the following:

(1) Section 1.2;

(2) section 1.4; and

(3) the section titled “revision history”;
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(h) “GLI-20: kiosks,” version 1.4, dated July 1, 2006, except the following:

(1) Section 1.3; and

(2) the section titled “revision history”;

(i) “GLI-21: client-server systems,” version 2.1, dated May 18, 2007, except the
following:

(1) Section 1.1;

{2) section 1.2;

(3) section 1.4,

(4) each reference to a “75% payout percentage,” which shall be replaced with
“an average of not less than 87% of the amount wagered over the life of the machine™;
and

(5) the section titled “revision history”;

(§) “GLI-24: electronic table game systems,” version 1.2, dated September 6,
2006, except the following:

(1) Section 1.1;

(2) section 1.3;

(3) each reference to “75% payout percentage,” which shall be replaced with “an
average of not less than 87% of the amount wagered over the life of the machine™; and

(4) the section titled “revision history”;

(k) “GLI-25: dealer controlled electronic table games,” version 1.1, dated

September 8, 2006, except the following:
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(1) Section 1.1;

(2) section 1.3; and

(3) the section titled “revision history”; and

(1) “GLI-26: wireless gaming system standards,” version 1.1, dated January 18,
2007, except the following:

(1) Section 1.1;

(2) section 1.2;

(3) section 1.4; and

(4) the section titled “revision history”. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-

8772; implementing K.S.A. 74-8750 and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-110-2. Central computer system accounting. (a) Each central computer system
{CCS) provided to the commission shall include an accounting and auditing mechanism.

(b) Each CCS shall be capable of supporting a network of 15,000 EGMs and the
location controllers and validation stations needed to support the EGMs.

(c) Each CCS shall meet all of the following requirements:

(1) The CCS computers shall obtain all meter reading data in real time, which
shall be no longer than two and one-half minutes after any meter acquisition request.

(2) The CCS shall keep accurate records, maintaining a total of at least 14 digits,
including cents, in length for each type of datum required and of all income generated by
each electronic gaming machine (EGM).

(3) The CCS shall be capable of monitoring the operation of each game and
EGM.

(4) The CCS shall be capable of creating reports from the following information
by EGM and by game, if applicable:

(A) The number of cents wagered;

(B) the number of cents won,

(C) the number of cents paid out by a printed ticket;

(D) the number of cents accepted from a printed ticket;

(E) the number of cents accepted from each coin, bill, ticket, or other instrument
of value;

t ically transferred to th ;
(F) the number of cents electronically transferred to gﬁ%ﬁM,
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(G) the number of cents electronically transferred from the EGM;

(H) the number of cents paid out by hand pay, which means the payment of
credits that are not totally and automatically paid directly from an EGM, or canceled
credit;

(I) the number of cents paid out by jackpot;

(1) the number of cumulative credits representing money inserted by a player;

(K) the number of cents on the credit meter;

(L) the number of games played,;

(M) the number of games wor;

(N) the number of times the logic area was accessed; and

(O) the number of times the cash door was accessed.

(d) The CCS shall be capable of generating the following reports:

(1) Gaming facility performance reports. The gaming facility performance report
for the previous period shall be available to be printed on the first day of the next period.
Fach gaming facility performance report shall be available to be printed for all facilities
and for specific facilities. The report shall include data from each EGM in play at the
gaming facility. Each report shall contain the following information:

(A) EGM serial number;

(B) the number of cents played;

(C) the number of cents won;

(D) net terminal income, which is the amount played minus the amount won,
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(B) Kansas lottery’s administrative expenses;

(F) gross profits;

(G) drop amount; and

(H) drop time frame;

(2) areport thét calculates the prize payout percentage of each EGM on the basis
of cents won divided by cents played;

(3) areport that calculates cents played less cents won, divided by the number of
EGMs in play at a facility, during the period;

(4) areport that compares cents played less cents won against total cents in less
total cents out by EGMs. This report shall also include the value on the EGM’s credit
meter;

(5) a daily report showing the total number of EGMs in play and cents played
less cents won;

(6) performance reports by brand of EGM, game name, game type, and facility
number;

(7) areport by EGM number;

(8) a report of nonreporting EGMs by facility and by EGM supplier,

summarizing the last polled date, EGM manufacturer and serial number, reason for error,

and poll address;
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(9) areport of nonreporting intermediary servers that are communicating with the
EGMs but not reporting data by facility and by EGM that summarizes the last polled
date, EGM manufacturer and serial number, reason for error, and poll address;

(10) a financial summary report listing facility summaries by date, amount
played, amount won, net revenue, number of EGMs, and average net revenue by EGM;

(11) a transaction report listing facility, by EGM supplier and by EGM, that
summarizes the electronic game machine manufacturer and serial number, cents in, cents
out, net revenue, amount played, amount won, progressive jackpot contribution, win
frequency, payback percentage, net jackpot won, number of times cach game was played,
and number of times each play resulted in a win;

(12) areport containing a record of all security events by EGM or event type over
a specific time range; and

(13) a financial report based upon a user-specified time frame, by EGM, that
summarizes cents in, cents out, net revenue, cents played, cents won, progressive jackpot
contribution, win frequency, payback percentage, net jackpot won, games played, and
games won.

(¢) Each report specified in this regulation shall be available on demand and, if
applicable, cover a period determined by Kansas lottery or commission auditing staff.
On-demand reporting shall be sortable by date, EGM, game, EGM manufacturer,
location, and facility. The time period of each report may be daily, weekly, monthly, and

yearly, and sufficient data shall be resident on the database to accommodate a facility
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manager’s need to report on a basis specified by the Kansas lottery or commission
auditing staff.

(f) Each EGM event and all configuration data, including configurable pay table
information, if applicable, shall be retained for each individual EGM in a backed-up CCS
system.

(g) All security event data shall be retained for each individual EGM as well as
accumulated for each facility.

(h) All game play statistics, EGM event data, and configuration data, including
configurable pay table information, if applicable, shall be retained for each EGM ina
backed-up CCS system.

(i) All accounting and security event data shall be retained and shall be accessible
for at least seven years.

(j) All accounting and security event data shall be retained for each individual
EGM and accumulated for each facility.

(k) Each CCS provider shall provide an invoicing software package for facility
licensees. That software package shall allow the Kansas lottery to create periodic
statements that interface with an electronic funds transfer account. The CCS shall be able
to perform the following functions:

(1) Provide a gross terminal income summary to facilitate daily electronic funds
transfer (BEFT) sweeps that shall, at a minimum, contain the daily number of EGMs

reporting, the daily cash in divided by cash out and daily cash played divided by cash
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won, daily gross EGM income, daily net balances, adjustments, progressive
contributions, and jackpot reset values. The gross terminal income summary reports shall
show the information by each EGM as well as by track and by total system, retailer,
facility manager, and county;

(2) conduct downloading to tape, disk, or other standard data storage devices of
the information necessary to facilitate the EFT daily sweep of each facility’s net EGM
income;

(3) create a balanced data file of general ledger journal entries to record all
lottery activities and integrate into general ledger software on a daily basis and on a
multiple day basis, as needed;

(4) provide payout analyses that indicate performance by EGM; and

(5) provide reports in a format as specified, by period to period, by the Kansas

lottery. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp.

74-8749 and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-110-3. Central computer system security. (a) Each CCS’s database shall contain
EGM data for at least the prior 24 months. Older data shall also be available from
archives for at least seven years. The CCS’s vendor shall provide archived data within 24
hours of a request for the data from the Kansas lottery commission or the commission.

(b) Each CCS shall be capable of the following:

(1) Receiving and retaining a record of events that affect security, including all
door openings, stacker access, and signature failure;

(2) receiving and retaining a record of events that affect the EGM state, including
power on, power off, and various faults and hardware failures;

(3) receiving and retaining a record of events that affect EGM integrity, including
random access memory (RAM) corruption and RAM clear;

(4) receiving and retaining a record of events that affect the status of
communication between all components including the EGM, including loss of
communication;

(5) reporting of all events specified in this article;

(6) receiving and retaining a record of any other events as specified in writing by
the Kansas lottery commission or the commission; and

(7) automatic reporting of faults that require a manual reactivation of the EGM.
These faults shall include the following:

(A) Logic area cabinet access;

(B) EGM RAM reset,
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(C) catastrophic software corruption;

(D) unrecoverable hardware faults; and

(E) a failed signature check.

(c)(1) A record of each of the events specified in subsection (b) shall be stored at
the central point of the CCS on a hard drive in one or more files of an approved structure,

(2) The record of each stored event shall be marked by a date and time stamp.

(3) Each event shall be detected and recorded to the database and posted to a line
printer or terminal monitor within 10 seconds of the occurrence.

(d) Each CCS shall meet the following security requirements:

(1) The ability to deny access to specific databases upon an access attempt, by
employing passwords and other system security features. Levels of security and
password assignment for all users shall be solely the function of the Kansas lottery;

(2) the ability to allow multiple security-access levels to contro} and restrict
different classes of access to the system;

(3) password sign-on with two level codes comprising the personal identification
code and a special password,;

(4) system access accounts that are unicue to the authorized personnel;

(5) the storage of passwords in an encrypted, nonreversible form;

(6) the requirement that each password be at least 10 characters in length and

include at least one nonalphabetic character;

(7) password changes every 30 day‘r; oﬂNE\( G\E\\\EBN’
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(8) prevention of a password from being used if the password has been used as
any of the previous 10 passwords;

(9) the requirement that the CCS lock a user’s access upon three failed attempted
log-ins and send a security alert to a line printer or terminal monitor;

(10) the requirement that connectivity to any gaming system from a remote, non-
gaming terminal be approved by the Kansas lottery and the commission, in accordance
with K.A.R. 112-107-31. Remote connections shall employ security mechanisms
including modems with dial-back, modems with on-off keylocks, message encryption,
logging of sessions, and firewall protection;

(11) the ability to provide a list of all registered users on the CCS, including each
user’s privilege level;

(12) the requirement that approved software and procedures for virus protection
and detection, if appropriate, be used;

(13) the requirement that only programs, data files, and operating system files
approved by the Kansas lottery and the commission reside on hard drive or in the
memory of the CCS computers;

(14) the requirement that nonroutine access alerts and alarm events be logged and
archived for future retrieval;

(15) the requirement that software signatures be calculated on all devices at all

facilities and the signatures be validated by devices on the CCS network. These devices
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shall include gaming equipment, location controllers, and cashier stations. These
devices shall exclude non-gaming devices, including dumb terminals;

(16) audit trail functions that are designed to track system changes;

(17) time and date stamping of audit trail entries;

(18) capability of controlling data corruption that can be created by multiple log-
ons;

(19) the requirement that the gaming software be maintained under an approved
software change control system;

(20) the ability to send an alert to any terminal monitor and line printer for any
security event that is generated at an EGM or in the system. The system shall allow the
system administrator to determine which events should be posted. The events shall be
filtered by location,

(21) equipment with a continuous power supply;

(22) the capability of on-line data redundancy if a hard disk peripheral fails
during operation; and

(23) provision of a secure way through a graphic user interface for an auditor to

make adjustments to the system. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp.

74-8772; effective P- )
ahL
NE}( GENE
HTTOR \ DEPT. OF ADMEISTRATION
1 700
APR ) APR 012008
@?EP‘OVEDB APPROVED BY FDL

D

E.4.h (14 of 37)



112-110-4. Central computer system; configuration and control. (a) Each CCS shall
be able to begin or end gaming functions by a single command for any of the following:

(1) An EGM;

(2) a group of BEGMs; or

(3) all EGMS..

(b) Automatic and manual shutdown capabilities shall be available from the CCS.

(¢) The software configuration of each CCS gaming system shall be approved by
the Kansas Jottery and the commission.

(d) Each CCS shall maintain the following information for each EGM or
connected device:

(1) Location;

(2) device description, including serial number and manufacturer;

(3) game name;

(4) game type;

(5) configuration, including denomination, software identification number,
software version installed on all critical components, game titles available, and
progressive jackpot status;

(6) history of upgrades, movements, and reconfigurations; and

(7) any other relevant information as deemed necessary by the Kansas lottery or
the commission.

(€) Each CCS shall be able to individually and collectively enroll EGMs.
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(f) Bach CCS shall be able to configure each EGM during the initial enrollment
process so that the EGM’s system-dependent parameters, including denomination, money
units, and pay tables, can be programmed or retrieved from the EGMs and validated by
the CCS.

(g) Each CCS shall be able to support continuous gaming operations and shall be
able to enable and disable electronic gaming machines based on a daily schedule.

(Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8749

and 74-8772; effective P- \
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112-110-5. Central computer system; software validation. (a) Each CCS shall be
programmed to initiate a signature validation when an EGM is enrolled.

(b) If an EGM fails the signature validation, the EGM shall not be placed into
gaming mode without manual intervention at the CCS level.

{c) One of the following two methods of storing signature check references shall
be implemented in the CCS:

(1) Game software image storage in which game software images existing in the
EGM are also stored in the CCS; or

(2) precalculated signature results storage in which the table of signature results
have a minimum of five entries and those entries are generated from randomly selected
seed values for each game and repopulated on a daily basis. The utility program used to
generate the signature check result table shall be approved by the Kansas lottery and the
commission’s electronic security staff.

(d) The game software image and precalculated signature results shall be secured,
including by means of password protection and file encryption.

() If the image used for validating the EGM software is comprised of more than
one program, both of the following requirements shall be met:

(1) The CCS shall have a method to allow eaqh component to be loaded
individually.

(2) The CCS shall combine the individual images based upon the scheme

supplied by the EGM manufacturer to create the combined image. (Authorized by
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K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8749 and 74-8772;

effective P- J
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112-110-6. Central computer system communication. (a) Each CCS provider shall
furnish specifications, protocols, and the format of messages to and from the central
computer system.

(b)(1) The documentation of the communications protocol shall explain all
messages, conventions, and data formats and shall be submitted for approval before
delivery of the protocol to EGM manufacturers. Approval shall be obtained before
distribution of the communications protocol may commence.

(2) The documentation shall detail the following:

(A) The data format, including the following:

(i) Byte ordering;

(i1) bit order where bits are referenced; and

(iii) negative number format;

(B) message framing, including the following:

(1) Header field;

(i1) address field;

(i11) control field;

(iv) information or data;

(v) frame check sequence; and

(vi) trailer field;

(C) minimum and maximum frame or packet length;

(D) packet termination indication,;
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(E) padding techniques;

(F) special characters used and the function of each character;

(G) general principles of data exchange; and

(H) any other specifications required to support the functionality of the system.

(¢) All communications between the host system components shall be encrypted
with an encryption tool, which may include data encryption standard approved by the
commission’s auditing staff. Fach proprietary encryption system shall be approved by
the Kansas lottery before its use.

(d) If the CCS finds an EGM that is not responding within a set number of retries,
the EGM shall be logged as not responding and the system shall continue servicing all
other EGMs in the network.

(¢) Each CCS shall be wired directly to all EGMs.

(f) Bach CCS shall be capable of monitoring the functioning of each EGM.

(g) If a CCS provider proposes a proprietary communications protocol, the
provider shall supply a perpetual software license to the Kansas lottery at no additional
charge. If a proprietary protocol is utilized, the protocol shall be provided to any vendor
designated by the Kansas lottery free of charge within one week of contract signing.

(h) If a CCS uses an industry standard protocol, the provider shall supply and
maintain an interoperability document that indicates all of the functionality within the
protocol that is used and any additional implementation notes that apply. Each deviation

from the protocol shall be approved by the Kansas lottery.
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(i) The communication of each CCS shall use cyclic redundancy checks (CRCs).

(j) The communication of each CCS shall withstand error rates based on the
protocols in use.

(k) The communications protocol shall provide a method for the recovery of each
message received in error or not received at all.

(1) Bach CCS shall acknowledge all data messages that the CCS receives.

(m) Any CCS may include a negative acknowledgment (NAK) for messages
received in error or messages that are received outside of specified time periods.
(Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8749

and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-110-7. Central computer system; protocol simulator. (a) Each CCS shall
include a protocol simulator to enable the development of the communications protocol
and to assist in acceptance testing.

(b) Bach simulator shall support and test all of the transactions and message types
that are to be used by the communications protocol.

(¢) Each simulator shall be capable of generating common communication errors
to confirm that the EGM software is properly handling the event.

(d) Along with the protocol simulator, each CCS provider shall furnish the
following:

(1) An operations manual or other sujtable documentation;

(2) a definition of the message structure, types, and formats in machine-readable
form;

(3) a standard for all program modules, including naming conventions,
definitions of module names, and comments; and

(4) a diagram for the communications protocol.

(¢) Each simulator shall run on standard computer equipment, including a
personal computer.

() The communications protocol shall contain only codes or bytes that are

defined in the communications protocol. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772;

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8749 and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-110-8. Central computer system; general hardware specifications. (a) Each
CCS shall be a state-of-the-art, fault-tolerant, redundant, and high-availability system.
Any CCS may be configured in a duplex, triplex, or multiredundant configuration. All
computer system components and peripheral equipment, including front-end
communications processors, system printers, and tape drives, shall be fauit-tolerant and
redundant and maintain high availability. No performance degradation or loss of system
functionality shall occur with the failure of a single system component. The central
computer system’s storage management solution shall provide fault tolerance and
scalability.

(b) The performance of each CCS shall match or exceed the performance of any
similar systems installed by North American lotteries or gaming central control systems
in casinos in the last three years.

(¢) The functions of each CCS shall not interfere with players, employees who
require real-time monitoring of security events, cashiers who handle financial
transactions of the electronic gaming machines, or attendants who service the EGM.

(d) Performance of each CCS shall not degrade noticeably during ordinary
functionality. The CCS shall provide capacity to accommodate EGM populations, play
volumes, user sessions, and event recording consistent with all specifications.

(¢) All hardware and ancillary peripherals comprising the CCS shall be new

equipment that has not previously been used or refurbished.
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(f) The supplier of each CCS shall be able to produce system checksums or
comparable system file checker reports when requested by Kansas lottery or the
commission.

(g) Each supplier of CCS hardware and software shall obtain written approval
from the Kansas lottery director or the director’s designee before making any
enhancement or modification to the operating software.

(h) Bach CCS supplier shall provide all hardware, operating system software,
third-party software, and application software necessary to operate the CCS.

(i) Each CCS shall be able to operate 24 hours a day, seven days a week, with the
database up and running. Off-hours backup shall be able to run without shutting down
the database. The Kansas lottery shall be able to do a full system backup, which shall
include backing up the operating system and any supplier software.

(j) The central processing unit and peripheral devices of each CCS shall employ
physical security measures in the form of sealed casings, lockable containment, or any
other means of physical security approved by the Kansas lottery and the commission.

(k) Each CCS shall be able to be support gaming in at least seven gaming
facilities in the state of Kansas.

(1) Bach CCS shall have one or more management terminals located at each of
the facilities. Management terminals may be accessed only with the permission of the

Kansas lottery. A monitoring terminal shall also be located at the Kansas lottery
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(m) Each CCS shall have two or more monitoring terminals at each facility, as
approved by the commission, with at least one terminal to be utilized by the commission.
A monitoring terminal shall be located at the commission headquarters.

(n) The responsibility to audit all lottery gaming facility revenues shall rest with
the commission. Each.CCS supplier shall provide a separate data feed that contains the
original accounting data from the EGM before any adjustments and means to reconcile
the values or other means of validating any adjustments are made to any data on the
system. This separate data feed shall be approved by the commission. (Authorized by

K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8749 and 74-8772;

effective P- )
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112-110-9. Central computer system backup. (a) Each CCS supplier shall provide
one or more remote backup systems that will take over for the primary site systems, if
necessary. Redundant arrays of inexpensive disks (RAID) shall be used to protect key
data at the remote site. Data recorded at the remote site shall always contain the most
recent transactions. The facility networks shall be routed to permit transaction processing
at the backup site. Other communications to permit Kansas lottery operations shall also |
connect to the backup site. The backup site system shall be able to be tested monthly to
ensure that the remote site is fully functional.

(b) Each remaining system shall assume ail system functions in case of a failure
in one system, without loss or corruption of any data and transactions received before the
time of the failure.

(¢) Multiple components in the CCS shall have a time-synchronizing mechanism
to ensure consistent time recording and reporting for all events and transactions.

(d) The remote backup systems shall have the same processing capacity and
architecture as those of the central site systems.

(e) Primary site system recovery from a one-system failure shall be accomplished
in no more than two minutes while still maintaining current transactions, including the
ability to fully service the communications network supporting the EGM and
management terminals.

(f) Backup site system recovery from a primary site failure shall be accomplished

in less than 10 minutes without loss of transactions. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp.
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74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8749 and 74-8772; effective P-
)
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112-110-10. Central computer system manuals. (a) Each CCS supplier shall provide
the following manuals and diagrams for the CCS:

(1) Operation manuals;

(2) service manuals;

(3) CCS architecture diagrams; and

(4) other circuit diagrams.

(b) The required service manuals shall meet the following requirements:

(1) Accurately depict the CCS that the manual is intended to cover;

(2) provide adequate detail and be sufficiently clear in their wording and
diagrams to enable a qualified repairperson to perform repair and maintenance ina
manner that is conducive to the long-term reliability of the CCS;

(3) include maintenance schedules outlining the elements of the EGM that
require maintenance and the frequency at which that maintenance should be carried out;
and

(4) include maintenance checklists that enable EGM maintenance staft to make a
record of the work performed and the results of the inspection.

(¢) The required CCS architecture diagrams shall meet the following
requirements:

(1) Accurately depict the CCS that the diagrams are intended to cover;

'ﬁTTO?ﬂNEY GENERM.
APR 11 200 .
APR 1 Qg o
AP pPROVED -

, f E.4.h (28 of 37)



112-110-10
Page 2

(2) provide adequate detail and be sufficiently clear in their wording and
depiction to enable qualified technical staff to perform an evaluation of the design of the
component; and

(3) be professionally drafted in order to meet the requirements specified in this

subsection. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007

Supp. 74-8749 and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-110-11. Central computer system; support of progressive games. (a) Asused
within this regulation, the following terms shall have the meanings specified in this
subsection:

(1) “Linked progressive games” means a group of EGMs at a gaming facility that
offers the same game and involves a manner of wagering providing the same probability
of hitting the combination that will award the progressive jackpot that increases by the
same increments as the EGM is played.

(2) A “wide-area progressive game” means a game that consists of a group of
EGM:s located at two or more gaming facilities, linked to a single CCS computer that has
a manner of wagering that will provide the same probability of hitting the combination
that will award the progressive jackpot that increases, by the same increments, as the
EGM is played.

(b) Each CCS shall be able to support a variety of different progressive jackpot
games, including single-machine games, linked games at a gaming facility, and wide-area
progressive games shared by two or more gaming facilities.

(¢) The CCS communication for the wide-area progressive system shall be by
means of dedicated on-line communication lines, satellite, or another preapproved
communications system. All communication packets between each participating facility
manager and the CCS shall be encrypted, and the encryption keys shall be alterable upon

demand. The protocol shall ensure delivery of all information packets in a valid and

correct form. L
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(d) The CCS computer’s wide-area progressive gaming subsystem shall have the
ability to monitor the opening of the front door of the EGM and the logic area of the
EGM, and to report all these events to the CCS within one polling cycle.

(¢) Bach CCS shall have the ability to produce reports that demonstrate the
method used to calculate the progressive jackpot amount, including the documentation of
credits contributed from the beginning of the polling cycle and all credits contributed
throughout the polling cycle that includes the jackpot signal. The method shall assume
that credits contributed to the system after the jackpot win occurs, in real-time but during
the same polling cycle, are contributed to the progressive jackpot amount before the win.

(f) Bach CCS shall be able to produce fiscal reports that support and verify the
economic activity of the games, indicating the amount of and basis for the current
progressive jackpot amount. These reports shall include the following:

(1) An aggregate report to show only the balancing of the progressive link with
regard to fécilitywide totals;

(2) a detail report in a format that indicates for each EGM, summarized by
location, the cash-in, cash-out, credits-played, and credits-won totals, as these terms are
commonly understood by the Kansas lottery; and

(3) ajackpot contribution invoice that includes documentation of contributions
by the following:

(A) Each of its participating EGMs;
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(B) the credits contributed by each EGM to the jackpot for the period for which
an invoice is remitted;

(C) the percentage contributed by that gaming facility; and

(D) any other information required by the Kansas lottery or the commission to
confirm the validity of the facility manager’s aggregate contributions to the jackpot
amount.

This report shall be available for any facility manager participating in a wide-area
progressive electronic gaming machine system.

(g) Bach CCS shall be designed to have continuous operation of all progressive
games.

(h) Each CCS shall have a method to transfer the balance of one progressive pool
to another.

(i)(1) Bach progressive controller linking one or more progressive EGMs shall be
housed in a double-keyed compartment or an alternative approved by the Kansas lottery
and the commission.

(2) The Kansas lottery or the Kansas lottery’s designee shall be given possession
of one of the keys, or the Kansas lottery’s designee shall authorize each instance of
access to the controller in advance. No person may have access to a controller without

notice to the Kansas lottery.
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(3) A progressive entry authorization log shall be included with each controller,
and the log shall be completed by each person gaining enfrance to the controller. The log
shall be entered on a form provided by the Kansas lottery.

(4) If a progressive jackpot is recorded on any progressive EGM, the progressive
controller shall be able to identify the EGM that caused the progressive meter to activate,
and the progressive controller shall display the winning progressive amount.

(5) If more than one progressive EGM is linked to the progressive controller, the
progressive controller may automatically reset to the minimum amount and continue
normal play only if the progressive meter displays the following information:

(A) The identity of the EGM that caused the progressive meter to activate;

(B) the winning progressive amount; and

(C) the minimum amount that is displayed to the other players on the link.

(6) A progressive meter or progressive controller shall keep the following
information in nonvolatile memory, which shall be displayed upon demand:

(A) 'The number of progressive jackpots won on gach progressive meter if the
progressive display has more than one winning amount;

(B) the cumulative amounts paid on each progressive meter if the progressive

display has more than one winning amount;
(C) the maximum amount of the progressive payout for each meter displayed;
(D) the minimum amount or reset amount of the progressive payout for each

meter displayed; and
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(E) the rate of progression for each meter.

(7) Waivers may be granted by the Kansas lottery to ensure that individual EGMs
and multiple EGMs linked to a progressive controller meet the requirements of this

regulation. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007

Supp. 74-8749 and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-110-12. Central computer system; additional functionality. (a) Each CCS shall
be able to support ticket in-ticket out (TITO) processes.

(b) Any CCS may perform the following:

(1) Downloéding operating and game software to EGMs that use electronic
storage media on which the operation software for all games resides or at a minimum
approving, auditing, and verifying the downloading of software to EGMs;

(2) allowing gaming software to be driven by down-line loading on the
communications line. Gaming software may be either solicited by the EGM or
unsolicited; and

(3) allowing gaming software to be downloaded in a modular fashion with only
the modules requiring a change being downloaded. Downloading shall not preclude
continuous operation of the EGM network. The CCS provider shall detail for the Kansas
lottery and the commission any particular download features of the software, including
downloading in the background, eavesdropping, and compression. (Authorized by
K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8749 and 74-8772;

effective P- )
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112-110-13. Central computer system; acceptance testing. (a) Bach CCS supplier
shall make that provider’s system available for independent acceptance and compatibility
testing.

(b) If a CCS fails the acceptance testing, the CCS supplier shall make all
necessary modifications required for acceptance by the Kansas lottery and the
commission within the time frame specified by the Kansas lottery and the commission.

(¢) Each CCS supplier shall provide at least one test system, including all
hardware and software, to the commission or its independent testing laboratory for the
duration of the contract. The test system shall include any third-party software and
licenses used by the system. The test system shall use the identical software that exists
on the production system, though the test system may utilize similar but not identical
hardware.

(d) Each CCS supplier shall provide a complete set of manuals at the beginning
of acceptance testing. Updates to the manuals shall be supplied concurrently with any
CCS modifications that result in hpdating the manual.

(e) A test system in addition to the system required in subsection (b) may be
required if the Kansas lottery determines that a system shall be located at the Kansas
lottery.

(f) The cost of initial acceptance testing by the Kansas lottery, the commission,
and the commission’s independent testing laboratory shall be paid by the CCS supplier.

The cost of any testing resulting from system modifications or enhancements shall be
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paid by the CCS supplier. These costs shall include travel time and expenses for
functionality that must be tested on-site or at an alternate location.

(g) Bach CCS supplier shall be responsible for the consulting costs incurred by
the commission and the Kansas lottery to develop the test scripts. (Authorized by K.S.A.
2007 Supp. 74-8772; implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8749 and 74-8772; effective

P- )
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K.A.R. 112-111-1. Involuntary exclusion list. (a) An “involuntary exclusion list” shall
be created by the commission staff and shall consist of the names of people who the
executive director determines meet any one of the following criteria:

(1) Any person whose presence in a gaming facility would be inimical to the
interest of the state of Kansas or gaming in Kansas, including the following:

(A) Any person who cheats, including by intentionally doing any one of the
following:

(i) Altering or misrepresenting the outcome of a game or event on which wagers
have been made, after the outcome is determined but before the outcome is revealed to
the players;

(i) placing, canceling, increasing, or decreasing a bet after acquiring knowledge,
not available to other players, of the outcome of the game or subject of the bet or of
events affecting the outcome of the game or subject of the bet;

(iil) claiming or collecting money or anything of value from a game or authorized
gaming facility not won or eamed from the game or authorized gaming facility;

(iv) manipulating a gaming device or associated equipment to affect the outcome
of the game or the number of plays or credits available on the game; or

(v) altering the elements of chance or methods of selection or criteria that
determine the result of the game or amount or frequency of payment of the game;

(B) any person who poses a threat to the safety of the patrons or employees;
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(C) persons who pose a threat to themselves;

(D) persons with a documented history of conduct involving the disruption of a
gaming facility;

(E) persons included on another jurisdiction’s exclusion list; or

(F) persons subject to an order of the courts of Kansas excluding those persons
from any gaming facility;

(2) any felon or person who has been convicted of any crime or offense involving
moral turpitude and whose presence in a gaming facility would be inimical to the interest
of the state of Kansas or of gaming in Kansas; or

(3) any person who has been identified by the director of security as being a
criminal offender or gaming offender and whose presence in a gaming facility would be
inimical to the interest of the state of Kansas or of gaming in Kansas.

(b) Asused in this article, a person's presence shall be deemed "inimical to the
interest of the state of Kansas or gaming in Kansas" if the presence meets any one of the
following conditions:

(1) Is incompatible with the maintenance of public confidence and trust in the
integrity of licensed gaming;

(2) is reasonably expected to impair the public perception of or confidence in the
regulation or conduct of gaming; or

(3) creates or enhances a risk of unfair or illegal practices in the conduct of

gaming.
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(¢) The executive director’s determination of inimicality may be based upon any
of the following:

(1) The nature and notoriety of the person to be excluded from gaming facilities;

(2) the history and nature of the involvement of the person with a gaming facility
in Kansas or any other jurisdiction or with any particular licensee or licensees or any
related company of any licensee;

(3) the nature and frequency of any contacts or associations of the person with
any licensee; or

(4) any other factor reasonably related to the maintenance of public confidence in
the regulatory process or the integrity of gaming in Kansas.

(d) The involuntary exclusion list shall contain the following information, if
known, for each excluded person:

(1) The full name and all known aliases and the date of birth;

(2) a physical description;

(3) the date the person’s name was placed on the list;

(4) aphotograph, if available;

(5) the person’s occupation and current home and business addresses; and

(6) any other relevant information as deemed necessary by the commission.

(¢) The involuntary exclusion list shall be open to public inspection and shall be

distributed by the executive director. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772;

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8752 and 74-8772; effective P- N}
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K.A.R. 112-111-2. Inclusion on list; notice. (a) Upon the executive director’s
determination that a person meets the criteria for exclusion from gaming facilities in this
article, the person’s name shall be added to the involuntary exclusion list, and the
commission staff shall be directed by the executive director to file a notice of exclusion.
The notice of exclusion shall identify all of the following:

(1) The person to be excluded,;

(2) the nature and scope of the circumstances or reasons that the person should be
placed on the involuntary exclusion list;

(3) the names of potential witnesses;

(4) arecommendation as to whether the exclusion will be permanent; and

(5) the availability of a hearing by the commission.

(b) The notice of exclusion shall be served on the excluded person using any
method that is appropriate for service under Kansas law.

(¢) A written request for a hearing shall be delivered to the executive director
within 10 calendar days from the date the notice of exclusion was served on the person to
be excluded. If no request for hearing is made, an order shall be issued by the
commission affirming the placement of the person on the involuntary exclusion list. If
the excluded person timely requests a hearing, the commission staff shall set the matter

for a hearing before the commission. (Authorized by K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772;

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8752 and 74-8772; effective P- y)
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K.A.R. 112-111-3. Effect of placement on the exclusion list. (a) Each excluded
person shall be prohibited from entry to a gaming facility.

(b) If the commission or a Kansas court finds that the person does not meet the
criteria for exclusion, then the person’s name shall be removed from the involuntary
exclusion list and the exclusion shall be terminated effective upon the date of the action
by the commission or the court. {Authorized by and implementing L. 2007, Ch. 110, §41;

effective P- )
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K.A.R, 112-111-4, Licensees’ duties. (a) Each gaming licensee shall exclude from the
gaming facility any person on the involuntary exclusion list.

(b) Each gaming licensee’s director of security shall notify the commission’s
security staff if an excluded person has attempted entry to the gaming facility.

(¢) Each gaming licensee shall distribute copies of the involuntary exclusion list
to its employees.

(d) Each gaming licensee shall notify the commission in writing of the names of
persons the gaming licensee believes meet the criteria for placement on the involuntary

exclusion list. (Authorized by and implementing L. 2007, Ch. 110, §41; effective P-

)
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K.A.R. 112-111-5, Petition for removal. (a) An excluded person shall not petition the
commission for removal from the involuntary exclusion list until at least five years have
passed from date of the commission’s order affirming placement of the person on the list.

(b) Each petition shall be verified with supporting affidavits and shall state in
detail the grounds that the petitioner believes constitute good cause for the petitioner’s
removal from the list.

(c) The petition may be decided by the comumission on the basis of the documents
submitted by the excluded person. The petition may be granted or summarily denied by the
commission or a hearing on the matter may be directed to be held by the commission. The
petition may be granted or a hearing may be directed to be held by the commission only upon
a finding that there is new evidence that would alter the original decision to affirm the

person’s placement on the involuntary exclusion list. (Authorized by and implementing

K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-113-1. Sanctions. (a) Any licensee, certificate holder, permit holder, or applicant
may be sanctioned for violating any provision of the act, these regulations, or any other
law that directly or indirectly affects the integrity of gaming in Kansas, including a
violation of any of the following:

(1) Failing to disclose material, complete, and truthful information to the
commission and its staff;

(2) failing to comply with any of the duties in article 101;

(3) being a facility manager and employing unlicensed employees or independent
coniractors,

(4) being a facility manager and contracting with uncertified gaming or
nongaming suppliers;

(5) failing to follow the commission’s minimum internal control standards or the
facility manager’s minimum internal control system;

(6) failing to follow the commission’s security regulations or the facility
manager’s security plan;

(7) failing to follow the commission’s surveillance regulations or the facility
manager’s surveillance plan,;

(8) failing to enforce the involuntary exclusion list;

(9) failing to enforce the facility manager’s responsible gaming plan or the
provisions of article 112;

(10) failing to post signs informing patrons of the toll-free number available to
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provide information and referral services regarding problem gambling; or

(11) permitting persons who are less than 21 years of age that do not have an
occupation license to be in areas where electronic gaming machines or lottery facility
games are being conducted.

(b) The commission, disciplinary review board, and executive director shall have
the authority to impose any of the following sanctions:

(1) License, certificate, or permit revocation;

(2) license, certificate, or permit suspension;

(3) license, certificate, or permit application denial;

(4) a monetary fine pursuant to K.S.A. 74-8764 and amendments thereto;

(5) waming letters or letters of reprimand or censure. These letters shall be made
a permanent part of the file of the licensee, applicant, permit holder, or certificate holder;
or

(6) any other remedial sanction agreed to by the licensee, applicant, certificate
holder, or permit holder.

(¢) Each sanction shall be determined on a case-by-case basis. In considering
sanctions, the following may be considered by the executive director, disciplinary review
board, or commission:

(1) The risk to the public and to the integrity of gaming operations created by the
conduct of the licensee, certificate holder, permit holder, or applicant facing sanctions;

(2) the nature of the violation;
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(3) the culpability of the licensee, certificate holder, permit holder, or applicant
responsible for the violation;

(4) any justification or excuse for the conduct;

(5) the history of the licensee, certificate holder, permit holder, or applicant with
respect to compliance with the act, these regulations, or other law; and

(6) any corrective action taken by the licensee, certificate holder, permit holder,
or applicant to prevent future misconduct.

(d) In the case of a monetary fine, the financial means of the licensee, certificate
holder, permit holder, or applicant may be considered.

(e) It shall be no absolute defense that the licensee, certificate holder, permit
holder, or applicant inadvertently, unintentionally, or unknowingly violated a provision
of the act or these regulations. These factors shall affect only the degree of the sanction
to be imposed by the commission.

(f) Each violation of any provision of these regulations that is an offense of a
continuing nature shall be deemed to be a separate offense on each day during which the
violation occurs. The commission shall not be precluded from finding multiple violations
within a day of those provisions of the regulations that establish offenses consisting of

separate and distinct acts. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751

and 74-8772; effective P- N
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112-114-1. Definitions. The following terms as used in these regulations shall have the
meanings specified in this regulation, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

(a) “Disciplinary review board” means a board established by the executive
director. The board members shall be appointed by the executive director to review
certain applications and licensee or certificate holder conduct and to ensure compliance
by applicants, licensees, and certificate holders with these regulations, the act, and other
laws.

(b) “Hearing body” means the commission, disciplinary review board, or

executive director, when each of these is conducting a hearing. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-114-2. Report of an alleged violation. (2) Any person may file a report of an
alleged violation with any commission office.

(b) Each person reporting an aHeged‘violation shall complete the commission-
approved report form available online and in commission offices. Substantiaily
incomplete forms shall not be accepted by commission personnel. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P-
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112-114-3. Notice of alleged violation and hearing. (a) If disposition of the allegation
raised in a report could result in suspension or revocation, the respondent shall be
provided by the commission with reasonable notice of the alleged violation and hearing.

(b) The notice of alleged violation and hearing shall include the following
information:

(1) The time and location of the hearing;

(2) the identity of the hearing body;

(3) the case number and the name of the proceeding;

(4) a statement of the legal authority and a general description of the allegation,
including the time of occurrence;

(5) a statement that a respondent who fails to attend the hearing may be subject to
the entry of an order that is justified by the evidence presented at the hearing; and

(6) a statement that a respondent has the right to appear at the hearing with
counsel, the right to produce any evidence and witness on the respondent's behalf, the
right to cross-examine any witness who may testify against the respondent, and the right
to examine any evidence that may be produced against the respondent.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P-
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112-114-4. Waiver. Except to the extent precluded by another provision of law, a
person may waive any right conferred upon that person by these regulations.

(Authorized by and implementing L. 2007, Ch. 110, §20 and §41; effective P-

y
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112-114-5. Informal settlements. Nothing in these regulations shall preclude the

informal settlement of matters that could make a hearing unnecessary. (Authorized by

and implementing L. 2007, Ch. 110, §20 and §41; effective P- )
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112-114-6. Participation by and representation of respondents. (a) Whether or not
participating in person, any respondent who is a natural person may be represented by an
attorney licensed to practice law in the state of Kansas in any evidentiary hearing
conducted before the commission or its designated presiding officer or officers. The
attorney shall represent the respondent at the respondent’s own expense.

(b) Bach for-profit or not-for-profit corporation, unincorporated association, or
other respondent who is a non-natural person shall be represented by an attorney licensed
to practice law in the state of Kansas in any evidentiary hearing conducted before the
commission or its designated presiding officer or officers. The attorney shall represent

the respondent at the respondent’s own expense. (Authorized by and implementing

K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-114-8. Presiding officer. (2) The presiding officer shall be cither of the following:

(1) The executive director or the chairperson of the comimission; or

(2) aperson designated by the commission.

(b) For disciplinary review board hearings, if a substitute is required for 2
presiding officer or other member of the hearing body who is unavailable for any reason,
a substitute shall be appointed by the executive director. Each action taken by the duly
appointed substitute shall be as effective as if the action had been taken by the
unavailable member. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751 and

74-8772; effective P- )
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112-114-9. Hearing procedure. (a) The presiding officer at each hearing shall regulate
the course of the proceedings.

(b) To the extent necessary for full disclosure of all relevant facts and issues, the
presiding officer shall afford to all parties the opportunity to respond, present evidence
and argument, conduct cross-examination, and submit rebuttal evidence.

(c) Upon the request of the respondent, the presiding officer may conduct all or
part of the hearing by telephone or other electronic means, if each participant in the
hearing has an opportunity to participate in the entire proceeding while it is taking place.

(d) The presiding officer shall cause the hearing to be recorded at the
commission’s expense. The commission shall not be required to prepare a transcript at
its expense. Subject to any reasonable conditions that the presiding officer may establish,
any party may cause a person other than the commission to prepare a transcript of the
proceedings.

(e) Each hearing shall be open to public observation, except for deliberations and
parts that the presiding officer states are to be closed pursuant to a provision of law

expressly authorizing closure. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-

8751 and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-114-10. Evidence. (a) A presiding officer shall not be bound by technical rules of
evidence but shall give the parties reasonable opportunity to be heard and to present
evidence. The presiding officer shall act without partiality. The presiding officer shall
apply any rules of privilege that are recognized by law. Evidence shall not be required to
be excluded solely because the evidence is hearsay.

(b) All testimony of parties and witnesses shall be made under oath or
affirmation, and the presiding officer or the presiding officer's designee who is legally
authorized to administer an oath or affirmation shall have the power to administer an oath
or affirmation for that purpose.

(¢c) Documentary evidence may be received in the form of a copy or excerpt,
including electronically stored information. Upon request, parties shall be given an
opportunity to compare the copy with the original, if available.

(d) Official notice may be taken of the following;

(1) Any matter that could be judicially noticed in the courts of this state; and

(2) the record of other proceedings before the disciplinary review board or the
commission. (Authorized by and implementing L. 2007, Ch. 110, §20 and §41; effective

P- )
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112-114-11, Orders. (a) Within 30 days after the hearing, the hearing body shall enter
a written order.

(b) Bach order shall include a brief statement of the findings of the hearing body
and any penalty prescribed. The findings shall be based exclusively upon the evidence of
record and on matters officially noticed in the hearing.

(c) For disciplinary review board hearings, the order shall also include a
statement that the order is subject to appeal to the commission and the available
procedures and time limits for seeking an appeal. The order shall further include a
statement that any suspension imposed by the order may be stayed, pending appeal.

(d) For disciplinary review board hearings, the hearing body may impose any
penalty authorized by law and may refer the matter to the commission with findings and
recommendations for imposition of greater penalties.

(¢) Each order shall be effective when rendered.

(f) The presiding officer shall cause copies of the order to be served upon each

party to the proceedings. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2007 Supp. 74-8751

and 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-114-12. Service of order. (a) Service of an order shall be made upon the party and
the party's attorney of record, if any.

(b) Service shall be presumed if the presiding officer, or a person directed to
make service by the presiding officer, makes a written certificate of service.

(c) Service by mail shall be complete upon mailing.

(d) Whenever a party has the right or is required to do some act or take some
proceedings within a prescribed period after service of an order is made by mail, three

days shall be added to the prescribed period. (Authorized by and implementing L. 2007,

Ch. 110, §20 and §41; effective P- )
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112-114-14. Appeals of disciplinary review board hearings. (a) Bach order entered
by the disciplinary review board that imposes suspension or revocation, or any other
sanction shall be subject to appeal to the commission.

(b) Each party who wishes to appeal a disciplinary review board order shall file a
notice of appeal and brief on forms provided by the commission during regular office
hours within 11 days after service of the order from which the party is appealing. Ifan
order is served by mail, the party shall have 14 days within which to file a notice of
appeal and brief.

(c) Each notice of appeal and brief shall be completed by the appealing party
upon the form available in the commission’s licensing office at the gaming facility. Each
notice of appeal and brief shall fully state the basis for appeal and identify the issues upon
which the party seeks administrative review. Incomplete forms shall not be accepted by
commission personnel,

(d) A notice of appeal and brief shall constitute the appealing party's written
brief An opposing party shall be afforded an opportunity to file a brief in response to the
appealing party's brief within 14 days following the filing of the appealing party's brief.

(e) Each notice of appeal form shall include a statement that, in reviewing any
disciplinary review board’s order, the following provisions shall apply:

(1) De novo review may be exercised by the commission, one or more

commissioners designated by the commission, or a presiding officer designated by the

commission. " L
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(2) The disciplinary review board’s order may be affirmed, reversed, remanded
for further hearing, or modified by the commission, one or more commissioners
designated by the commission, or a presiding officer designated by the commission. A
new hearing may also be conducted by the commission, one or more commissioners
designated by the commission, or a presiding officer designated by the commission. An
occupation license may be suspended or revoked for each violation of the act or these
regulations, or both.

(f) Any respondent may be deemed to Ea.ve timely filed a notice of appeal
pursuant to subsection (b) if, after service of the disciplinary review board’s order, the
respondent performs the following:

(1) Within the appeal time described in subsection (b) of this regulation, files a
writing that states an intention to appeal the order and that includes substantially the same
information requested in the appeal form available in the commission’s licensing office at
the gaming facility; and

(2) within a period of time authorized by the disciplinary review board, fully
executes and files in the commission’s licensing office at the gaming facility the appeal

form available in that office. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-

8751 and 74-8772; effective P- )
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Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM

DATE OF MEETING: March 13, 2009

AGENDA ITEM: Preliminary approval of additional gaming regulations
PRESENTER: Patrick D. Martin, Assistant Attorney General
ISSUE SUMMARY: Staff asks the Commission to preliminarily approve regulations

relating to (1) minimum internal control standards for keys and form management, K.A.R. 112-
104-34 to -41, and (2) table games, 112-108-1 et seq.

The proposed regulations are necessary because the Expanded Lottery Act requires the
Commission to create and adopt “such rules and regulations as the commission deems necessary
to carry out the duties and functions of the commission pursuant to Kansas expanded lottery act.”
K.S.A. 74-8772. As a part of that duty, the Commission is responsible for adopting regulations

[p]Jromoting the integrity of the gaming and finances of lottery gaming
facilities and racetrack gaming facilities and [the Commission] shall meet
or exceed industry standards for monitoring and controlling the gaming
and finances of lottery gaming facility operations and racetrack gaming
facility operations and shall give the Kansas racing and gaming
commission sufficient authority to monitor and control the gaming
operation and to ensure its integrity and security.

Id. at (a).

The Commission’s preliminary approval of these regulations will allow the staff to
submit the proposed regulations to the Department of Administration’s legal department and the
Attorney General’s office for those entities’ review and revision. And to be clear, submission to
the DOA and AG are just the first parts of the rigorous and lengthy process in creating
permanent regulations.

COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED: Staff asks the Commission to
preliminarily approve articles of regulations relating to (1) minimum internal control standards
for keys and form management, K.A.R. 112-104-34 to -41, and (2) table games, 112-108-1 et
seq.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends the preliminary approval of the proposed
regulations.
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112-104-34. Physical key controls; automated key controls. (a) “Sensitive keys” are
those unlocking devices designated by either the Kansas lottery, a facility manager, or the
commission as important to preserving the security of the facility manager’s business.
Each facility manager must strictly control the storage, duplication, custody, issuance,
and return of sensitive keys. The sensitive key box may be stored in each facility
manager’s accounting department. At a minimum, the following keys are sensitive keys:

(1) The EGM belly glass key;

(2) the tip box key, sometimes called a “toke box” key; and

(3) the accounting or audit box key.

(b) Sensitive keys may be further designated as “critical.” Critical keys are those
unlocking devices that shall be maintained in a dual locked box. If a critical key is lost or
becomes missing, all locks that the key fits shall be changed within 24 hours. At a
minimum, the following keys are Critical keys:

(1) The EGM central processing unit key;

(2) the EGM main door key;

(3) the EGM drop door key;

(4) the bill validator door and box release key;

(5) the billvalidator contents key;

(6) the jackpot or EGM re-impressment kiosk keys;

(7) the self-redemption or bill breaker kiosk keys;

(8) the change cart key;

(9) the table game drop box content key;

(10) the table game drop box release key;
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(11) the bill validator and table drop storage cart keys;

(11) the table games chip bank cover key;

(12) the table games chip tray key;

(13) the progressive table games controller key;

(14) the progressive table games high end key;

(15) the reserve chip storage keys;

(16) the card and dice storage area keys;

(17) the secondary chip storage keys;

(17) the access door key to any cage, EGM bank, or redemption booth;

(18) the window key to any cage, EGM bank, or redemption booth;

(19) the vault keys;

(20) the soft count room keys;

(21) the weight scale calibration key; and

(22) any keys not listed above that control access to cash or chip storage areas.

(c) If a facility manager chooses to use rings to maintain its keys, each key on the
ring shall be identified ona key access list individually.

(d)* Each facility manager’s internal control system shall include details about the
following information:

(1) The location of each sensitive and critical key box;

(2) the employee or contract job titles that are authorized to access the sensitive
or critical key boxes;

(3) how the keys for the sensitive or critical key boxes shall be issued and

controlled:;
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(4) the sensitive or critical key names, location, custodian and job titles
authorized to sign out each sensitive or critical key;

(5) the location and custodian of duplicate sensitive keys; and

(6) continuous surveillance coverage of each key box.

(e) If a facility manager chooses to use an automated key control system, the
facility manager’s internal control system shall also include the following information:

(1) A description of the automated system and its configuration, including how
access is controlled;

(2) the system’s ability to provide scheduled and on-demand reports for a
complete audit trail of all access including the following:

(A) The identity of the key box;

(B) the identity of the employee;

(C) the identity of the keys;

(D) the date and time a key was removed;

(E) the date and time a key was returned;

(F) any unauthorized attempts to access the key box; and

(G) all entries, changes, or deletions in the system and the employee performing
the entry, change, or deletion;

(3) the employee position that is in charge of any automated key control system;

(4) the employee positions that are authorized to enter, modify, and delete any
keys;

(5) the employee positions that are authorized to access the system.

(6) details about the alarms being used to signal for the following events:
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(A) Overdue keys;

(B) open key box doors;

(C) unauthorized attempts to access; and

(D) any other unusual activities;

(7) any system override procedures; and

(8) a procedure for the notification of a commission security agent on duty in the
event of partial or complete system failure.

(f) All individuals authorized to access keys in the automated system shall have
such authorization noted in such employee’s personnel file.

(g) Any changes to the authorized employees that have access to the automated
keys shall be updated within 72 hours of the employee change. (Authorized by and
implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )

112-104-35. Key control procedures. (a) Each facility manager’s internal controls for
keys shall include a key box custodian.  Each sensitive or critical key box custodian shall
be issued a sensitive or critical key access list that notes the authorized employee
positions that may accesseach sensitive or critical key.

(b)~ If two keys are required to access a controlled area, then the keys shall be
issued to different.employees and each key shall be individually signed out of the key
access list.

(c) Keys which require issuance under security or management escort shall be
identified as such in the sensitive or critical key access list. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )

E.5.b (4 of 30)



112-104-36. Key access list. (a) Each facility manager shall maintain a current and
accurate key access list for each sensitive or critical key. Each facility manager shall
provide a copy of the key access list to the commission’s director of security. The key
access list shall include the following details:

(1) Name of the key;

(2) the storage location of the key;

(3) the custodian of the key;

(4) the quantity of the keys;

(5) the employees’ titles that are authorized to remove the key; and

(6) any escort requirements and specific limitations to key access.

(b) The custodian of duplicate keys shall maintain a key access list documenting
the following information:

(1) The name of the keys;

(2) the key number;

(3) the employee positions that are authorized to remove the key; and

(4) any escort requirements for the key’s use.

(c)* The internal control system for keys shall indicate which employees have the
authority to make changes, deletions, or additions to the sensitive and critical key access

lists. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

)

112-104-37. Key log. (a) All sensitive or critical keys may only be issued after
completion of a sensitive or critical key log. The key log shall include the following

information:
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(1) Date issued or returned;

(2) the key number;

(3) the individual or automated key box issuing the key;

(4) the individual receiving key;

(5) the time the key was signed out or removed;

(6) the time the key was signed in;

(7) the individual returning the key; and

(8) the individual or automated key box receiving the returned key.

(b) The individual who signs out a sensitive or a critical key shall maintain
custody of the key until the key is returned to the sensitive key box. Keys may only be
passed to count team leads and distributed to other count team members during bill
validator drops and EGM drops. In the event of an emergency, illness, or injury
rendering the individual incapable of returning the key a supervisor may return the key
with a notation on the sensitive key log.

(c) Upon completion, sensitive or critical key logs shall be forwarded at intervals
specified by the facility manager to the accounting or internal audit department where
they shall be reviewed and retained. If any discrepancies are found in the key logs, the
security or internal-auditing department shall begin an investigation and document the
discrepancy.

(d) Each facility manager shall maintain a duplicate key inventory log
documenting the current issuance, receipt, and inventory of all duplicate sensitive keys.
The duplicate key inventory log shall include the following information:

(1) The date and time;
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(2) the key name;

(3) the key number;

(4) the number of keys in beginning inventory;

(5) the number of keys added or removed;

(6) the number of keys in ending inventory;

(7) the reason for adding or removing keys; and

(8) the signatures of the two individuals accessing the box. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- D)

112-104-38. Broken, lost, or missing keys. (a) The internal control system shall
include procedures in the event a critical or sensitive key is broken as to which employee
shall receive and replace the broken key, disposition of the broken key, and notification
to a commission agent on duty.

(b) An inventory of duplicate keys shall be maintained in such quantity that there
shall always be at least one duplicate key in inventory for each critical or sensitive key.

(c) The internal:control system shall include procedures to be followed when a
sensitive or critical key is lost, missing, or taken from the premises.

(d) The internal control system shall include procedures for investigating and
reporting missing critical or sensitive keys. The commission agent on duty shall be
notified immediately of any missing or lost sensitive or critical keys. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-104-39. Corrections to forms. (a) Monetary corrections to a figure originally
recorded on a form may only be made in ink by performing the following:

(1) Crossing out the error;

(2) entering the correct figure; and

(3) obtaining the initials of the employee making the change and the initials of
the employee’s supervisor.

(b) Non-monetary corrections to forms shall be initialed by the employee making
the correction.

(c) Any forms that are not pre-numbered shall be maintained and controlled by
the applicable department manager. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008

Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )

112-104-40. Manual forms dispensers. (a) Each facility manager’s accounting or
security department shall be responsible for loading and unloading any locked manual
forms dispensers. Forms unloaded from the dispenser shall be delivered directly to the
accounting department.

(b) Inthe event the manual forms dispenser jams, an employee from the
accounting department or security department shall clear the jam and relock the manual
forms dispenser.

(c) The last copy is retained intact in the forms dispenser in a continuous,

unbroken form.

(d) Manual forms dispensers shall be used to control the following manual forms:

(1) Table fill slips;

(2) table credit slips;
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(3) EGM hand-paid jackpot payout forms; and

(4) EGM hopper fill slips. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp.
74-8772; effective P- )
112-104-41. Forms; description. (a) Each facility manager shall maintain a supply of
all forms listed in subsection (b) and any additional forms that the manager deems
necessary to manage the facility operations. Each facility manager’s internal control
submission shall include an index of all forms that the manager may use.

(b) The following forms shall be a part of each facility manager’s minimum
internal controls:

(1) Inventory ledgers for the following:

(A) Date of receipt, count, or issuance of cards or dice;

(B) quantity of cards and dice received or issued; and

(C) balance of cards or dice inventory on hand,;

(2) A cards or dice pick-up and cancellation or destruction log, including the
following details:

(A) The date of the form’s preparation;

(B) the date and'time of cancellation or destruction of the cards or dice;

(C) the quantity of cards and dice picked-up, canceled, or destroyed; and

(D) all required signatures;

(3) A card or dice storage log for the pit area, including the following details:

(A) The date of each entry on the log;

(B) the quantity and description of all cards and dice placed in the compartment;
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(C) the quantity and description of all cards and dice removed from the
compartment;

(D) the current number of each design and color combination of cards and dice;
and

(E) every daily verification of the current inventory;

(4) A cashier’s cage or vault count sheet, including the following details:

(A) The date and time of the count sheet’s completion;

(B) the location of the cashier’s cage;

(C) the amount of each type and denomination of funds;

(D) the actual count total or closing inventory;

(E) the accountability total,

(F) the amount of overages or shortages; and

(G) every signature required under by these regulations for the count sheet;

(5) A cashier’s cage multiple transaction log, including the following details:

(A) The location of the cashier’s cage or bank where the cash transactions
occurred;

(B) the date of the multiple transaction log;

(C) the full'name of any patron making multiple transactions, if provided by the
patron, or a description to help identify the patron if the patron refuses to provide a name.
Such a description should include weight, height, hair color, and any other distinguishing
features;

(D) the total cash transaction amount; and

(E) the transaction type. The transaction types are as follows:
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(i) Cash-outs, including but not limited to cashing personal checks and travelers
checks;

(i1) chip redemptions. Include gaming location in comments column;

(1ii) deposits in for safekeeping;

(iv) deposits out when withdrawing a safekeeping deposit; and

(v) other transactions not listed above, including cash transaction payment of
EGM jackpots and exchanges of currency for currency;

(F) the time of the transaction;

(G) the employee’s signature and commission license number of the employee
logging the transaction;

(H) any other information that would be useful in identifying the patron or
explaining the transaction;

(1) the supervisor’s signature. The supervisor’s signature shall acknowledge the
following items:

(i) That the supervisor has reviewed the log and to the best of the supervisor’s
knowledge, all cash transactions of $500 or more in excess of $3,000 have been properly
recorded; and

(i) that all-currency transaction reports have been properly completed for all
single cash transactions and series of multiple cash transactions in excess of $10,000; and

(J) the page number and total pages of the log for the gaming day;

(6) A chip inventory ledger, including the following details:

(A) The date of receipt, issuance, and destruction;

(B) the number of each denomination of chips received, issued, or destroyed;
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(C) the dollar amount of each denomination of value chips received, issued, or
destroyed;

(D) the number and description of non-value chips received, issued, or destroyed;

(E) any required signatures; and

(F) the identification of primary chips held in reserve with the word “reserve;”

(7) A safekeeping deposit or withdrawal form, including the following details:

(A) preprinted numbering on all copies;

(B) the patron making the deposit’s name and signature;

(C) the date of the deposit or withdrawals;

(D) the amount of deposit or withdrawals ;

(E) the type of deposit or withdrawal;

(F) the reason for depositor withdrawal; and

(G) any required signatures;

(8) A duplicate key-inventory log, including the following details:

(A) the date and time of the log’s completion;

(B) the key nameg;

(C) the key number;

(D) the number of keys in beginning inventory;

(E) the number of keys added or removed,;

(F) the number of keys in ending inventory;

(G) the reason for adding or removing keys; and

(H) the required signatures of the two individuals accessing the box;

(9) A tips and gratuity deposit form, including the following details:
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(A) The date of the form’s completion;

(B) the amount of chips listed by denomination;

(C) the total amount of all denominations; and

(D) all required signatures;

(10) A temporary bank voucher, including the following details:

(A) The date and time of the voucher’s completion;

(B) the location of the temporary bank;

(C) the amount of funds issued;

(D) the signature from the main bank cashier who is issuing the funds;

(E) the signature of the individual receiving funds;

(F) the signature of the individual returning funds; and

(G) the signature of the main bank cashier receiving returned funds;

(11) A duplication of the critical program storage media log, including the
following details:

(A) The date of the form’s completion;

(B) the manufacturer of the chip;

(C) the program number;

(D) any personnel involved; and

(E) the disposition of any permanently removed CPSM;

(12) An EGM drop compartment sweeps log, including the following details:

(A) Each EGM number and location;

(B) the date and time of the drop;

(C) every signature of employees performing the sweep; and
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(D) the supervisor overseeing the drop’s signature;

(13) An EGM drop or win report, including the following details:

(A) The gaming date;

(B) the amount weighed by denomination and totaled,;

(C) the amount wrapped by denomination and totaled;

(D) the dollar value difference by denomination;

(E) the percentage variance difference by denomination;

(F) the total jackpot payouts;

(G) the total hopper fills;

(H) the total foreign tokens;

() the total drop by denomination;

(J) the total drop all denominations;

(K) the net win (loss) by denomination and total; and

(L) all required signatures;

(14) An EGM entry access log, sometimes called a “MEAL book,” including the
following details:

(A) The EGM number and location;

(B) the date and time of the EGM access;

(C) the reason for entry; and

(D) all required signatures;

(15) An EGM hand-paid jackpot form, including the following details:

(A) the date and time of the form’s completion;

(B) an EGM number, requiring hand-payment, location and denomination;
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(C) the amount of jackpot;

(D) the reel symbols on EGM jackpot requiring hand-payment; and

(E) all required signatures;

(16) An EGM hopper fill slip, including the following details:

(A) The date and time;

(B) an EGM number, location and denomination;

(C) the amount of hopper fill (numeric only is authorized if produced by an
automated system); and

(D) the required signatures;

(17) An EGM sweeps log, including the following details:

(A) Each EGM number and location;

(B) the date and time;

(C) every signature of employees performing the sweep; and

(D) the supervisor overseeing the sweep’s signature;

(18) An even exchange slip, including the following details:

(A) The date, time, and locations of the exchange;

(B) the amountsto be exchanged by type;

(C) the amounts to be changed for;

(D) all required signatures; and

(E) the total exchanged;

(19) Each cage or bank variance slip, including the following details:

(A) The date and time of the slip’s completion;

(B) the location of bank;
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(C) the amount of overage or shortage; and

(D) all required signatures;

(20) Ingress or egress logs for the count, surveillance rooms and cages, including
the following details:

(A) The date of ingress or egress;

(B) the printed name of persons entering or leaving;

(C) the time in and out;

(D) the reason for entry; and

(E) all required signatures;

(21) A main bank or vault accountability, including the following details:

(A) The date and shift;

(B) the opening balance;

(C) the amount of each type of accountability transactions;

(D) detail of the total main bank or vault inventory including the inventory of the
following:

(1) currency,

(i) coin,

(1ii) chips,

(iv) safekeeping deposits, and

(v) any unclaimed property account;

(E) the total main bank or vault inventory;

(F) all overages and shortages;

(G) the closing balance; and
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(H) all required signatures;

(22) A master gaming report, including the following details:
(A) The gaming date;

(B) the game and table number;

(C) the table opener;

(D) the total fill slips;

(E) the total credit slips;

(F) the table closer;

(G) the total drop per table;

(H) the overall totals by game;

() the total win or loss; and

(J) all required signatures;

(23) A RAM clearing slip, including the following details:
(A) The date and time;

(B) an EGM number, location, and tokens played;

(C) the current reel positions or video display;

(D) the previous two reel positions or video display;

(E) the actual meter readings of the internal hard and soft meters;
(F) the progressive jackpot display, if linked;

(G) the reason for RAM clear; and

(H) all required signatures;

(24) The returned check log, including the following details:

(A) The name and address of the person who presented the check;
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(B) the date of the check;

(C) the amount of the check;

(D) the check number;

(E) the date the licensee received notification from a financial institution that the
check was not accepted; and

(F) the dates and amounts of any payments received on the check after being
returned by a financial institution;

(25) A sensitive key log, including the following:

(A) The date;

(B) the key number;

(C) the individual or automated key box issuing key;

(D) the individual receiving the key;

(E) the time key signed out;

(F) the time key signed in;

(G) the individual returning the key; and

(H) the individual or automated key box receiving the returned key;

(26) A signature authorization list, including the following details:

(A) The hire date;

(B) the employee name;

(C) the department;

(D) the position;

(E) the license number;

(F) the exemplar initials; and
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(G) the exemplar signature with a minimum of first initial and last name;

(27) A surveillance incident report, including the following details:

(A) The date and incident report number;

(B) the time and location of the incident;

(C) the names and addresses of witnesses and subjects involved in the incident, if
known;

(D) a detail narrative of incident;

(E) anidentification of video tape covering the incident;

(F) the final disposition of the incident; and

(G) all required signatures;

(28) A surveillance shift log, including the following details:

(A) The date;

(B) the time of and duration, name, and location of important or unusual
observations;

(C) alisting of any surveillance issues, including the following:

(1) equipment malfunctions related to other logged events or activities,

(iiy* completed tapes,

(i) still photograph requests, and

(D) required signatures;

(29) A surveillance tape release log, including the following details:

(A) The tape number;

(B) the date and time of release;

(C) the printed name, department, or agency;
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(D) anotation indicating whether the tape is a duplicate or original;
(E) an authorization notation;

(F) anissued by and to notation; and

(G) all required signatures;

(30) A surveillance tape retention log, including the following details:
(A) The date and time;

(B) the tape number;

(C) adescription, activity recorded, recording mode; and

(D) all required signatures;

(31) A table credit slip, including the following details:

(A) The date, pit, game or table number, and time;

(B) the amount of each denomination of chips to be credited;
(C) the total amount of all denomination to be credited; and
(D) all required signatures;

(32) A table fill slip, including the following details:

(A) The date, pit; game or table number, and time;

(B) the amount of each denomination of chips to be distributed;
(C) the total amount of all denomination to be distributed; and
(D) all required signatures;

(33) A table inventory slip, including the following details:

(A) The date and shift;

(C) the game and table number;

(D) the total value of each denomination of chips remaining at the table;
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(E) the total value of all denominations; and
(F) all required signatures;

(35) A table soft count slip or currency counter machine tape, including the

following details:

details:

(A) The date;

(B) the table game and number;

(C) the box contents by denomination;
(D) the total of all denominations; and

(E) all required signatures;

(35) A weigh scale calibration module access log, including the following details:

(A) The date and time;

(B) the reason for access; and

(C) all required signatures;

(36) A weigh scale tape, including-the following details:
(A) The date and time;

(B) an EGM number and denomination;

(C) the weigh value per bucket;

(D) the total by denomination;

(E) the total of all denominations; and

(F) all required signatures;

(37) A wide area progressive secondary jackpot slip, including the following

(A) The date and time;
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(B) an EGM number, location, and denomination;

(C) the amount of jackpot in alpha and numeric description;

(D) the reel symbols and number of tokens played,;

(E) all required signatures; and

(F) the game type;

(38) A security incident report, including the following details:

(A) The incident report number;

(B) the date and time;

(C) the location of the incident;

(D) the date and time of the incident;

(E) the type of incident;

(F) the names and addresses of witnesses and subjects involved in the incident, if
known;

(G) adetailed narrative of the incident;

(H) the identification of video tape covering the incident, if applicable; and

() all required signatures;

(39) A security incident log, including the following details:

(A) The date of the daily log;

(B) time of the incident;

(C) the incident report number;

(D) the name of reporting security department employee and commission license
number; and

(E) the summary of the incident;
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(40) A visitor or vendor log, including the following details:

(A) The date;

(B) the printed name;

(C) the company;

(D) the time in and time out;

(E) the type of badge and the badge number;

(F) the reason for entry; and

(G) all required signatures.

(41) A key access list, including the following details:

(A) The name of the key;

(B) the location of the key;

(C) the custodian of the key;

(D) the quantity of the keys; and

(E) the job titles authorized to sign out the key and, if applicable, escort
requirements and specific limitations;

(42) A table games variance slip, including the following details:

(A) The gaming date;

(B) the game or table number;

(C) the shift;

(D) adescription of the discrepancy found; and

(E) all required signatures;

(43) Aninventory log of pre-numbered forms, including the following details:

(A) The name of the pre-numbered form;
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(B) the date received or issued,;

(C) the quantity received or issued;

(D) the number sequence of forms received or issued;

(E) the name of the department that forms were issued to; and
(F) all required signatures and commission license numbers;
(44) A gift log, including the following details:

(A) The name of the gift recipient;

(B) the gift donor;

(C) adescription and value of the gift; and

(D) the date the gift was received;

(45) A safekeeping log, including the following details:

(A) The date of deposit or withdrawal,

(B) the name of patron;

(C) the dollar amount of deposit or withdrawal,

(D) the type of deposit or withdrawal; and

(E) the total balance of all deposits;

(46) A card or dice discrepancy report, including the following details:

(A) The date and time;

(B) the location;

(C) adescription of the discrepancy found; and

(D) all required signatures;

(47) A remote access log, including the following details:

(A) The access start date and time;
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(B) the access end date and time;

(C) the reason; and

(D) the person making access;

(48) A personnel access list, including the following details:

(A) The mployee name;

(B) the license number; and

(C) all authorized functions the employee may perform or equivalent means of
identifying same;

(49) A redemption log, including the following details:

(A) The date;

(B) the dollar value of each item received by mail;

(C) the check number;

(D) the patron’s name and address; and

(E) the signature of the employee performing the transaction;

(50) A currency cassette log, including the following details:

(A) The date;

(B) the time;

(C) the tamper resistant seal number;

(D) the unique cassette number;

(E) the amount of cash in the cassette;

(F) the denomination of currency in the cassette; and

(G) the signature of the main bank cashier who prepared the cassette; and

(51) A table games jackpot slip, including the following details:
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(A) The date;

(B) the time;

(C) the amount of winnings in alpha and numeric description;

(D) the table game number;

(E) the type of jackpot;

(F) the player’s name;

(G) the signature of cashier;

(H) the signature of the dealer;

() the signature of the table games supervisor; and

(J) the signature of the security officer escorting the funds;

(52) A meter reading comparison report, including the following details:
(A) The date;

(B) the asset number;

(C) the beginning and ending credits played;

(D) the beginning and ending credits paid;

(E) the beginning and ending amount-to-drop, if applicable;

(F) the beginning and ending jackpots paid;

(G) the difference between the beginning and ending amount for all meters;
(H) the variance between the meters, if any; and

() an accounting signature. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008

Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-104-34. Physical key controls; automated key controls. (a) “Sensitive keys” are
those unlocking devices designated by either the Kansas lottery, a facility manager, or the
commission as important to preserving the security of the facility manager’s business.
Each facility manager must strictly control the storage, duplication, custody, issuance,
and return of sensitive keys. The sensitive key box may be stored in each facility
manager’s accounting department. At a minimum, the following keys are sensitive keys:

(1) The EGM belly glass key;

(2) the tip box key, sometimes called a “toke box” key; and

(3) the accounting or audit box key.

(b) Sensitive keys may be further designated as “critical.” Critical keys are those
unlocking devices that shall be maintained in a dual'locked box. If a critical key is lost or
becomes missing, all locks that the key fits shall be changed within 24 hours. At a
minimum, the following keys are critical keys:

(1) The EGM central processing unit key;

(2) the EGM main door key;

(3) the EGM drop door key;

(4) the bill validator door and box release key;

(5) the billvalidator contents key;

(6) the jackpot or EGM re-impressment kiosk keys;

(7) the self-redemption or bill breaker kiosk keys;

(8) the change cart key;

(9) the table game drop box content key;

(10) the table game drop box release key;
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(11) the bill validator and table drop storage cart keys;

(11) the table games chip bank cover key;

(12) the table games chip tray key;

(13) the progressive table games controller key;

(14) the progressive table games high end key;

(15) the reserve chip storage keys;

(16) the card and dice storage area keys;

(17) the secondary chip storage keys;

(17) the access door key to any cage, EGM bank, or redemption booth;

(18) the window key to any cage, EGM bank, or redemption booth;

(19) the vault keys;

(20) the soft count room keys;

(21) the weight scale calibration key; and

(22) any keys not listed above that control access to cash or chip storage areas.

(c) If a facility manager chooses to use rings to maintain its keys, each key on the
ring shall be identified on a key access list individually.

(d)* Each facility manager’s internal control system shall include details about the
following information:

(1) The location of each sensitive and critical key box;

(2) the employee or contract job titles that are authorized to access the sensitive
or critical key boxes;

(3) how the keys for the sensitive or critical key boxes shall be issued and

controlled;
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(4) the sensitive or critical key names, location, custodian and job titles
authorized to sign out each sensitive or critical key;

(5) the location and custodian of duplicate sensitive keys; and

(6) continuous surveillance coverage of each key box.

(e) If a facility manager chooses to use an automated key control system, the
facility manager’s internal control system shall also include the following information:

(1) A description of the automated system and its configuration, including how
access is controlled;

(2) the system’s ability to provide scheduled and on-demand reports for a
complete audit trail of all access including the following:

(A) The identity of the key box;

(B) the identity of the employee;

(C) the identity of the keys;

(D) the date and time a key was removed;

(E) the date and time a key was returned;

(F) any unauthorized attempts to access the key box; and

(G) all entries, changes, or deletions in the system and the employee performing
the entry, change, or deletion;

(3) the employee position that is in charge of any automated key control system;

(4) the employee positions that are authorized to enter, modify, and delete any
keys;

(5) the employee positions that are authorized to access the system.

(6) details about the alarms being used to signal for the following events:
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(A) Overdue keys;

(B) open key box doors;

(C) unauthorized attempts to access; and
(D) any other unusual activities;

(7) any system override procedures; and

(8) a procedure for the notification of a commission security agent on duty in the

event of partial or complete system failure.

(f) All individuals authorized to access keys in the automated system shall have
such authorization noted in such employee’s personnel file.

(g) Any changes to the authorized employees that have access to the automated
keys shall be updated within 72 hours of the employee change. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )

E.5.b (30 of 30)



112-108-1. Definitions. The following words and terms, when used in this article, shali
have the following meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:
(a) “Bad beat” means a jackpot prize that is paid in poker when a sufficiently

strong hand is shown face down and loses to an even stronger hand held by antther

player.

1is one pot, and settles

and placed in the discard pile, after

i
g
i

paine of Pai Gow.
(h) “Patron” means any person present at a gaming facility who is not employed
by such facility manager, the Kansas lottery, or the commission and is not on the

premises as a vendor of the facility manager.
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(i) “Pit area” is defined as the immediate areas within a gaming facility where

one or more table games are open for play.

(i) “Promotional coupon” means any instrument offering any person something

prize or prizes of different values.

(1) “Promotional giveaway” means-

person provides no consideratio
_'.d'.x-. X

"?ﬁ e
of the promotional gift ot mgdand all persons meeting the criteria receive the same

promotional gift or item.

ﬁéé

&

a game such

(0) “Table games” means lottery facility games other than an electronic gaming

machine.
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(p) “Value chips” means chips with a value impressed, engraved, or imprinted on

them. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

— )
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112-108-2. Consistency with the Kansas lottery’s rules. Each facility manager shall
conduct any lottery facility games consistent with the rules of the game established by the

Kansas lottery. (Authorized' by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective
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112-108-3. Participation in table games by a certificate holder or a gaming licensee.

(a) Except as provided in K.A.R. 112-108-37, no facility manager or any director,

officer, key person, or any other agent of any facility manager shall play or be permitted
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112-108-4. Testing and approval of table games. (2) Each table game, rules of the
game, and the associated equipment to be used ina gaming facility shall be submitted for

approval in accordance with the act and these regulations.

(b) Each table game, rules of the game, and associated equipment shall’

evaluated by the commission for the following:

endént testing laboratory to evaluate the

R
R

ible game, rules of the game, and associated equipment have been approved
by the commission and issued a certificate authorizing its use at the gaming facility. The

certificate shall be prominently displayed on the approved device. A facility manager
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shall not modify, alter, or tamper with an approved table game, rules of the game,
associated equipment, or a commission-issued certificate.

(g) The facility manager shall notify the executive director in writing and receive

written approval at least five days before moving or disposing of a table game-or:

.“s’

izuré by any Kansas law

Qﬁ;&s%

known or suspected defect or malfunction in any table game or associated equipment

installed in the gaming facil-ity no later than four hours after detection. The facility
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manager shall comply with any instructions from the commission staff for the use of the

table game or associated equipment.

(j) Any facility manager shall include table games and their associated equipment

8772; effective P-
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112-108-5. Compliance with law; prohibited activities. (2) Each facility manager
shall comply with all federal and state regulations and requirements for the withholding
of taxes from winnings and the filing of currency transaction reports (CTR). |

(b) The facility manager is prohibited from the following activities: %,

(1) Permitting persons who are visibly intoxicated to part1c1pate“‘1ﬁ“14;ableﬁgaﬁﬁes,

W

(2) permitting any table game or associated table game ;%qmpme it hat fay have
been marked, tampered with, or otherwise placed in a cond1t10;};;ﬁ@perated in a manner

g‘“w : %
that might affect the normal game play and 1ts payouts; %%& A w‘% f%‘g
*zﬁ

(3) permitting cheating, if the facility mag%ger Wa%* aware or should have been
aware of; éggr@%

L B o
(4) permitting any cheating i,_evic%\%%gma;n in or upon any gaming facility, or

conducting, carrying on, operaty gﬁ‘%“dealmg any cheating or thieving game or device on

# k%
the premises; and £ &

&) pemuttmgmagy gam%ﬁhﬂg device that tends to alter the normal random
R
selection of c%{pa that “‘ﬁet;%mes the results of the game or deceives the public in any
way to rema %a%ﬁwpé?/ n any gaming facility, if the facility manager was aware, ot

shell d have -en‘“”’aware of.

ﬁé’ﬁny violation of this regulation shall be reported within one hour to a
commission agent.
(d) A facility manager shall not allow a patron to possess any calculator,

computer, or other electronic, electrical, or mechanical device at any table game that:
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(1) Assists in projecting the outcome of a game;
(2) keeps track of cards that have been dealt;
(3) keeps track of changing probabilities; or
(4) keeps track of playing strategies being utilized, except as pcrmzttng y%%le
S
commission. %W }%
(e) A person who, without the assistance of another person or wit ”%%1; %e use of a

physical aid or device of any kmd uses the person s owWn ablht%rgg;@»kee{zack of the
value of cards played and uses predictions formed as a r(% Ito %
in their playing and betting strategy shall not bf% c@gmdezggﬁ%bj

regulations. Each facility manager may makw;s own detcrmmation if such behavior is

%’% S,
disruptive to gaming. (Authorlzed by and 1mvp1e it ntmg K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772;

in violation of these

il

effective P-
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112-108-6. Table game internal controls. (a) Each facility manager shall establish a
system of internal controls for the security and operation of table games as provided
under this article. The internal controls for table games shall be submitted to the
commission for approval under K.A.R. 112-104-1 and shall address the foilonﬁagﬁ

(1) Object of the game and method of play, including what censtﬁtﬁgf' Eoss

or tie bets; %% .
& & o
(2) physical characteristics of the game, gaming equlp wﬁﬁ&%}’l gaming table;
(3) opening and closing of the gaming table; ‘%&% @’ﬁ

(4) wagers and payout odds for each typemf avaygfblé%vager

(A) descnptmn of the permissible wa:ge;rs ﬁd payout odds;
P
(B) minimum and maximum _Wage%%s,halid)e posted on a sign at each table; and

monitor live games;

(6) for each game that uses cards describe:

(A) Shuffling procedures;
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(B) card cutting procedures;
(C) procedures for dealing and taking cards; and
(D) burning cards;

(7) describe procedures for the collection of bets and payouts includ%ﬁg -

requirements for Internal Revenue Service purposes;

immediate notification of commission agent on duty; y S
gw’

(9) describe procedures for dealers being reheveﬁ’i \@%

(10) provide procedures for immediate be 1
¢

duty when equipment is defective or malfune: iy _nmg;maﬁd

L%

] egu%@gg ;;;i the game, including dice off the table

ficati /ﬁgg to*‘éfhe commission agent on

(11) procedures to describe

and soiled cards.
%

(b) Each facility n@agpg that provides table games shall include in its internal

controls a table gaméd_gg artrneﬁWThat department shall be supervised by a person
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112-108-7. Publication of rules and payoff schedules for all permitted games. Each
facility manager shall provide free of charge and within one hour a copy of the rules and
accurate payoff schedules for any table game if requested by a patron. Payoff schedules

must accurately state actual payoffs applicable to a particular game or device-atid.shall

K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-
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112-108-8. Payout for pregressive table games. (a) Table gemes that include
progressive jackpots shall have a progressive meter visible to patrons. If any part of the
distribution to the progressive jackpots is being used to fund a secondary jackpot, visible

signage informing players of this supplemental distribution must be placed in-the;

internal controls for each game having a progressive jackpot.

i

)
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112-108-9. Authorized table gaming suppliers. Chips, dice, and playing cards for use
in table games may only be purchased from a permitted or certified gaming supplier.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- D)
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112-108-10. Chip specifications. (a) Chips with a value impressed, engraved, or
imprinted on them shall be known as “value chips” and chips without a value on them

shall be known as “nonvalue chips.”

(b) Each value chip issued by a facility manager shall have the follogyiﬁ ..

characteristics:

(1) be round;

designed, manufactured, and constructed so as to prevent the

counterfeiting of value chips.
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(¢) Unless otherwise authorized by the commission, value chips may be issued by
facility managers in denominations of one, two and one-half, five, twenty, twenty-five,
one hundred, five hundred, one thousand, five thousand, and ten thousand dollars. The

facility managers shall have the discretion to determine the denominations todsesutilized

4

gichips worth less than

rth-equal to or greater

(¢) Each denomination of value C}%Ip

B

every other denomination of value chip. U

Kansas 6h.hat same denomination of value chip. The primary color to be utilized by
each facility manager for each denomination of value chip shall be as follows:
(1) $1 White

) $2.50 Pink
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(3) %5 Red
(4) $20 Yellow
(5) $25 Green
(6) 5100 Black
(7y $500 Purple

(8) $1,000 Fire Orange
©) $5,000  Grey

(10) $10,000 Burgundy.

When so presented, the dealer at the issuing table shall exchange them for an iquivalent

amount of value chips.
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(g) No facility manager or its employees shall allow any patron to remove

nonvalue chips from the table from which they were issued.

(h) No person at a roulette table shall be issued or permitted to game with

chips

nonvalue chips that are identical in color and design to value chips or to nonya

¢ dita hed to

o

)
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112-108-11. Submission of chips for review and approval. (a) Each facility manager
shall submit to the executive director for approval a sample of each denomination of

value and nonvalue chips and shall not utilize these chips for gaming purposes until

approved in writing by the executive director.
(b) In requesting approval of any chips, a facility manager, shailfrst to

the commission a detailed schematic of its proposed chips, and a sampl p g‘ifhmh shall

ach nonvalue

of Wéch shall be
size and location, on the
actual chip. Once the design schematics oggchlp\ii approved by the executive director, no

unless and until a sample of each

. i . .« »
ssfnanager or other person licensed by the commission shall

et e

value or ﬁ;gﬂ%alue chips having the same edge design as those approved for use in

Kansas. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

— )
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112-108-12. Primary, secondary, and reserve sets of gaming chips. Unless otherwise
authorized by the executive director, each facility manager shall have a primary set of
value chips, a separate secondary set of value chips, a primary set of nonvalue chips, and

a nonvalue chip reserve that shall conform to the color and design specificatiotis:set forth

&

(b) Each facility manager shali have a ng
E

(d) When the primary set of chips is removed from active play, the facility

manager shall immediately notify a representative of the commission as to the reason for
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this occurrence. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective

P- )
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112-108-13. Exchange of chips. (2) Chips shall be issued to a person only at the
request of that person and shall not be given as change in any other transaction. Chips
shall be issued to gaming facility patrons at cashiers’ cages or at the live table games.

Chips may be redeemed at cashiers’ cages.

(b) Chips shall only be redeemed by a facility manager for its patre:

by the patron, except when the chips.were o
aﬁ?fo“”’"‘m%

v

~rson shall redeem the chips upon presentation of

chips issued b

S,

chips issued by another facility manager may not be used, exchanged, or redeemed at this
gaming facility." (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772;

effective P- )
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112-108-14. Receipt of gaming chips from manufacturer. (2) When chips are
received from the manufacturer, they shall be opened and checked by at least two
employees, one from the table games department and one from the security department of

the facility manager. Any deviation between the invoice accompanying the chips.and the

actual chips received or any defects found in the chips shall be reportedtta;

inventory ledger the denomination of the chips ecewe“@g, the number of each
‘ ey

\‘a?‘ﬂ"" A

. - \fﬁ“”y -
following categories:

4 »
rve chips that may be placed into play as the need arises.

aryschips, both value and nonvalue, that are held to replace the

the table games or at a cashier's cage, they shall be stored in a separate, locked

compartment either in the vault orin a cashier's cage and shall be recorded in the chip

inventory ledger as reserve chips.
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(d) Any chips received that are part of the secondary set of chips of the facility
manager shall be recorded in the chip inventory ledger as such and shall be stored in a

jocked compartment in the gaming facility vault separate from the reserve chips.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-_

E.5.c(250f 119)



112-108-15. Inventory of chips. (a) In the presence of at least two individuals, one
from the table games department and one from the security department of the facility
manager, chips shall be taken from or returned to either the reserve chip inventory or the
secondary set of chips. The denominations, number, and amount of chips taken*“

=,

returned shall be recorded in the chip inventory ledger together with the'date

4{?

signatures of the two individuals carrying out this process.

(b) The facility manager’s accounting department, on nﬂﬂéf basis, shall

compute and record the unredeemed liability for each de%om a%ﬁomﬁf chips, take an

K- E

inventory of chips in circulation, and record theéﬂggesult ofmis fiventory in the chip

shatl only be required annually if the mventory procedures incorporate
! ea‘%d, locked compartment, and such seals have not been broken. Seals
shall o yibe broken by a commission agent and violation thereof shall immediately be
reported to a commission agent on duty.

(¢) During non-gaming hours, all chips in the possession of the facility manager

shall be stored in ‘the chip bank, in the vault, or in a locked compartment in a cashier’s
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cage, except that chips may be locked in a transparent compartment on gaming tables
provided that there is adequate security as approved by the commission.
(d) The internal contro! system shall include procedures for the removal and

destruction of damaged chips from the gaming facility inventory. (Authorizedby.and

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-
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112-108-16. Destruction of chips. (a) Ten days before the anticipated destruction of
chips, a facility manager shall notify the commission in writing of:
(1) The date and the location at which the destruction will be performed;

(2) the denomination;

(3) the number and amount of value chips to be destroyed;

&
g

& notified prior to
the commencement of destruction.
(c) The destruction of chips will oget

the duration of destruction.

(d) Unless otherwise autho

%

P
(LR,

v

m?gpgesence‘of at least two individuals, one will be from the

chips shall be carried out.2
table games departmi
denominatiogﬁa_g;ynber‘ 4nd amount of value chips or, in the case of nonvalue chips, the

f
&
s,

.
description a

r withithe-signatures of the individuals carrying out the destruction and the date on

B,

which dest {iction took place. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-

8772; effective P- B
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112-108-17. Counterfeit chips. (a) The facility manager shall notify a commission
security agent when a counterfeit chip is discovered and shall deliver the counterfeit chip

to the commission security agent to investigate criminal prosecution.

(b) Each facility manager shall record the following information regarding

counterfeit chips:

y disposing of them in any other lawful manner.

their currency or coin inventories, or b
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(d) The facility manager shall maintain each record required by this regulation
for at least seven years, unless the executive director approves or requires otherwise.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- D

E.5.c (30 of 119)



112-108-18. Tournament chips and tournaments. (2) “Tournament chip” means a
chip or chip-like object issued by a facility manager for use in tournaments at the facility
manager’s gaming facility.

(b) Tournament chips shall be designed, manufactured, approved, andsised in

accordance with the provisions of this article applicable to chips, exceptas:

“No Cash Value™;

(3) tournament chips shall not be used _and facility managers shall not permit

aments for which they are issued; and

their use, in transactions other than the tournam

(4) the provisions of KA.

P

(¢) As used in thisiregulation, entry

1112-108-17 shall not apply to tournament chips.

fees shall be defined as the total amount paid

by a person or on a Pex ’s b
g

d spoa{gsored;by a facility manager in which patrons may be assessed an

e .. . .
wired to meet some other criteria to compete against one another in a

the facility manager. Facility managers may conduct tournaments provided:

(1) The facility manager shall notify the commission of the planned tournament

at least 10 calendar days before the first day of the event;
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(2) the facility manager shall conduct the fournament in compliance with all
applicable rules, regulations, and laws;
(3) the facility manager shail maintain written, dated rules governing the event

" and the rules shall be immediately available to the public and the commissi

request. Tournament rules shall, ata minimum, include:
(A) The date, time, and type of tournament to be held;

(B) the amount of the entry fee, if any;

refunding of entry fees inl
(4) no false &
; ploy@es or agents regarding any aspect of the tournament, and all prizes

x?\;w

offered in the iiriament shall be awarded according to the facility manager s rules

manager or it

2o ’”mmg th event. Tournaments shall not be structured or conducted in a manner that

\r

refleéts ﬁ’ggﬁtively on the facility manager, the commission, or the integrity of gaming in
Kansas;
(5) the facility manager’s accounting department shall keep a complete record of

the rules of the event and all amendments thereto, including criteria for enfry and
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winning, names of all entrants, all prizes awarded, and prize winners, for a minimum of
two years from the last date of the tournament and it shall be made readily available to
the commisston upon request;

(6) entry fees shall accumulate to adjusted gross gaming receipts. Ent

| Al

dollar value of the amount actually invoiced to and%pazd‘ by-the" fa(;lhty manager;

prize winners and amounts won, and.tax repo 1 ormation shall be submitted to the
{/W, "-ﬁ

commission; and
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112-108-19. Promotional activities. (a) Facility managers shall establish a system of
internal controls for promotional giveaways, conduct of promotional games, or similar
activities. The internal controls shall be submitted to the commission under K.AR. 112~

104-1. Every promotion shall comply with the following:

(1) No false or misleading statements, written or oral, shall be mék

: imipediately available to the public and the commission

of two years from the last day of the event;

gt

@ffered in the promotional activity shall be awarded according to the

player in any gambling, including promotional games, at such facility manager’s gaming

facility, including games for which there is no cost to participate; and
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(6) the facility manager shall designate in its internal control system an employee
position acceptable to the commission that shall be responsible for ensuring adherence to
the rules set forth in this regulation.

(b) Promotional coupons shall contain the following information prepringe

)

the coupon:

(1) The name of the gaming facility;

& : - !
(3) specific value of any monetary coupon statediin U8y doliars;

(¢) Dogymentation of any change or cancellation of a promotional coupon shall

£oT two years with the legal counsel’s affidavit.

coupon that contains all of the information required for a promotional coupon in section

(c) of this regulation.
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() Facility managers offering promotional coupons shall track the issuance and
redemption of each promotional coupon in accordance with K.A.R. 112-107-19.

Documentation of the promotional coupon tracking shall be maintained on file for two

years and made readily available to the commission upon request. The inventory f non-
i

k- 5

(\A%thoﬁzed by and
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112-108-20. Table game and poker cards; specifications. Unless otherwise
documented in the internal controls and approved by the commission, all cards used for
table games must meet the following specifications:

(2) Cards shall be in standard decks of 52 cards each with each card identic ical in

G
b

size and shape to every other card in such deck or as otherwise documented;

internal controls and approved by the commission;
r‘:é%,}’

(b) each standard deck shall be composed of four suits:dia ‘"‘ﬁds, spades, clubs,

and hearts;

thaticard from any other card in the deck;

) he backs of all cards in the deck shall be designed so as to diminish as far as
possible the ability of any person 1o place concealed markings thereon;
(f) the design to be placed on the backs of cards used by facility managers shall

contain the name or trade name of the facility manager where the cards are to be used and
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shall be submitted to the commission for approval prior to use of such cards in gaming
activity;

(g) each deck of cards for use in table games as defined in this regulation shall be

packaged separately through the use of cellophane or shrink wrap or other mmﬂax;

*"N;,f.u

¢ used by the facility manager only in the play of

(2) be made of plastic; and
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(3) bave two decks with visually distinguishable card backings for each set of

poker cards. These card backings may be distinguished, without limitation, by different

logos, different colors, or different design patterns.

() All table games utilizing cards shall be dealt from a dealing shoe gf?shufﬂing
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112-108-21. Table game cards; receipt, storage, inspections, and removal from use.

(a) A facility manager may only use plastic cards that have been approved by the

commission for its poker games.

security or accounting department. Any discrep

S

R

orted to a commission agent on duty; and

other from ﬂ;}gg%cun y éparﬁnent or accounting department. The primary card storage

secure place, the location and physical characteristics of which

AN

ented in the internal controls and shall be approved by the COMmMission.

maintained in secondary storage areas shall be transferred to the primary card storage

area before being distributed to the pit area or poker tables. All secondary storage areas
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shall be located in secure areas, the location and physical characteristics of which shall be

documented in the internal controls and approved by the commission.

(c) All primary and secondary card storage areas shall have two separate locks.

The security department shall maintain one key and the table games departmen hall

after notification to surveillance,

&5

shall remove the decks of table game cards'o; POEEI cards from the primary card storage

area needed for that gaming da

yo o)
A

éybe}éyfgg_ transported to a pit or the poker room will be recorded

(e) All cards before.b

&

supervisors for distribution to the dealer at each table. The poker room rhanager, pit

manager, or their supervisor, shall place extra decks into a single locked compartment of

a poker room or pit area stand. All authority will be limited to the supervisor’s or
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manager’s respective area of duty. The poker room supervisor, pit area supervisor or
above shall have access to the extra decks of cards to be used for that gaming day.
(g) Any movement of decks after being delivered to the poker room or pit area

involving areas normally open to the public will be by a poker room manag

manager or higher and require a security escort after notifying surveﬂ}a.n &&= Protedures

for the pick-up of used decks, including obtaining keys, 1nd1v1duals respe
updating inventory ledgers shall inctude:
(1) Transportation of used decks by security;

(2) surveillance notification prior to moyement o the decks;

y«the poker room supervisor, pit manager or his supervisor in the table
ent has access to the compartment in which the decks are stored;
(2) there is continuous, dedicated surveillance coverage of the storage

compartment and surrounding area; and
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(3) the poker room Supervisor, pit manager or his supervisor in the table games
department maintains an approved storage log that is current at all times inside the card
storage compartment that includes the current number and color of decks in the

compartment. The storage log shall indicate:

(A) The quantity and description of all decks that are placed in

ity

<*%£}§

including the signature and commission license number of the person w

3

in the compartment, and the time and date;
(B) the quantity and description of all decks tha

compartment including the signature and commission lices ber of the person who

pr
5

B

2

removed them, where they were taken, and-thy unéa;rﬁi date;

i

e current number of each design and

‘also shi

i,

&

securit}f " sci")rt and notification to surveillance except for when being collected by
security as detailed in subsection (n) of this regulation.
(i) Before being placed into play, all decks shall be inspected by the dealer and

the inspection verified by a floor supervisor or the floor supervisor’s supervisor. Card
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inspection at the gaming table shall require the dealer to sort each deck into sequence and
into suit to ensure that all cards are in the deck. The dealer shall also check each card to
ensure that there is no indication of tampering, flaws, scratches, marks, or other defects

that might affect the integrity of the game.

(1) If, after checking the cards, the dealer finds that a card is unsii or use, a

replace the entire deck.

(2) A commission security agent on duty shall bi

i

removal, including the card manufacturer's name;:and when and where discovered. Cards

o
1

shall also be removed at the direction of th

sshall be placed in a transparent sealed envelope or
container, identified by%;fﬁe table number, date, and time, and shall be signed by the dealer

and floor supk; zass“%ned to that table. The floor supervisor or above shall maintain

e &

coilecieﬁ"“

f ZL facility manager’s security department employee.

(5) Cards being removed from play shall be inspected by a member of the

facility’s security department within 48 hours of their removal.
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() If an automated deck checking device is used, the facility manager shall
include the following procedures:
(1) Before the initial use of the automated deck checking device, the critical

program storage media and the camera software shall be verified and sealed

commission security agent;

(3) the automated deck checking device will be 1
enbircled area,
(4) the automated deck checking devi n"

room; and

(k) Allenvelopes and

e N

(M T

designed r'constructed so that any tampering shall be evident.

¥
&

(2) The envelopes or containers and seals shall be approved by the executive

director.
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() Any cards that have been opened and placed on a gaming table shall be
changed at least once every 24 hours. In addition, the following conditions shall be met:
(1) Cards opened for use on a traditional “full” baccarat table shall be changed

upon the completion of each shoe;

(2) cards opened for use on any table game in which the cards a
players shall be changed at least every six hours;

(3) cards opened for use on any table game and dealt
‘:‘f_f?.’.

department employee.

(n) At the end of the gaming day or, in the alternative, at least once each gaming

day at the same time each day, as designated by the facility manager and documented in
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the internal controls approved by the commission, and at other times as may be
necessary, the floor supervisor or above shall collect all used cards.
il) These cards shall be counted and placed in a sealed envelope or confainer. A

label shall be attached to each envelope or container that shall identify the tablespumber,

security department employee.

(0) The facility manager shall remove :

s
S

integrity or fairness of the game, or at| the request of the commission security agent on

duty.

o

the end of the gaming day or, in the alternative, at least once each gaming

day at th same time each day as designated by the facility manager in the internal
controls and approved by the commission, and at other times as may be necessary, 4

facility manager security department employee shall collect and sign ail envelopes or
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containers with damaged cards, cards used during the gaming day, and all other decks

with broken seals and shall return the envelopes or containers to the security department.

(r) Each poker room shall identify and maintain in the poker room stand a

deck has been depleted to the point it is noﬂeﬁger usefal the remaining cards in the
m B e

i,

nd de E stroyed or cancelled.

seals are‘etiirned to the security department, they shall be inspected within 48 hours bya

member of the facility manager’s security department who has been trained in proper
card inspection procedures. The cards will be inspected for tampering, marks, alterations,

missing or additional cards, or anything that might indicate unfair play.
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(1) With the exception of the cards used on a traditional “full” baccarat table,
which are changed upon the completion of each shoe, all cards used in table games in
which the cards are handled by the player will be inspected.

(2) In other table games, if less than 300 decks are used in the gm.i%gﬁa at

least 10% of those decks will be selected at random to be inspected. If 300:

are used that gaming day, at least 5% of those decks but no fewer than 30:

selected at random to be inspected.
(3) The facility manager shall also inspect:

f (1)(3) of this regulation

(A) Any cards removed from play as stated in subs

listed in subsection (t) of this

Prom
K;‘-/éf” o,
(C) all cards used-for pd

e

i %})ection of the backs of the cards with an ultraviolet light;
Ahe inspection of the sides of the cards for crimps, bends, cuts, and shaving;
(D) the inspection of the front and back of all poker cards for consistent shading

and coloring;

(E) the positions authorized by job description to conduct the inspection;
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(F) surveillance notification prior to inspecting the cards;
(G) time and location the inspection will be conducted;
(H) minimum training requirements of persons assigned to conduct the

inspections;

(1) specifically what inspections will be conducted and how they™
performed, including the use of any special equipment;
(J) other applicable security measures;

" (K) immediate notification of the commission s&

number of cards received with tl

G %

&
& X i,

or more poket ird e deck are determined to be unsuitable for continued use, those

report shallbe completed in accordance with subsection (t)(10) below.
(6) Upon completion of the inspection procedures required in subsection ()(4)

above, each deck of poker cards which is determined suitable for continued use shall be

1
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placed in sequential order, repackaged, and returned to the primary or poker card storage
area for subsequent use.
(7) The facility manager shail develop internal control procedures for returning

the repackaged cards to the storage area.

(8) The individuals performing the inspection shall complete a Wot.

that shall detail the procedures performed and list the tables from which%

completion of the inspection procedures.
(9) The facility manager shall submit t

performing the inspection, which shall be do

B
Uik
o]

approved by the commission.

(10) Evidence of tampegin

3
&

anything that might indicafe unfair play-discovered at this time, or at any other time, shall

&

report and retain the original at the commission office.
(u) The facility manager shall submit to the commission for approval internal

controls procedures for:
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(1) A card inventory system that shall include, at a minimum, documentation of
the following:

(A) The balance of decks on hand;

(B) the decks removed from storage;

(C) the decks returned to storage or received from the manufactdre:

“h)

(D) the date of the transaction; and

(E) the signatures of the individuals involved.

(A) This inventory shall

38
&
=4

(€)#Any discrepancies shall immediately be reported to the commission.
(v) Where cards in an envelope or container are inspected and found to be
without any indication of tampering marks, alterations, missing or additional cards, or

anything that might indicate unfair play, those cards shall be destroyed or cancelled.
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Once released by the commission agent on duty, the cards submitted as evidence shall
immediately be destroyed or cancelled in one of the following methods.
(1) Destruction shall occur by shredding or other method documented in the

internal controls and approved by the commission;

(2) cancellation shall occur by drilling a circular hole of at least174

diameter through the center of each card in the deck or by cutting at le

off one corner from each card in the deck or other method docﬁgﬁg ted ‘In the internal

REEes
3 ”
-

controls and approved by the commission;

s shallgake Place in a secure place, the

(3) the destruction and cancellation of

location and physical characteristics of W%iﬁh%ﬁhall be documented in the internal controls
& =

approved by the commission, and shall be performed by a member of the facility
e, e jf

-----

manager security department specifigally trained in proper procedures; or

(4) card cancellati id destruction record shall be maintained indicating the

date and time of cangellation ot destruction, quantity of cards to be cancelled or

destroyed, and.the individuals responsible for cancellation or destruction.

2
Y

u?r;@s‘ff?or canceling or destroying cards shall include:

(3) time and location the cancellation or destruction will be conducted;

(4) specifically how cancellation or destruction will be accomplished, including

the use of any special equipment;
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(5) other applicable security measures; and
(6) immediate notification of a commission security agent on duty and the

completion of an incident report regarding any flawed, marked, or suspicious cards that

are noted during the cancellation or destruction process. (Authorized by and,

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-
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112-108-22. Dice specifications. (a) Exceptas provided in subsection (b) below, each
die used in gaming shall:

(1) Be formed in the shape of a cube with a size no smaller than .750 of an inch

on each side nor any larger than .775 of an inch on each side;

(4) have all edges and corners square and:forming:90 ?ieéree angles;
a ly identical to the texture and

&
s

;.w/”

ch spot equal to the diameter of every other spot on the die;

ne?
o
v

. p@ts;earfanged so that the side containing one spot is directly opposite
;;ix spots, the side containing two spots is directly opposite the side
conta1ﬁ%ﬁ“§ﬁ&‘je spots, and the side containing three spots is directly opposite the side
containing four spots; each spot shall be placed on the die by drilling into the surface of
the cube and filling the ‘driHed out portion with a compound that is equal in weight to the

weight of the cellulose drilled out and that forms a permanent bond with the cellulose
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cube, and shall extend into the cube exactly the same distance as every other spot extends

into the cube to an accuracy tolerance of .0004 of an inch; and

(9) have the name or trade name of the facility manager in which the die is being

used imprinted or impressed thereon.
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112-108-23. Dice; receipt, storage, inspections, and removal from use. (a) A facility
manager shall take the following a(l:tions every time dice are received for use in the
gaming facility from a certified gaming supplier:

(1) The packages shall be inspected for proper quantity and obvious ﬁam ge by at

least two employees, one of whom shall be fromlthe table games departifien gn&*t ¢

other from the security department or accounting department;

(2) the dice shall be recorded in the dice inventory le member of the

security or accounting department. Any discrepancies inithe inyoiceror packing list or
curity agent on duty; and

in‘a primary or secondary storage arca

i .

by at least two employees, one of whom shi tom the table games department and

the other from the security depafﬁn t or accounting department. The primary storage

&

shall be approved byithe commission. Secondary storage areas, if needed, shall be used

Dice maintained in secondary storage areas shall be

%
T

ma;y storage area before being distributed to the pits or tables. All

(b) All primary and secondary storage areas shall have two separate locks. The
security department shall maintain ope key and the table games department shall maintain

the other key. No person working in the table games department that is working below
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the pit manager or poker room manager may have access to the table games department
key for the primary and secondary storage areas.

'(c) Before the commencement of each gaming day and at other times as may be
necessary, the pit manager, poker room manager, or their supervisor, in the presence ofa

security department employee and after notification to surveillance, shall'rt

appropriate number of dice from the primary storage area for that gamin

(d) Before being transported to a pit, all dice will be re dede?r; the dice

i
PR
f*"’ﬁm.%

inventory ledger. Both the authorized table games depa:{%ment'* {ppl@‘"fi@@ and security

i

resence of a security department

performs the same function, a balancing caliper, a steel set square and a magnet, which

instruments shall be kept in a compartment at each craps table or pit stand and shall be at

all times readily available for use by the commission upon request. The boxperson shall
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also check the dice to ensure that there is no indication of tampering, flaws, scratches,
marks, or other defects that might affect the play of the game. The inspection shall be
performed on a flat surface, which allows the dice inspection to be observed by

surveillance and by any person near the pit stand.

pit stand. The floor supervisor or above shall haye accesgito the extra dice to be used for

that gaming day.

ﬁelf;i@zeréd to the pit will be by a pit

escort after notifying surveillance. Procedures

updating inventory le

(A) Tran

y ﬁr”{%&b}-

D)+location where the dice will be taken; and
(E) other applicable security measures.
(5) If the dice are kept overnight, the dice shall be kept in a separate, single

locked storage unit within a pit area that is enclosed by gaming tables. This storage
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compartment may be used to store dice for future play within that enclosed area for up to

one week if:

(A) Only the pit manager has access to the compartment in which the dice are

stored;

(C) the pit manager maintains an approved pit storage Ic gtment at all times

S,
where they were taken, and the time and date;

ach entry in the log will also show the current pumber of each design and
color combination of dice in the compartment after each addition or removal; and

(iv) alog entry documenting the daily verification of the current inventory of dice

by the pit manager’s supervisor or higher;
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(6) No dice taken from the reserve shall be used for gaming until the dice are

inspected in accordance with this regulation.

(D) The facility manager shall remove any dice from use if there is any indication

of tampering, flaws, or other defects that might affect the integrity or faimesg

Y
o

(1) Any die showing evidence of t%‘lg?nﬁg sh

or container.

(A) All envelopesér

(B) Alabel shall be attached to each envelope or container that shall identify the

A,

@

(D} The security department employee receiving the die shall sign the original,
duplicate, and triplicate copy of the dice discrepancy report and retain the original at the

security office. The duplicate copy shall be delivered to the commission and the
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triplicate copy shall be returned to the pit and maintained in a secure place within the pit

until collection by a security department employee.

(2) The procedures for inspecting all dice required to be inspected under this

subsection shall include the following information:

(F) minimum {raining requirements of persons as

inspections;

(G) other applicable sec

(H) immediate notificafion of the commission security agent on duty and the

security agent within two hours.

(3) All other dice shall be put into envelopes or containers at the end of each

gaming day.
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(A) A label shall be attached to each envelope or container that shall identify the
table number, date, and time and shall be signed by the boxperson and floor supervisor.
(B) The envelope or container shall be appropriately sealed and maintained in a

secure place within the pit until collection by a security department employeg

container that identifies the date and time and is signed by the pitstiagager.
i<

G

(i) At the end of each gaming day, or at least oncg,eac am;{ﬁg day as designated
by the facility manager and approved by the com

be necessary, a security department empioge

Y
&,
Y
e

containers of used dice and any dice in diceT,

ot cach gamin

g day, or at least once each gaming day as designateé
by:the faci
i,

he
o
i

5

o, . . . ..
be necessary, a pit manager Or Supervisor of the pit manager may collect all extra dice in
o

approved by the commission, and at such other times as may

dice reserve.

(1) If collected, dice shall be returned to the primary storage area.
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(2) If not collected, all dice in dice reserve must be reinspected prior to use for
gaming.

(k) The facility manager’s internal contro! system shall include approval

procedures for:

R

(1) Adice inventory system that shall include, at a minimum, the*tecordation of

@
-
k

the following:
(A) The balance of dice on hand;
(B) the dice removed from storage;

>

(C) the dice returned to storage or rec i

s

S

grpedito the ptimary storage area and, if any, the dice in dice

and cancelled, the dice r

reserve; and

ical hﬁentory of the dice at least once every three months.
1 %

e

ventory shall be performed by an employee from the internal audit

ent of a supervisor from the cashier’s cage, EGM, or accounting department and

i ;ﬁ?ﬁ} \5}4’
shall be‘if;'grfﬁed to the balance of dice on hand required in paragraph (k)(1)(A) above.

H

(B) Any discrepancies shall immediately be reported to the commission agent on

duty.
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(C) The employees conducting this inventory shall make an entry and sign the
dice inventory ledger in a manner that clearly distinguishes this count as the quarterly
inventory.

(1) Destruction and/or cancellation.

(1) Cancellation shall occur by drilling a circular hole of at least”

o
in diameter through the center of each die or other method approved by the.e i

(2) Destruction shall occur by shredding or other met};% ; ppéé”'ved by the

commission.

dige shall @ké‘“pfgce in a secure place, the

&

(3) The destruction and cancellation of

e

%

location and physical characteristics of whi

(4) Dice cancellation and destruction
bﬁfg}"’”%

estruction, quantity of dice to be cancelled or destroyed,

Y A . - :
0s1t1&3,%13 authorized by job description to cancel or destroy dice;

Ui
?5,.

Hangé notification prior to cancellation or destruction of the dice;

%?"y%peciﬁcally how cancellation or destruction will be accomplished, including

the use of any special equipment;

(5) other applicable security measures; and
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(6) immediate notification of a commission security agent on duty and the
completion of an incident report regarding any flawed, marked, or suspect dice that are
noted during the cancellation or destruction process.

(m) Evidence of tampering, marks, alterations, missing or additional die

anything that might indicate unfair play discovered shall be reported to

by the completion and delivery of a dice discrepancy report.

(A) The report shall accompany the dice when delivered %fi?ommission

security agent on duty.

E.5.c (66 of 119)



112-108-24. Mandatory table game count procedure. Each facility manager shall
report to the commission the times when drop boxes will be removed and the contents
counted. All drop boxes must be removed and counted at the times previously designated

{o the commission. Removal and counting of contents at other than the desigriated times

commission’s security staff on site of a change in times or the commissi

change of authorized times. (Authorized by and implementing AfOOS Supp. 74-

£
)

8772; effective P-
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112-108-25. Handling of cash at gaming tables. (a) Whenever cash is presented by a
patron at a gaming table to obtain gaming chips, the following procedures and

requirements shall be observed:

(1) The cash shall be spread on the top of the gaming table by the dealeror

B,
k-

(b) Na cash watgers shall be allowed fo be placed at any gaming table. The cash

shall be c_om"r‘f

implementin K?A 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-108-26. Table game tips. (a) Every tip given to a dealer shall be handled in the
following manner:
(1) Immediately deposited into a transparent locked box reserved for that purpose

except that chips received at table games may first be placed in a color up tube%i

Such count shall be recorded onfa ti

f’”“‘v“ms

individ al basi

Theréceiving of tips individually may be allowed only when the dealer
ke déé:gzons that can affect the outcome of the gambling game, is not eligible
nnings from the gambling game as an agent of the facility manager, and who
uses an approved shuffling machine during the course of the poker game. If tips are

received by poker dealers on an individual basis, all tips shall be immediately placed into

a locked individual transparent tip box that shall be assigned to and maintained by the
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dealer while working. The locked individual tip box shall be given to the facility
manager at the end of the shift for counting, withholding of taxes, and subsequent

payment during the normal payrol} process. For the purposes of this subsection,

winnings from a gambling game shall not include commissions, commonly %eférg;ed to as

chips until “colored up.” The cy
chips; and A

(2) prior to chi

pon receipt of a tip from a patron, a dealer shall extend their arm in an overt
motion and deposit the tip into the transparent locked box or color up tube reserved for

such purposes.
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(d) Applicable state and federal taxes shall be withheld on tips and gifts received
by facility manager employees.
(¢) The facility manager shall include in their internal controls the procedures for

dropping tip boxes.

distributed to proper persons in a secure manner on a regular basis purs
P

S

(h) In the event a tip box becomesgfu

employee from the applicable department %Zaﬂ nofify ;che surveillance department and 4

empty the full tip box into a secl

P

E.5.c (71 of 119)



112-108-27. Table inventory. (a) Chips shall only be added or removed from the table
inventory in the following instances:
(1) In exchange for cash presented by the patron;

(2) for payment of winning wagers or collection of losing wagers madeiat the

table;

automated table game controller.
(b) A facility manager may not trans

table games.

inventory slip shail b

the outside%g ‘cov

e

“rormial play resumes.

(e) If a gaming table is not opened during a gaming day, preparation of a table

inventory slip is not required. However, the table games department must provide a daily
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list of table games not open for play including the last "closer" inventory amount and

date.

(f) When a table game is not open for play for seven consecutive gaming days,

{
4
i

,
", o
e

Sy 5§ .

E.5.c (73 0f 119)



112-108-28. Opening of gaming tables. (a) Immediately before opening a table for
gaming, a table games supervisor or table games manager shall unlock the transparent
table tray lids in the presence of the dealer or boxperson assigned to the table.

(b) The dealer or boxperson and table games supervisor or table games‘manager

(d) Once signed, the dealer or boxperson shall i

into the drop box attached to the gaming table.

table shall be orted‘%i%fh&'me éfate}y by the table games supervisor or table games

Aiission security agent on duty. (Authorized by and implementing
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112-108-29. Closing of gaming tables. (a) When a gaming table is closed, chips
remaining at the table shall be counted and verified by either two table games supervisors
or a table games supervisor and a dealer or boxperson, who shall prepare a table

inventory slip.

drop box.

(¢) The table games supervisor shall place the “opener” under the table tray lid in

a manner that the amounts on the “opener” may;f  be read an”d

%

¢k the lid in place.

(d) Each time a table game is closedyg mplete closmg procedures shall be

/‘7_,.

ing, and securing of the chips in the

followed to include the counting, veg;;ﬁcat

tray, as well as the proper dlspasal $f.the cards or dice that were in play. If the game is
- Y
%,
reopened again on the sam .gaming day»r%nmplete opening procedures will be followed

to include the countm{g&and veri“' .ation of chips in the tray and inspection of cards or dice

wf
gammg eqmpment Opener and closer slips for games that are opened

and closed Mo

mdl"ate the s¢ sequence of the shps (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp.

: “'@nce in a gaming day may be marked in such a manner as to

74~8772,~h --ffectwe P- D

pid

E.5.c (75 of 119)



112-108-30. During 24-hour gaming. During 24-hour gaming, a table game closer

shall be prepared to coincide with the table drop for that gaming day. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-108-31. Procedures for manually filling chips from cage to tables. (a) Chips
may only be transported to gaming tables when accompanied by the following
documentation.

(b) Cross-fills, even money exchanges, and foreign currency exchanges:

are prohibited.

manager shall prepare a two-part order for fill form in ink ente

S

(2) total amount of the fill;

(3) table or game number; and

(4) signature of supervisor ot

% J

the cas?k“i“ég«’as cage to a gaming table. The fill slips shall be sequentially numbered by the
7

vendor. The alphabet need not be used if the numerical series is not repeated during the

business year. Chips may not be transported unless accompanied by a fill slip.
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(f) Unless otherwise approved by commission, manual fill slips shall be inserted
in a locked dispenser that permits an individual slip in the series and its copies to be
written upon simultaneousty. The dispenser shall discharge the original and duplicate

copies while the triplicate remains in a continuous, unbroken form in the 1ockﬂeé-m

dispenser.

& void was

necessary. Both the cage cashier and a security departm%E t en%’ oyee or another Jevel I

employee independent of the transaction shall sign.

(“])“sz cashxer s cage employee shall prepare a three-part fill slip in ink by entering
the following information:
(1) Denomination;

(2) total amount;
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(3) game or table number and pit;
(4) date and time; and
(5) required signatures.

(k) A cashier’s cage employee shall sign the order for fill after compazin it to

5

the fill slip and then prepare the proper amount of chips. A facility manage

department employee shall verify the chip totals with the fill slip. A cashi

employee shall present the ordered chips to the security department:employee in a clear
g@% il i
chip carrier. Once verified, both the cashier’s cage empl%zﬁxee d the security department

T g

employee shall sign the fill slip, and the cashier;s:cage Qg;pié‘?“ééf’or security department

counted by %ﬁgaler

,emﬁioyee in full view of surveillance. After verifying the chips to
shall sigiithe fill slips. The table games supervisor and security department employee

shall observe the dealer or boxperson place the chips in the rack and deposit the fill slips

in the table drop box. A security department employee may not leave the table until the
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chips have been placed in the racks and the fill slips have been dropped. A security
department employee shall return a copy of the fill slip to the cashier.

(m) The copies of the fill slips will be reconciled by accounting at least once

daily. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effectives

=
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112-108-32. Procedures for automated filling of chips. (a) The table games
supervisor or table games manager will determine that a fill is necessary and initiate the
request for fill process. If a request for fill slip is used, procedures for distribution of the

slip will be included in the internal controls.

computer including the following:
(1) The amount by denomination;
(2) total amount;
(3) game or table number and pit;
(4) dates and time; and

(5) required signatures.

comiputer in a manne

sequential number.
SFRRE

a computerized fill slip needs to be voided, the cage cashier writes "VOID"
across all copies of the fill slip and an explanation of why the void was necessary. Botha
cashier’s cage employee and a security department employee or another level 11

employee independent of the transaction shall sign the voided fill slip. The voided fil

E.5.c(810f 119)
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slips shall be submitted to the accounting department for retention and accountability.
The transaction shall be properly voided in the computer database.
(f) A two-part fill slip will be printed in the cashier’s cage containing the

information required in subsection (b). A security department employee shallverify the

(h) The main bank cashier shall run an adding machine tape on the fill slips and

verify the total to the amount in the automated accounting system. All fill paperwork will

be forwarded to accounting.
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(i) The ability to input data into the gaming facility computer system from the pit

will be restricted to table games managers and pit clerks. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- D)
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112-108-33. Procedures for recording manual fable credits. (a) Three-part manual
credit slips shall be used to record the transfer of chips from a gaming table to the cage.
The credit slips shall be sequentially numbered by the vendor. The alphabet need not be

used if the numerical seties is not repeated during the calendar year. Chips mayznot be

transported unless accompanied by a credit slip.
(b) The inventory of nonissued credit slips shall be main‘_cained X

manager’s accounting or security department. Accounting shall:bes ;ponsible for the

k3

(1) The amount by denemi

A

K
R

of the oré g_;r%or credit on the table and take the other copy of the order for credit to the pit
¥
stand. The pit stand employee shall maintain that copy in the pit paperwork. The table

games manager shall give a copy of the order for credit to a security department
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employee, who shall take it to the cashier’s cage where the cashier shall prepare a three-

part credit stip in ink by entering:
(1) The chip denomination;

(2) total amount;

(3) game or table number; and

(4) time and date.

loyee shall Venfy the chips to the order for credit, sign the order for credit

eny “10 ce sh§§1 carry the chips and the order for credit and the credit slip back to the

%;z{{’f

ge A copy of the order for credit shall be retained at the table until a copy of

the credit slip is returned.

(h) The cashier’s cage employee shall receive the credit slips and the chips from

the security department employee, verify that the chips match the order for credit and
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credit slip. The cashier’s cage employee shall then sign the credit slips and the order for
credit. The cashier’s cage employee shall time and date stamp the credit slips. Unless
otherwise approved by the commission, a copy shall remain unbroken in the locked form
dispensing machine. The order for credit shall be attached to a copy of the credit:slip and

be retained by the cashier’s cage.

4

i sof the credit slip and an explanation of why the void was necessary. Both the

cashier’s cage employee and a security department employee or another level I
employee independent of the transaction shall sign the voided credit slip. The voided

credit slips shall be subsequently transferred to accounting and retained.
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(m) Corrections on manual table fill or credit shall be made by crossing out the
error, entering the correct information, and then obtaining the initials and commission
license number of at least two cashier’s cage employees.

(n) Accounting employees who make corrections shall initial and note”

commission license number on the request. (Authorized by and impler€nti o

2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-
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112-108-34. Automated table credits. (a) Two-part computer generated credit slips
will be used to record the transfer of chips from a gaming table to the cashier’s cage. The
credit slips shall be sequentially numbered by the computer system ensuring each credit

in a given calendar year is assigned a unique number. Chips shall not be transperted

Y

ok

B

unless accompanied by a credit slip.

the computer including the following:
(1) The amount by denomination;
(2) total amount;
(3) game or table number and pit

(4) dates and time; and

"ot boxperson shall count the chips in full view of the table games

g
1

supervisor orhigk thé security department employee, and surveillance.

,*5‘:@% ’ 5 ks
ﬁ/%;m {e) Tm table games supervisor and dealer or boxperson shall verify that the value

E

in the carrier matches the amount on the credit slip and sign the credit slip.

2

The security department employee will verify that the chips match the credit slip, sign the

credit slip, and carry the chips and the credit slip to the cashier’s cage.
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() A cashier’s cage employee shall receive the credit slip and the chips from the
security department employee, verify that the chips match the credit slip, and sign the

credit slip. A copy of the credit slip shall be retained by the cashier’s cage.

(g) The copy of the credit slip shall be taken back to the table by the seeutity

&

L

T

‘ gster‘:ﬁ. All credit

=
=

i,

paperwork shall be forwarded to accounting by the main bank Gashier.

(K)-Employees in accounting who make corrections shall initial each correction

and include their commission license number. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A.

2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-108-35. Table game layouts. (a) Table game layouts shall be consistent with the
facility manager’s internal controls and have the following characteristics:
(1) Markings on the layout can be adequately seen by surveillance;

(2) odds of winnings and payouts shall be included in markings on theJayout

- B
when required by commission; ﬁm\ i,

(3) designs shall not contain any advertising other than the famh?f}gnanager S

\%*

S Q@“
logo or trademark symbol or Kansas lottery-approved design; ‘SM\%%\\%
@N\\\\

(4) designs shall not contain any feature that tend

5 to crgate “‘d1stract10n from the

game;

(5) chips, cards, dice, and any other colirlponer}s of the game on the layout can
clearly be seen by the dealer, player and surveﬂianoe and
\\\\a\ﬂe
(6) a colored dep1ct10n\of %e\table shall be sybmitted to the commission for

approval before being placeq\mt play

K
(b) Table 1ay9ut% shali}etabe stored in a nonsecure area.
\ o v,
(c) U%%abie%ayo% that display the licensee’s logo and are not used for
\ 2:3,‘

internal trammg\vpurposes approved by commission shall be destroyed and will not be

S

@\\{\%
soldyr gﬁ%&o the pubhc (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-

”’"’Wﬁ/’w

8772, effectwe P- )
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112-108-36. Required personnel for specific table games. (a) Pit areas may be on
multiple levels or locations within a gaming facility. Pit areas shall be described by
facility managers in their internal controls at a minimum by their locations,

configurations, and restrictions on access. Each full-size “big bac” baccarat tables shall

more narrowly defined as a single, separate area that is 6

by gaming tables.

but at least one casitip:shift maw%%@ger shall provide direct supervision by acting as a table

games manager;

4‘3‘3“"&*

Heone:C

(B) hen‘:?gp to six total tables are open.

the following instances a table 'games manager shall provide direct

supervision and a casino shift manager shall not act as a table games manager: |
(A) Wheh two or more crape‘; or baccarat tables are open; or

(B) when seven to 36 total table games are open.
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(3) In the event that more than 36 tables are open, one additional table games
manager will provide direct supervision for each additional set of one to 36 tables open
and a casino shift manager shall not act as a table games manager.

(¢) Other than a casino shift manager acting as a table games manager;table

le, games manager to

an table games

neate the duties. Table games managers

i ¥
S

supervising pit areas separated by sisht or sound shall have a communications device

,ﬂ@&‘:‘m -
&
i

b

games § jgfa'f?risor. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772;

effective P- J
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112-108-37. Instructional table games offered to public. (a) A facility manager may
offer instructional table games provided the following requirements are met:
(1) Only cancelled cards and dice shall be used;

(2) gaming chips shall be marked "no cash value" or are distinctively-di

different in design

ise’ cancelled;
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112-108-38. Minimum and maximum table games wagers. (a) All minimum and

maximum wagers shall be posted at each table and may be changed between games by

posting new table limits.

chip denomination. 1

effective P-
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112-108-39. Dealer hand clearing. (a) All dealers and boxpersons shall clear their
hands in view of all persons in the immediate area and surveillance before and after
touching their body and when entering and exiting the game. Dealer hand clearing means

holding and placing both bands out in front of the body with the fingers of boththands

demonstrate that the hands are empty. (Authorized by and im

Supp. 74-8772; effective P- )
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112-108-40. Table games jackpot; employee pocketbooks. (a) A table games jackpot
slip or manual jackpot form shall be used to pay any table games jackpot that is at least
$600 and at least 300 times the amount of the wager or otherwise required by IRS

reporting standards. Ifa manual jackpot form is used, the form shall include alkthe

information as required on the table games jackpot slip. The table gam;as*j

e i
ko F

2

611 ;a%("ﬁ sl;;ﬂi be

"
-y

ksor other personal
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112-108-41. Poker room; general. (a) Live poker games in which the dealer does not
play a hand and a rake is collected shall be played only in an approved poker room. All
other poker games in which the dealer plays a hand and the player competes against the

dealer shall be played at gaming tables that are part of a pit on the gaming flooss;
£

‘,;%?
CF
F-4
#

ommission

8772; effective P- J
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112-108-42. Poker room; supervision. (a) Each poker room shall be under the general

control of a poker room manager or table games manager and the direct oversight of at
least one poker room supervisor. Poker room supervisors shall be solely dedicated to

supervising poker room personnel and all activities within the poker room wheix;

poker room is opening, in operation, or closing at the end of the gaming day;
room supervisor may operate the poker room bark, if so authorized in th
every one to eight tables open.

(b) If a facility manager uses job titles

“poker room supervisor,” the internal controk

i

S A
e i

R b
facility manager correspond to these ipositi%’»‘ﬁwsg,andk nsure the job descriptions of those

Ei;'s-

signed. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A.
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112-108-43. Poker room; banks and transactions. (a) If a facility manager uses a
poker room bank, the facility manager’s internal controls shall state whether the bank is

~ operated as a branch of the main cage with a cashier’s cage or if accountability and

the'pokertoom do not require a security escort.

M
kN

sfers between the table banks or poker room bank and the cashier’s cage

poker room are properly authorized and documented by the poker room

supervisor on an even exchange slip as set forth in the internal controls.
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(¢) A facility manager may only permit patrons to exchange cash for chips at the
poker room bank or cashier’s cage and then only within submitted and commission-

approved buy-in procedures.

(f) When a poker table is opened, the poker table bank inventory shali‘be

by a poker dealer and the accuracy of the count shall be verified by the pok

gpt silaii he

iRt

supervisor and attested to by their signatures on a table inventory slip.

=
o

)
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112-108-44. Poker room; drops and counts. The procedures for the collection of
poker table drop boxes, toke boxes, and the count of the contents thereof shall comply
with the internal control standards applicable to the table game drop boxes in K.A.R.

112-108-48. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772;effective P-
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112-108-45. Bad beat and special hand jackpots. (a) If the facility manager offers a
bad beat or special hand jackpot, all funds collected for the jackpot shall be used to fund
the primary, secondary, and tertiary jackpot and be available for poker players fo win.

The percentage of the funds attributable to each jackpot shall be included in thesmles of

shall be attached:

o
=i

game;

(3) the namezofthe pérs_"” athat had the winning poker hand for that game;

e

"(é%;;fs‘Sixrveillance shall be notified and shall visually verify all winning hands when
a bad beat or special hand jackpot is won. The verification by surveillance shall be

documented in the surveillance log.
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(d) The amount of primary bad beat jackpots and any special hand jackpots shall
be prominently displayed at all times in the poker room, and the amount displayed shall
be promptly updated at least once each gaming day by adding the correct percentage of
funds that wc*;re collected from the previous gaming day. In the event the ba

jackpot is won and the amount displayed has not yet been updated, the pok

- winners. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Sup
f?m
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112-108-46. Gaming table drop device characteristics. (a) Each gaming table in the
gaming facility shall have an attached drop device for the following items:
(1) deposited currency;

(2) copies of table transaction documents; and

(3) mutilated chips.

without authorization;

~ (3) aslot opening or mechanism tg%r@ : tall currency, documents, etc.,

§
it
o

shall be inserted;

o &,
device.from the

'ﬂgaming table; and
anently imprinted and clearly visible that identifies the

game and tabieﬂnmnbé%g% wﬁich it is attached. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A.

e

veffective P- )
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112-108-47. Emergency gaming table drop devices; drop procedures. (a) The
facility manager shall maintain emergency gaming table drop devices with the same
physical characteristics in K.A.R. 112-108-46, except for the game and table number

markings. The emergency drop device shall be permanently marked with theword

ble for performing the emergency

L

P

drop. One shall be a security depart/g;gnt e and one shall be a level I or level 1
&

employee independent of the takéfié‘“ ames department. The table games department shall

al‘control procedures for emergency drop devices shall include the

)-sthe process for obtaining drop device release keys;

(3) procedures for removal of the drop device; and

(4) the location and safekeeping of the replaced drop device.

E.5.c (105 of 119)



112-108-47
Page 2 -

(e) Any contents removed during the emergency drop shall be counted and

inchuded in the next count. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-

8772; effective P- D
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112-108-48. Procedures for the collection and transportation of drop devices. (a)
The facility manager shall submit the current drop schedule to the commission’s security
agent showing the times and days when the drop devices will be removed from the

gaming tables. At a minimum, the gaming table drop devices shall be dropped:

5,,1

of each gaming day.

employee. The actual removal of the dropfdemces ora the gaming tables shall be

GNN...\ o
g m i

performed by an employee independent of the ‘_table games department.

o w&f

(&) The collection andtr portation of gaming table drop devices containing

A:‘-a-:«a

be described

-
ctions emergencies, and when multiple trips are required to transport the drop

devices to:the count room.
(f) Access to stored drop devices that contain funds is restricted to authorized

members of the drop and count teams.
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(¢) Each drop device collection process, including transportation of drop devices,

shall be continuously monitored by surveillance personnel and recorded.

(h) Drop and count team members, except security department employees,

assigned to the collection of drop devices shall wear a one-piece, pocketless ij:ﬂiﬂﬁ&lit, or

&
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112-108-49. Exchange and storage of fdreign chips. (a) Foreign chips are chips that
are not authorized for use at a specific gaming facility.
(b) Foreign chips inadvertently received in the table rake shall be recorded as

drop for adjusted gross receipt purposes.

(¢) Foreign chips shall be separated from the facility manager’s:C i stored

in a locked compartment in the main bank or vault.

(d) The internal control system shall describe proce

accountability concerning foreign chips.

&

e fo;: an equal value of the facility

Fias

manager’s chips, a check, or cash.

A
%
é.a‘s‘ e
i

(g) A facility manéger shall maintain documentation of the exchange of foreign
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112-108-50. Procedures for monitoring and reviewing game operations. (a) Each

facility manager shall establish procedures for monitoring and reviewing daily table game

transactions for the following activities: y

(1) Table games;
(2) gaming facility cashiering;
(3) currency transaction reporting;

(4) sensitive key access; and

[include a description of the

iability and the inventory of chips in circulation and

%:" ions that require further investigations and the procedures for conducting

and recozgﬁ% the results of such investigations. This shall include the notification ofa

&

commission agent.

(¢) The accounting department shall perform a monthly general ledger

reconciliation oft
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(1) Adjusted gross receipts;
(2) cage accountability;
(3) chip lability; and

(4) progressive jackpot liability.

audits of the following:
(1) table games;
(2) cashier’s cage;

(3) player tracking; and

orders fm:ﬁll and credits to verify agreement;

(2) review the table game fills and credit slips for the proper number of

authorized signatures, proper date/time, and accurate arithmetic;
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(3) review all voided table game fills and credits for appropriate handling and
required number of authorized signatures. Assure that all appropriate forms are attached;

(4) verify that credits and fills are properly recorded for the computation of win;

(5) trace opening drop cards to the previous shift’s closing invento

shall be made available upon dem% !

A
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112-108-51. Maintaining table game statistical data. (a) A facility manager shall
maintain records showing the statistical drop, statistical win, and statistical win-to-drop
percentages for each gaming table and type of game. These records shall be maintained

by day, cumulative month-to-date, and cumulative year-to-date.

(b) A facility manager shall prepare and distribute statistical repoTts;
facility management on a minimum of a monthly basis. Unusu 1 fluctuat

gations shall be performed fora

‘Vﬁrom the base level. The “base

igrit has prepared an analysis of specific table wins, losses, or unusual
fluctuations, such reports shall also be given to the commission. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P- 2
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112-108-52. Required internal audits. (a) The following internal audit procedures

shall be conducted on a minimum of a semi-annual basis, except for the annual cash

~ count. If a procedure does not apply to the operations of the facility manager, this shall

be noted in the audit report.
(b) Table games audit procedures, performed by a member of thé*fa T

department, shall include provisions that:

(1) Five table openings and five table closings shall be'observed for compliance

&
E

with the commission-approved internal controls and this

224" hour gaming day or a weekend day;

B

tgpfpocedures for table games and poker drops shall be observed and

(5) dice inspection procedures shall be observed and reviewed as outlined in the

commission-approved internal controls and this article;
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(6) card inspection procedures shall be observed and reviewed as defined in the
commission-approved internal controls and this article;
(7) card and dice inventory control procedures shall be reviewed and verified;

(8) statistical reports for table game drop, win, and win-to-drop percentages shall

TR
=

investigated;

(9) supervision in the pits shall be verified as require b

approved internal controls and this article;

2

(10) dealer tip collection, count verification, and 1 cg?ﬁfi’ifxg procedures shall be
o

observed; and

ity cashiering shall be verified by a member of the facility’s

A

tmeft to ensure that any changes to the chip inventory ledgers during
thes Nim-annual audit period are documented and the required signatures are present on
the ledé%f%‘f ;he supporting documentation.

(d) Adjusted gross receipts shall be reconciled by a member of the facility’s

internal audit department against:
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(1) Adjusted gross receipts from the table games, cage accountability, chip
liability, and progressive jackpot liability. Include a copy of the reconciliation in the
internal audit report.

(2) Trace all gaming source documents (i.e. table fill slips, table cre%ift*%‘ii s, and

reconcile to copies.

(A) Review these documents for accuracy and comple

commission-approved internal controls and this article.

(B) Verify and account for the numericaksequence f'ttié table fill slips, table

£

credit slips, and table jackpot slips. Revi weall, oi %onrce document slips for

ey
Fesd

appropriate handling and authorized %ignaﬁmes ssure that all copies are attached.

" (3) Test and review thedablé.games on-line soft count systems to verify

2 o
orded in the central computer system.

transactions are accuratel
(¢) Annual cash count:*Qn an annual basis, internal andit shall conduct an

observation of.a.comp e physical count of all cash and chips in accordance with

he commission must be notified 30 days in advance of the count. At its
discretion, commission representatives may be present.
(2) Management staff may be notified no more than 24 hours in advance of the

count 1o ensure adequate staff is on duty to facilitate access to all areas being counted.
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(3) All count sheets shall be signed by those performing the inventory.
(4) A summary of the inventory total for each count sheet along with all

shortages and overages and the signed count sheets shall be included in the internal audit

report.

(5) The cash count of cage windows and of the main barnk shallf
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112-108-53. Found items. Cash, chips, tickets, cards, dice, gaming equipment, records,
or any other items found in unauthorized or suspicious locations or circumstances shall
be reported by the finder to the commission security agent on duty. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-
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112-108-54. Waiver of requirements. (a) The commission may, on its own initiative,
waive one or more of the requirements of this article applicable to table games upon a
determination that the nonconforming control or procedure meets the operational

integrity requirements of the act and this article. :

(b) A facility manager may submit a written request to the commiss

still meet the operational integrity requirement

and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8

N
s,

£
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